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1 PROCEEDINGS

2 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: Good morning. We are
3 going on the record at 9:10 am. on Tuesday, March 23,

4 2021. Thisisday 2 of the video recorded deposition of

5 Wayne LaPierre.

6 Y ou may proceed, Counsel.

7 WAY NE LAPIERRE,

8 having been previously duly sworn and having confirmed

9 that heis Wayne LaPierre, testified further as follows:

10 MR. GARMAN: Jim, you're muted.

11 EXAMINATION CONTINUED

12 BY MR. SHEEHAN:

13 Q. Good morning, Mr. LaPierre.

14  A. Good morning.

15 Q. Youll recal from yesterday that you were --

16 that you swore an oath to tell the truth, the whole
17 truth and nothing but the truth. Do you recall that?
18 A. Ildo.

19 Q. Anddoyou agreeto continueto tell the

20 truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

21 A. | do.
22 Q. Excelent.
23 After your testimony yesterday, which was a

24 long day, isthere any of your testimony that thinking

25 back you believe isincorrect?
Page 254

1 Q. Okay. Andyour first payment to the Neligan
2 firmwasin January 2021?
3 A. I believethat would have been out of the
4 trust account. So whenever that was, that was made out
5 of the trust account. | don't know the exact date. It
6 would -- | just don't know the date, the first date it
7 was made out of the trust account.
8 Q. Okay. Wasanyone authorized to make payments
9 out of the trust account besides you at the NRA?
10 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
11  A. I think the -- the Brewer firm was offered --
12 authorized to make payments out of that trust account.
13 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) Without consulting with you
14 A. To peoplethat we had retained, they were --
15 they were, yes.
16 Q. Soyouwould agree with methat if they were
17 not retained, the Brewer firm could not make payments
18 out of the trust account?
19 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form.
20 A. Wadl, weretained the Neligan firm, and the
21 money was set aside to make -- to make paymentsin
22 regards to the reorganization and reorganization
23 matters.

~J

1 A. Theonly thing | would add isin terms of who
2 knew about the fact that we were going to file for the
3 bankruptcy. Andrew Arulanandam in our PR department
4 aso was aware of that several days out.
5 Q. Sothat'slikethe 12th or the 13th of January
of 2021?

A. Itwasbeforethat. | think he was aware of
the possibility that we would do it probably aweek
before or something like that.

Q. SoJanuary 7th, January 8th?

A. After the board meeting, yeah, he was aware of

© 00N O

10

11

12 it.
13 Q. Didyoutel himyourself that there was a

14 possibility of bankruptcy?

15  A. |think wediscussed it, and | aso think he

16 discussed it with Travis with the Brewer firm, the PR

17 person with the Brewer firm.

18 Q. And apart from that -- that issue with respect

19 to Andrew Arulanandam was there any other part of your
20 testimony that you wanted to correct from yesterday?

21 A. No, | think that'sit.

22 Q. Now Mr. LaPierre, isit accurate that your

23 first contact with the Neligan firm was in January of

24 20212

25 A. That would be correct.
Page 255

24 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) And that wasin January of
25 2021?
Page 256
1 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
2 A. I don't know the exact date that the trust

3 account was set up, but, | mean, | know that we
4 interviewed the Neligan firm down in Dallas after the --
5 during the board meeting weekend, | did along with the
6 SLC, and we agreed to retain them. And that's when that
7 took place.
8 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) Andremind meagain. Did
9 you talk to any other law firm besides the Neligan firm
10 before you decided to retain the Neligan firm for the
11 bankruptcy proceedings?
12 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
13  A. No, I did not. They were recommended by the
14 Brewer firm and we interviewed them and we were all very
15 impressed with them and we agreed to retain them.
16 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) Who wasthe "we" who
17 interviewed the Neligan firm?
18 A. CharlesCotton and WillesLee, and | believe
19 Carolyn Meadows was there also, although I'm not sure of
20 that. She may not have been.
21 Q. Didyoumake-- okay. Did you make any notes
22 or asummary of the conversation with the Neligan firm
23 before you hired them?
24 A. ldidnot. | satin on ameeting with them.

25 Q. Didanybody elsefrom the special litigation
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1 committee do that, make a summary or notes of the

2 meeting?

3 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.

4  A. I'mhonestly not sure. | know that | sat

5 there and listened to them, and they did a presentation,
6 they talked. And that'swhat | did.

7 Q. (BY MR. SHEEHAN) All right.

8 MR. SHEEHAN: Jonathan, can you mark

9 Exhibit 7? Thank you.

10 (Exhibit 7 marked.)

11 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) So at this point we have
12 Exhibit 7. Could you pull up Exhibit 7, please?

13 MR. GARMAN: Yeah, one second. | don't
14 seeit.

15 THE REPORTER: It'sin the second day.

16 MR. GARMAN: Oh, | didn't see the date.

17 Sorry about that. Okay.

18 Okay. It'sup.

19 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) All right. If you would

20 take -- thiswill -- do you know that thisis part of

21 the statement of financia affairs for the NRA that was
22 filed with the bankruptcy court in Texas?

23 A. ldidnot. | have not seen this.

24 Q. Ifyoulookatlinel, 2,3, 4, you'll see

25 under who was paid or who received the transfer, it says
Page 258

1 without your approval?
2 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
3 A. Thatisa--ismoreof alegal issue. |
4 don't know whether they would or not. | know they -- |
5 know they were going to be working with people to
prepare for the reorganization, and | just did not get
involved in the specifics of who they were working with
to prepare for the reorganization. | knew they were
retaining some people to work on the reorganization. |
did not know -- | did not meet the Neligan firm until,
as| said, down in Dalasin January.

Q. (BY MR. SHEEHAN) Did the NRA retain the
Neligan firm on or before December 3, 2020 to represent

© 00N O

10
11
12
13

14 them in anything?

15 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.

16 Go ahead.

17 A. Not that I'm aware of.

18 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) Okay. Did you have any
19 discussions with the special litigation committee about

20 retaining the Neligan firm before January of 20217

21 A. Thediscussions | had with the special

22 litigation committee were in Dallas when we -- we met
23 the Neligan firm and interviewed them. And | think |
24 had heard the name Neligan firm tossed around. | think

25 the SLC had heard the name Neligan firm, but | had not
Page 260

1 Neligan, LLP. Doyou seethat?

2 A. | doseethat.

3 Q. Andthenif youlook across date of payment,

4 it says December 3, 2020. Do you see that?

5 A. ldo.

6 Q. Doyouknow whether Neligan was paid on

7 December 3, 2020, $350,000?

8 A. ldon't. I'mnotaware of that.

9 Q. Youll seeinthefootnotesto that Neligan,
10 LLP statement, this payment was made out of funds
11 transferred to Brewer, Attorneys & Counselors by the NRA
12 for payment of third party expenses. Do you see that?
13 A. | doseethat.
14 Q. Did you authorize the Brewer firm to pay
15 Neligan in December of 2020?

16 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
17 Go ahead.
18  A. | knew that the trust account was going to be

19 used to -- in terms of mattersinvolving the

20 reorganization, but | did not -- and that would be

21 managed by the Brewer firm, that trust account, but |

22 don't -- | don't think | was -- | don't think | was

23 aware of that payment at that point.

24 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) To your knowledge, did the

25 Brewer firm have the authority to retain outside counsel
Page 259

1 met them and we hadn't interviewed them until then.
2 Q. Doyouknow if there was aretainer agreement
3 between the NRA and the Neligan firm before January of
4 20212
5 A. ldon't.
6 Q. Who hasto sign off at the NRA to retain
7 outside counsel?
8 A. Thegeneral counsel would. Thetreasurer
9 would. | don't know whether in this particular
10 instance, where we had atrust set aside for the Brewer
11 firm to retain people, that -- that it would be
12 necessary in terms of reorganization. It required
13 confidentiality. | don't know whether that would --
14 would come under an exception to that.
15 | mean, the trust fund was set up so the
16 Brewer firm could retain certain peoplein regard to the
17 reorganization. That was the purpose of it.
18 Q. Sowhen you gave $5 million to the Brewer firm
19 for trust account, what were the terms of the payment to
20 thetrust account?

21 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
22 Go ahead.
23 A. That the Brewer firm | know would keep an

24 accounting of it that would be available for the NRA

25 to -- it would be disclosed to the NRA.
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1 Q. (BY MR. SHEEHAN) Wasthere complete
2 discretion on the Brewer firm to spend the money in the
3 trust account on whatever they believed was appropriate?
4 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
5 A. Ithink the Brewer firm had -- had discretion
6 intermsof -- in terms of managing thisissue, in terms
7 of to retain peoplein regard to the reorganization
8 and --
9 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) Who --
10 A. --inaconfidentia way.
11 Q. Confidentia from whom?
12 A. Wadll, confidential becauseit -- obviously, we
13 did not want any of thisleaked, so this seemed to be a
14 way to -- to facilitate the purpose of the objective of
15 setting aside some dollars so that it would be available
16 for retention of people, if needed, on areorganization
17 and in aconfidential way.
18 Q. Soyougave-- you, the NRA, gave complete
19 discretion to the Brewer firm to decide how to spend
20 that $5 million in the trust account. |sthat accurate?

21 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form of the
22 question.
23  A. No. They would -- they agreed to keep track

24 and provide -- provide accounting of it in terms of

1 MR. CORRELL: ThisisKent Correll.
2 Objection to the form.
3 A. I'mnot aware of -- it would be people needed
4 toline up ateam in terms of a reorganization, whether
5 it was the restructuring officer, whether it was --
6 whatever team needed to be put together in terms of
7 resources, they -- that fund was set aside to be used to
8 help retain that team.
9 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) Understood, but did you ever
10 get areport from the Brewer firm describing what
11 expenditures were made out of that escrow account, that
12 trust account until today?
13 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form.
14 MR. CORRELL: Yeah, and thisis Kent
15 Correll. | think you're beginning to go get into an
16 areawhere you're asking for communications between --
17 MR. SHEEHAN: I'm asking for the hills,
18 but if that's an objection, please put the objection on
19 the record.
20 MR. CORRELL: Theobjectionisthat I'm
21 cautioning you that you're asking questions that appear
22 to bedesigned to --
23 MR. SHEEHAN: Thisisaspeaking
24 objection. Please make your objection for the record.

25 where the money -- where the money ended up being spent.| 25 MR. CORRELL: You're now interrupting me.
Page 262 Page 264
1 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) So | understand -- | 1 MR. SHEEHAN: Because you're not
2 understand that they would report back to you once they 2 participating appropriately.
3 had spent it, but before they spent the money that was 3 MR. CORRELL: | amacounsel. You have
4 inthetrust account, did they have to get approval from 4 tolet me speak, sir.
5 anybody at the NRA? 5 My concern is that you are attempting to

6 A. Ithink they had -- they had a significant
7 amount of trust placed in them that they would take the
8 appropriate steps to retain the people that were needed
9 in terms of the reorganization.
10 Q. Soisitfair to say, Mr. LaPierre, that you
11 and your special litigation committee delegated to an
12 outside organization the ability to spend $5 millionin
13 charitable funds, period -- question mark?

14 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
15 question.
16 A. We--wesetaside5 millioninatrust to be

17 used in -- NRA did -- in regard to reorganization

18 matters that was managed by the reorganization firm,

19 that's correct.

20 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) When did you find out that
21 the Neligan firm got $350,000 in December 20207

22 A. Youjust showed it to meright here,

23 Mr. Sheehan.

24 Q. Allright. What else did the Brewer firm

25 spend money on out of that trust account?
Page 263

6 invade aprivilege, and | am trying to ascertain how far
7 you intend to go with thisline of questioning. Now if
8 you can please tell me how far you intend to go, | can
9 make an assessment as to whether or not to direct my
10 client not to answer any further questions. Please.
11 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) Mr. LaPierre, when did you
12 give an accounting, if ever, from the Brewer firm
13 concerning the money that was spent from the trust
14 account of $5 million that you authorized for them?
15 MR. CORRELL: | am going to object on the
16 grounds that your question appears to be designed to
17 ©licit confidential, attorney/client communications.
18 And | am going to instruct the witness not to answer to
19 the extent that his answer would require him to revea
20 any strategy -- any legal strategy or any legal advice
21 hewas seeking or obtaining from Brewer -- the Brewer
22 firm.
23 Q. (BY MR. SHEEHAN) Mr. LaPierre?
24 MR. CORRELL: If you can answer the

25 question without revealing any communications regarding
Page 265
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strategy, then please go ahead.

A. Waéll, | have not -- | have not received an
accounting of funds spent out of that -- that trust
fund.

Q. (BY MR. SHEEHAN) Thank you, Mr. LaPierre.

Has anybody €lse, to your knowledge, at the
NRA received an accounting of the funds spent out
trust fund?
A. | don't know whether Mr. Frazer has or

of the

Mr. Spray has. | mean, Mr. Frazer is the one that would
receive all the Brewer hills, and | don't know whether

he has or not, Mr. Sheehan.
Q. Thank you, Mr. LaPierre.
A. Yes, sir.
MR. SHEEHAN: Could we go just off th
record -- not off the record.
Q. (BY MR. SHEEHAN) Mr. LaPierre, were
up Exhibit 8.
(Exhibit 8 marked.)
Q. (BY MR. SHEEHAN) Do you havethat?
MR. GARMAN: It'sstill refreshing. We
haveit.
Q. (BY MR. SHEEHAN) Mr. LaPierre, could
identify Exhibit 8, please?
A. WHdll, | -- | wasn'tintheroom, so | am

e

pulling

you

Page 266

1 determine what the scope of authority of the special
2 litigation committee was before the January board
3 meeting?
4 MR. GARMAN: Object to the form of the
5 question.
6 A. Whatl wasadvised by -- by --
7 MR. GARMAN: Whoa. Whoa. Okay. If
8 you're about to say counsel, | am going to object and
9 instruct you not to revea the contents of your
10 communications with your attorneys.
11 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) Let'sgo back and try to do
12 that without the counsel issue.
13 Y ou had an understanding, am | correct, that
14 the special litigation committee was to oversee the
15 litigation with the attorney general's office. Isthat
16 correct?
17 A. Yes, dir, because John Frazer was named as a
18 defendant, | was named as a defendant; therefore, we
19 could no longer manage the litigation. So the special
20 litigation committee was created to manage the
21 litigation working with the attorneys.
22 Q. Okay. Now it describesin the -- in this
23 document, which you can't identify whether it is, in
24 fact, aresolution of the NRA -- right? You can't --

25 sitting here today, you can't tell me whether thisis,
Page 268
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16

18
19
20

22
23
24
25

speculating on this, but --

MR. GARMAN: [ don't think there'sa
question pending.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

Q. (BY MR. SHEEHAN) Mr. LaPierre, canyou

identify Exhibit 8?

A. It appearsto be aresolution of the board of
directors making -- making the special litigation
committee an official committee of the board of
directors.

Q. Do you know if the board passed this
resolution?

A. | --1wasnotin that session, Mr. Sheehan,

formally made the special litigation committee an
powers of the board.

Q. Canyou tell from looking at this document
whether thisis the resolution which was passed in

20207
A. I'mnot sure because | -- | was not in the
room when this was passed, so I'm not sure.

14 when thiswastaken up. | believe they did. Tothe
15 best of my knowledge, at that January meeting the board

17 officia committee of the board of directors with the

21 January or isit something from earlier in the year in

Q. How did you, asthe executive VP of the NRA,

Page 267

1 infact, aresolution of the NRA board?
2 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
3 A. Yes. Yes, dir, that's correct.
4 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) Okay. But it talksabout in
5 this document that there's a determination that
6 Mr. Charles Cotton was independent, is that correct,
7 from this document?
8 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
9 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) Look at the third paragraph.
10 It says each of whom has been determined to be
11 independent.
12 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
13 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) Do you seethat line?
14  A. Yes | doseethat. Each of whom has been
15 determined to be independent and disinterested in all
16 relevant aspects of their service -- yes, | see that.
17 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) Did -- to your knowledge,
18 did the NRA ever make a determination that Carolyn
19 Meadows, Charles Cotton and Willes Lee were independent
20 and disinterested in all respects relevant to their
21 service on the special litigation committee?
22 MR. GARMAN: Objection, go ahead.
23  A. | believethey made that determination, and
24 that's why they were designated to be on the special

25 litigation committee, is they were independent.
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1 Q. (BY MR. SHEEHAN) Who of -- who on the NRA

2 made that determination that they were independent?

3 A. Wadll, they werethe -- they were the

4 officers -- the three officers of the association. And

5 when it was -- | think it naturally flowed to them, and

6 | think they had discussions probably with -- with our

7 counsels, and | know that | was -- | was aware of the

8 fact that they were going to be the special litigation

9 committee as officers.
10 Q. Okay. With respect to the -- and again, you
11 don't know where this document came from or what it's
12 authority is, but wasit your understanding that the
13 special litigation committee was to exercise corporate
14 authority on behalf of the NRA with respect to the
15 attorney general's case against the NRA and the District
16 of Columbia case against the NRA?

17 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
18 question.
19 A. Yes. |--1 could not supervise that

20 legidation (sic). John Frazer could no longer

21 supervise that legislation or be involved in any of the
22 management of it. And it wasturned over to the special
23 litigation committee to work with the -- with legal

24 counsel in terms of the management of that litigation.

25 And | have not been on, nor has John Frazer been on, any
Page 270

1 which waskind of viewed as -- as -- | guess part of the

2 flow of what was happening in New Y ork, but it was also
3 part of adifferent future to facilitate a merger into a

4 place with amore favorable legal and where NRA could be
5 treated morefairly. So they decided that -- | mean,

6 that my office needed to be involved with that.

7 Q. Inyour view, Mr. LaPierre, did the special

8 litigation committee have responsibility for overseeing

9 the decision to file this bankruptcy proceeding?

10 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
11 question.
12 A. Wadll, the decision to file was made by -- |

13 made it in consultation with -- with the SLC and in

14 terms of the actual decision, let's go, let's do this.

15 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) Did you -- in your opinion,
16 though, was the -- was this subject in which the special
17 litigation committee as a special litigation committee
18 had responsibility for making decisions?

19 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
20 question, callsfor alegal conclusion.

21 A. |think they had a-- | clearly think they had

22 aroleinit, and | clearly think | had aroleinitin

23 terms of my -- my role at the NRA. It was -- it was

24 that significant of a matter.

25 MR. SHEEHAN: Jon, could you pull up the
Page 272

1 of the phone calls or discussions since that -- since it
2 wasformed.
3 Q. (BY MR. SHEEHAN) Okay. Andyou'l seethe
4 next -- on Roman numeral iv, it aso includes any
5 additional legal proceedings arising from the same
6 facts, circumstances or allegations as the foregoing,
7 wherein the potential for an actual or apparent conflict
8 of interest favors recusal by one or more NRA
9 executives.
10 So in your opinion, does the bankruptcy
11 raise, does the bankruptcy filing by the NRA, an
12 additional legal proceeding arising from the same facts,
13 circumstances, or allegations as the two attorney
14 general suits?

15 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form. That's
16 the ultimate legal question for this case.

17 Q. (BY MR. SHEEHAN) Mr. LaPierre?

18 A. I'mlookingat it. | just-- as-- I'm not an

19 attorney. | just-- as| said before, | mean, John

20 Frazer stepped aside in terms of dealing with -- with
21 the special litigation committee in regards to the

22 Chapter 11. It wasfelt because of my position that on
23 that specific issue, the -- the executive vice

24 president's office needed to be -- needed to be involved

25 in that specific matter in terms of the Chapter 11,
Page 271

1 next exhibit, please?

2 A. Becausethe board had delegated me at the

3 board meeting, the -- to my office, the authority to

4 reorganize, which is where the delegation cameto -- to

5 have meinvolved in it in terms of the executive VP's

6 office.

7 As| said, if they had not delegated that

8 authority at that board meeting, | don't think | would

9 have -- | would have proceeded with this. | don't know
10 whether the SLC on its own would have proceeded or not,
11 but | would not have had not they made that delegation
12 of authority.

13 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) At this point can we pull up
14 Exhibit 9?

15 (Exhibit 9 marked.)

16 MR. GARMAN: We haveit.

17 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) All right. Mr. LaPierre,

18 can you identify Exhibit 9, please?

19 A. I'msorry. Werelooking at it, Mr. Sheehan.
20 Q. Okay. Can you identify the document, please?
21 A. Yeah, it isthe document for filing

22 bankruptcy.

23 Q. Andit'saso aresolution on the board of

24 directors of the NRA?

25 MR. GARMAN: He hasn't looked at the
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1 entire document. Give us a second.
2 A. No, | -- yeah, that's the resolution -- yes,
3 dir, that's the resol ution that the board passed
4 delegating to the executive vice president office the
5 authority to reorganize the -- the association, and
6 that's the authority under which my office anyway
7 operated in terms of filing the bankruptcy petition
8 along with the SLC.
9 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) All right. Soisthis
10 document, Exhibit 9, isthis aresolution of the board
11 of directors?
12 MR. GARMAN: Take your time and read the
13 document to the extent you need to.
14  A. Yesh, | believethat isthe resolution of the
15 board of directors that they passed.
16 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) And if you look down, you'll
17 seethat it cites -- when you say thisis aresolution
18 they passed, are you just talking about the fourth
19 whereas clause or are you talking about the entire
20 document?
21 A. I'mtalking about the whereas clause. Asl
22 said, | wasn't in the room when they -- when they passed
23 this or when the discussions occurred. It -- | know
24 that they passed the contract we talked about yesterday,

25 and then they passed the resolution delegating to the
Page 274

1 take afive-minute break.
2 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: Off therecord, the
3 timeonthevideois9:45am.
4 (Break from 9:45 am. to 9:51 am.)
5 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We're back on the
6 record. Thetime onthevideois9:51am.
7 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) All right. Mr. LaPierre,
8 when we broke, you were looking at the resolution
9 authorizing Chapter 11 reorganization and related
10 retention of counsel. And do you have that document in
11 front of you now?

12 A. Ido.
13 Q. Doyou know who wrote this document?
14  A. | --1assumeit waswritten either by

15 bankruptcy counsel or by -- by legal counsel from the --
16 from the Brewer firm.

17 MR. GARMAN: I'm going to instruct you

18 not to speculate if you don't know the answer.

19  A. Idon't know specifically who wroteit.

20 Q. (BY MR. SHEEHAN) Whose resolution isit?
21 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.

22 A. Itlooks--it--itlooksto be afiling of

23 the bankruptcy proposal, but it contains language from a

24 resolution passed by our board of directors, but then |

25 believe it contains additional language that was
Page 276

1 executive VP's office the ability to reorganize the
2 association.

3 Q So--
4 A. Andl believethat --
5 Q. Soyou believe this entire Exhibit 9 -- and |

6 want to be clear here. You believe that Exhibit 9in
7 itsentirety was approved by the board of directors of
8 the NRA?
9 A. Wdl, I --again, | was-- | know that what
10 the board of directors passed was a specific resolution
11 authorizing the EV P the authority to reorganize the
12 association, and | know the board passed a resolution
13 making the special litigation committee an official
14 committee of the board of directors with the power of
15 the board of directors.

16 Q. Sowhenl look at Exhibit 9, whose resolution
17 isit, the entirety of the document?

18 A. Theentirety of the document? It --

19 MR. GARMAN: Take sometimeto look at
20 this.

21 Counsel, he hasn't read the entire document

22 yet, so we're going to take the time to have him read
23 the whole thing.
24 MR. SHEEHAN: Let's go off the record anc

25 let him read the document and then come back. Let's
Page 275

inserted in there also by -- by counsel.
Q. (BY MR. SHEEHAN) | am looking at the page 5
of 16, which is the exhibit here, and page 6. And then
it says -- if you look at the bottom of the page,
Mr. LaPierre, that | have it says -- can you seeit?
MR. GARMAN: Which page, 5 or 6?
MR. SHEEHAN: 5.
Q. (BY MR. SHEEHAN) And you see at the bottom
that it says "Now, therefore, be it"?
MR. GARMAN: No, that's not on page 5.
MR. SHEEHAN: Jonathan, what do you

© 00N O WN PR

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

think?

Q. (BY MR. SHEEHAN) Mr. LaPierre, do you seethe
resolution authorizing Chapter 11 reorganization related
retention of counsdl, first page?

A. Theresolution authorizing retention of
counsel on thefirst page? Yes, | do seethat.

Q. Resolution authorizing Chapter 11
reorganization --

20  A. Yes s, | seeit.

21 Q. Okay. Look at the very bottom of that page.
22 Do you see what the last lineis?

23 A. ldo. | doseethat line.

124 Q. Andit says-- it says would advance the best

25 interest -- let me go back a second.
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1 It says "Now, therefore, beit." Do you see
2 that?
3 A. Yes, | doseeit.
4 Q. Okay. And then the next page on the version
5 that | haveisblank. Isit blank on your version, too?
6 MR. GARMAN: No, it isnot blank.
7 A. No,anditgoeson. Resolved that
8 commencement of a Chapter 11 reorganization proceeding
9 inthe United States --
10 (Reporter clarification.)
11  A. There'sadditional three paragraphs that go
12 on.
13 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) Were the three paragraphsin

14 the document before you signed it?

15 MR. GARMAN: Sorry, Counsel, you were
16 muted for half that question.

17 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) Okay. Mr. LaPierre, the
18 document that you signed, did it include those three

19 revolved paragraphs?

20 A. Ibdieveitdid.

21 Q. If youlook at the next page after the

22 resolution authorizing Chapter 11 reorganization, the
23 onethat | have with your signature on it does not have

put together by the -- by the attorneys that prepared
the document for the filing.

Q. Sotherewas no -- was there any formal
resolution with respect to the commencement of the
Chapter 11 reorganization or retaining Neligan or
retaining Brewer?

MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
question.

A. | know there was a meeting that we had in
Dallas with the Neligan firm in terms of retaining them,
and | know that we had humerous discussions with the
special litigation committee in terms of doing all of
this. | -- | don't know whether there was aformal
resolution in terms of -- | mean, | -- this one right
hereis signed by me; it's not signed by Carolyn
Meadows, Charles Cotton.

MR. GARMAN: No, no, no, no, Sir --
MR. SHEEHAN: If | could, Mr. -- (audio
unclear.)

A. Yeah, they signedit. So that would -- that
would substantiate my recollection that the -- al -- we
had all of usdiscussthat all of usagreedto doit,
and we did -- we made the decision to do it together.

24 thosethreeresolutions. Isthat -- isthat accurate? 24 Q. (BY MR. SHEEHAN) Asthe committee of the
25 MR. GARMAN: No. The exhibit you putin 25 board, does the specid litigation committee keep
Page 278 Page 280
1 front of him does. 1 minutes of its activities?
2 MR. SHEEHAN: Okay. 2 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
3 MR. GARMAN: And Counsdl, I'll point out 3 question.
4 for therecord, it's the file stamped version from the 4 A. | honestly am not sure of that because |
5 Court's docket. 5 haven't been involved with -- you'd have to -- you'd
6 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) All right. When it says 6 have to ask them, Mr. Sheehan.
7 resolved, isthat resolution -- the three "resolves' 7 Q. (BY MR. SHEEHAN) Isthere anyone who staffs
8 that are on that page after your signature page, are 8 the activities of the special litigation committee who
9 they the resolutions of the special litigation committee 9 isan employee of the NRA?
10 or you or both? 10 A. Isthereanyone staff that is an employee of
11 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the 11 the specidl litigation committee with --
12 question. Counsel, they're before his signature, not 12 Q. No, let metry again.
13 after. 13 Isthere anyone who is an employee of the NRA
14 MR. SHEEHAN: Okay. So my co-counsel 14 who staffs the work of the special litigation committee?
15 tells me that the printer missorted the pages, so thank 15 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
16 you for that. 16 Go ahead.
17 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) But if you look at thethree | 17  A. Not -- not specifically. | think -- | think
18 "resolves" in this document -- 18 Vanessa Shahidi has worked in terms of facilitating some
19 A. Yes 19 of the matters from the attorneys, at least one of the
20 Q. Whoseresolutions were those? 20 matters with the attorneys with the special litigation
21 A. | think they were resolutions, the way the 21 committee. | am not aware of anyone else that staffs

22 wording was, in terms of the filing for the bankruptcy.
23 Those were not resolutions of our board of directors.
24 Q. Okay. Sowho resolved -- I'm sorry, go ahead.

25 A. | smply believeit's the way the wording was
Page 279

22
23
24
25

the -- | know Andrew Arulanandam in our -- head of our
public affairs, works with the special litigation
committee in terms of some communication matters.

Q. (BY MR. SHEEHAN) In generd, the corporate
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1 secretary is responsible for maintaining the books and
2 records of the corporation with respect to minutes.

3 Correct?

4  A. That would be correct.

5 Q. Butinthiscase, he was recused from the

6 speciadl litigation committee activities by the

7 resolution of the board of directors. Correct?

8 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
9 question.
10 A. Wadll, by -- by himself, who -- because of the

11 legal situation, took him out of -- he took himself out

12 of issuesinvolving the special litigation committee.

13 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) So was there somebody else
14 inthe -- in the corporate secretary or corporate

15 counsel's office who had the responsibility of

16 determining what minutes should be kept and where they
17 would be kept?

1 A. Therewere-- aswe've discussed before, there
2 were, | think, two or three or four staff people there,
3 and there was -- and there was a cook.
4 Q. (BY MR. SHEEHAN) And was the boat when you
5 received -- the ship when you received use of it, was it
6 fully stocked with fuel and food?
7 MR. CORRELL: ThisisKent Correll.
8 Objection to the form.
9 A. Yes | believeit had fuel onitand | believe
10 it had food.
11 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) And did it come with four en
12 suite staterooms?
13  A. Itdid comewith severa staterooms.
14 Q. Anddidit comewith ahydraulic
15 state-of-the-art swim platform?
16 A. I'mnot sure exactly what a state-of-the-art
17 hydraulic swim platform is, but it -- it may have,

18 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form. 18 depending on what that term means.
19 Go ahead and answer. 19 Q. Okay. Didit comewith a16-foot jet boat?
20  A. Idon't know the answer to that. You would 20 A. Occasionaly therewas a-- was ajet boat
21 need to ask the specid litigation committee if they 21 there.
22 worked with anyone on minutes. | simply don't know the |22 Q. Didyou have use of the jet boat?
23 answer. 23  A. Occasiondly, yes.
24 Q. (BY MR. SHEEHAN) Okay. 24 Q. Didit comewith two Sea-Doo WaveRunners?
25 MR. SHEEHAN: Could we go to the next 25 A. Yes, there were two WaveRunners on that boat.
Page 282 Page 284
1 exhibit, please, Jonathan? 1 Q. Okay. The-- before accepting the use of this
2 (Exhibit 10 marked.) 2 boat for aweek at atime, did you advise Mr. Frazer
3 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) Okay. | show you 3 that you intended to do so?
4 Exhibit 10, Mr. LaPierre. Have you ever seen Exhibit 10 4  A. ldon'tthink I did. | did not -- as| said,
5 before? 5 at this point | was under all kinds of threats. | did
6 MR. GARMAN: Hold on. It hadn't shown up 6 not feel safe anywhere with myself or my family. |
7 until we hit refresh. 7 was -- thiswas offered as a security retreat where we
8 Okay. We have Exhibit 10. 8 could be safe and feel safe, and | could get Susan and
9 Q. (BY MR. SHEEHAN) Do you recognize-- I'm 9 Colleen, who works for WLF, together and do some work
10 sorry. 10 and do some other work, and | used it as a security
11 MR. GARMAN: He'sreviewing it. 11 retreat.
12 Go ahead. 12 Q. Didyou offer to the Stanton McKenzies to pay
13 MR. SHEEHAN: Okay. 13 for the use of the ship?
14  A. Yes, | recognize that. 14  A. No, | didnot. They -- they simply let me use
15 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) Okay. What isthat ship? | 15 it asa security retreat because they knew the threat
16 A. Thatisaboat owned by -- | believeit's 16 that | wasunder. And | was basically under
17 owned by the McKenzies. 17 presidential threat without presidential security in
18 Q. Thatisthe Stanton McKenzies? 18 terms of the number of threats | was getting. And all
19  A. Yes, that would be correct. 19 of uswere struggling with how to deal with that type
20 Q. And thedescription here saysit has afull 20 situation with a private citizen with the amount of

21 staff and crew at your disposal. When you used this
22 ship, did you have afull staff and crew at your

23 disposal?

24
25

MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.

Go ahead.
Page 283

21 threat that we were having. And this was the one -- one
22 placethat | hope could feel safe, where | remember

23 getting there going, Thank God I'm safe, nobody can get
24 me here. And that's how it happened. That'swhy | used

25 it.
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1 Q. Didthe Stanton McKenzies or other companies
2 charge the NRA for use of the yacht?

3 A. No, they did not.

4 Q. Allright. Did you consider whether

5 acceptance of the use of this ship Illusionswas a

6 potentia violation of the conflict of interest policy

7 with the NRA?

8 MR. CORRELL: ThisisKent Correll.

9 Objection to the form.

10 A. | actualy thought that given the security

threat that | was under and the fact that NRA was -- was
at almost aloss as to how to protect somebody with the
13 amount of threat that | was having, that -- that my work
14 and the threat that came with it, thiswas -- was a

15 placethat | could go and be safe, and it was related to
16 that that | -- that | -- that | did it.

17 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) Did you consider whether
18 acceptance of the use of this yacht Illusions by

19 yourself and your family was a potential violation of

20 theconflict of interest palicies of the NRA?

1 totally unique situation that | think hardly anybody

2 elseinthe US experienced that type of threat, other

3 than maybe the president. | mean, | had presidential

4 threat without presidential security and was looking for
5 aplaceto be safe.

6 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) When did Mr. Frazer first
7 learn that you had received the use of the yacht

8 lllusions from the McKenzie Stantons?

9 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
10 question.
11 A. |--1dontknow. | mean,|--1--1wasn't

12 trying to hideit, but | wasn't trying to publicize it

13 either because it was a security issue.

14 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) With respect to Mr. Frazer,
15 it was a security issue?

16 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
17 question.

18 A. No, theuse of it was a security issue.

19 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) Okay. Didyou -- did your

20 security director, the NRA security director approve

21 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the 21 your acceptance of the use of the yacht Illusions for a
22 question. 22 week?
23 MR. CORRELL: ThisisKent Correll. 23 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
24 Objection to the form. 24 question.
25 MR. GARMAN: Go ahead. 25  A. At that timethe security director | think was
Page 286 Page 288
1 A. Becauseof thethreat that | was under and 1 just telling me to get out of town, and | -- | -- you

2 because of the fact that | couldn't feel safe anywhere,
3 was being harassed and screamed at everywhere and death
4 thresats, | -- | considered it a condition of the
5 security environment that | was operating in as a result
6 of thejob that | had with the NRA, which put mein a
7 totally unique situation that | don't think hardly any
8 other American has experienced, with the possible
9 exception of someone like -- | mean, | can't describe
10 the extent of the threat that | was under at that point.

11 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) Did you --

12 A. And--

13 Q. I'msorry.

14  A. --therewere aso some stand-ups for that

15 H20stream video website. But the real -- but the major
16 reason | did this was a security retreat at atime when
17 | could not find a safe placeto go at all.

18 Q. Would you agree with me that the value of a

19 108-foot yacht with afull crew, full of supplies and

20 fuel exceeds $300?

21 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
22 Go ahead.
23  A. I|think -- | think, yes, it probably would,

24 but it was also involved with my job and the threat that

25 | was under and aplaceto be safeand -- andin a
Page 287

2 know, | found away. | was struggling and | found away
3 tobesafeand --
4 Q. (BY MR. SHEEHAN) Didyou --
5 A. --thisissomething that was part of the
6 self-correction that we have done at the NRA since, you
7 know, 2017, 2018. It has not happened in 2019, 2020,
8 and it's one of the things that -- that we have
9 self-corrected on where | -- | am not using that -- that
10 boat anymore.
11 Q. Okay. What wasyour last stay on Illusions?
12 A. | think it was sometimein 2018 after the
13 Parkland shooting in the summer.

14 Q. Whenwasyour first stay on the yacht
15 Illusions?
16  A. |think it was after the Sandy Hook shooting,

17 the summer after the Sandy Hook shooting.

18 Q. How many timesdid you go on the yacht

19 lllusionsin The Bahamas?

20  A. | probably went once -- one time ayear where
21 we could go and be safe for the -- from the Sandy Hook
22 shooting up until 2019. And | did not do it in 2019.

23 Aspart of the self-correction, that's one of the things
24 that -- that came to my attention in terms of -- | told

25 you we looked at everybody, including me, and that |
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1 have self-corrected on. 1 celebrities completely work. And | considered this one

2 Q. Didyousail ontheyacht Illusionsto 2 was a security issue with my family, with myself, and |

3 anyplace other than The Bahamas? 3 did not seethat asa-- in all honesty, as a conflict

4 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form. 4 back then. | -- with the safety and the threat issues |

5 A. No, The Bahamas. 5 was facing with the need to recruit celebrities, | --

6 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) Did you sail on any other -- | 6 and the fact that the NRA wasn't charged for it, | just

7 or did you travel on any other yachts owned by the 7 didn't seeit anissue.

8 McKenzies, the Stanton McKenzies during thetime you've | 8 Now with what we've gone through with the

9 been NRA president and executive VP? 9 2018, 2019, 2020 with the compliance grids and
10 A. Yes, only with -- only in relation to work and 10 everything else, thisis one of the things that -- one
11 inrelation to celebrities. 11 of the precautions | took that | -- in terms of my
12 Q. Andso-- 12 safety that | would not do, given the self-correction
13 A. Asl--asl testified before, | would try to 13 that we've done.
14 recruit celebritiesto the NRA. Associated Television 14 MR. SHEEHAN: Okay. At this point, let's
15 was one of our access points into celebrities, young and 15 take afive-minute bresk.
16 old. They worked with alot of the former Disney stars, 16 MR. GARMAN: Okay.
17 young people, and also people like -- well, | don't know 17 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We're going off the
18 whether | should say their names. A lot of other 18 record. Thetime onthevideois10:17 am.
19 celebrities. And those other trips | did with 19 (Break from 10:17 am. to 10:32 am.)
20 celebrities. 20 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We're back on the
21 Q. What other trips-- how many other trips did 21 record. Thetimeonthevideois10:32 am.
22 you take on boats owned by the Stanton McKenziesbesides| 22 Q. (BY MR. SHEEHAN) Good morning again,
23 theyacht lllusions? 23 Mr. LaPierre.
24 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form. 24 A. Good morning.
25 Go ahead. 25 Q. Let'sgo back for asecond to Mr. Staples.

Page 290 Page 292

1 A. Maybe-- maybethree or -- three or four with 1 When you went to The Bahamas, did he do any

2 celebrities. 2 review of the safety or security of the yacht Illusions

3 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) Where were those trips 3 before you used it for the first time?

4 located? 4  A. |dontthink hedid.

5 A. Most of them werein -- in Europe, and | think 5 Q. Didhedo any security check on the employees

6 one of them was to Greece. 6 who were on the yacht Illusions before you went on it

7 Q. Didyousign off -- 7 thefirst time?

8 A. With-- 8 A. Idon'tbeievehedid.

9 Q. I'msorry, Mr. LaPierre. | interrupted you. 9 Q. Did hethereafter, in any of your following
10 A. Withceléebrities. 10 tripsto the yacht lllusions, do any background checks
11 Q. Anddidyou sign off on contracts with 11 on any of the people who would be on the boat with you?
12 companies owned by the Stanton McKenzies after you went| 12 A. | don't -- | don't think he did.
13 onyour fist trip on the lllusions? 13 Q. When you talked about meeting celebrities at
14 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form. 14 the Super Bow! or Eleuthera or Europe, did Mr. Staples
15 A. | wasn'tinvolved in negotiating the 15 or staff or a contractor do any background checks on any
16 contracts. | stayed out of all that. | did sign some 16 of those celebrities that you met with to make sure that
17 of the extensions of the -- the contracts. 17 they were not someone who would pose a threat to you?
18 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) Did you consult with 18  A. No, hedidnt, but they were -- | mean, as|
19 Mr. Frazer, as the head of -- the head of conflicts of 19 said, part of my job -- my job has many facets. | have
20 interest, to determine whether you could, in fact, sign 20 to raise $300 million to $400 million ayear for this
21 those contracts or extensions after you had gone on the 21 association. | am the outfacing brand of the
22 yacht lllusions? 22 association, doing all the television appearances. | am
23 MR. CORRELL: ThisisKent Correll. 23 doing -- putting the networks together to reach al the
24 Objection to form. 24 cultura touchpoints, whether it be the NFL, whether it
25  A. 1did not because | considered the ones with 25 be NASCAR, whether it be celebrities that influence
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1 American society, to keep NRA in the mainstream.
2 | am also working on raising al the money,
3 working on direct mail and working on all of that, as
4 well as, you know, working with the day-to-day
5 management of the association in terms of -- | mean, |
6 do everything | can to put -- build this association and
7 to do what'sin the best interest of this association in
8 terms of making it strong and servicing our 5 million
9 membersthat -- that we work for.
10 And | mean, with those responsibilities
11 that I've had to undertake, there has come alot of
12 tremendous burdens that |'ve had to deal with, and I've
13 dealt with them. And | haven't whined about them, but
14 they've been extraordinary and unique, and | have done
15 thebest job | could wrestling with it all.
16 And | think I -- I'm very proud of the work
17 I've done with the NRA. | think our members are.
18 That'swhy we're still at 5 million members, and that's
19 why we're -- we're strong financially. And it'swhy the
20 NRA has been able to win consistently from alegislative
21 standpoint for the last couple of decades, iswhat --
22 it'sal amosaic and | am the glue that kind of tries
23 to hold that -- and piece that whole mosaic together.
24 Q. If I could, Mr. LaPierre, my question was does

25 Mr. Staples do any background check on the celebrities
Page 294

question.

A. Wadll, the Brewer firm has been retained to
handle litigation matters under the management now of
the SLC, so they -- they -- they make litigation matter
suggestions.

Q. (BY MR. SHEEHAN) I'm sorry. They make
litigation matter suggestions. And who has the ultimate
decision-making on those suggestions?

A. They discuss them with the -- with the SLC.

Q. Apart from litigation decisions and financial
decisions, are there any areas where the NRA has
delegated to the Brewer firm decision-making authority?

MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
14 A. Not that | know of. | mean, they areinvolved
15 inal litigation matters. They have been involved
16 aso -- but the litigation matters with New Y ork state
17 cover abroad scope in terms of what we've had to deal
18 with since the -- I'm not trying to pin you personaly,
19 Mr. Sheehan, but in terms of what we've had to deal with
20 from the Department of Financial Services and the
21 governor and the attorney general and -- and her
22 matters, it's a broad scope.
23 It also involved running down any
24 whistleblower complaints that could be an issuein this

25 litigation, to make sure that they were fully protected
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1 that you meet with?
2 A. No. I mean, | don't--1don't--1don't
3 tell him I'm going to meet with this certain celebrity
4 and he needs to do a background check on the celebrity.
5 Q. Okay. With respect to the Brewer firm, has
6 the NRA delegated decision-making authority to the
7 Brewer firm on expenditure of funds by the NRA?
8 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
9 A. The--the NRA has put aside money in atrust
10 to be used by the Brewer firm. | believe that, as|
11 said, that the terms are an accounting will be provided
12 to the -- to the -- | think that accounting is provided
13 tothe SLC, and | think it's also to be provided to me
14 asthe-- to my office asto -- asto how those -- asto
15 how those funds are spent.
16 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) And did you tell -- hasthat
17 accounting been provided yet with respect to the
18 $5 million fund?
19  A. | think the accounting has been provided in a
20 couple of instances. They've used money to explore
21 aternatives, reorganization alternatives.
22 Q. Apartfrom financia decisions, are there any
23 other decisions of the NRA that the NRA has delegated to
24 the Brewer firm to make on behalf of the NRA?

25 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
Page 295

1 and fully checked out and fully investigated; and if

2 there was anything there, to get to the bottom of it.

3 | mean, the Brewer firm has been retained to

4 work litigation issues, but part of the litigation also

5 involves bringing the NRA into 100 percent

6 self-correction and compliance, every employee,

7 including myself, and every vendor with New Y ork state
8 not-for-profit law and every other not-for-profit law.

9 And we've done, as | said, a massive amount of
work for that that's continuing in 2018, 2019 and 2020
and 2021, which we are very proud of. And we have
learned alot, and we have adjusted, and we now operate
under acompletely different compliance grid. There are
checks in place to make sure no one can override those
compliance controls, and -- and we're very proud of the
16 work that's been done.

17 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) So --

18 A. | don't understand why thereis such alack of

19 recognition of that out of the New York AG's Officein
20 terms of all the good work that's been done here to --

21 to put the organization into complete self-compliance.
22 And this started long before the attorney general's

23 investigation even started.

24 Q. Doesthe Carry Guard program still exist?

25  A. ltdoesnot. It-- wearedtill providing

10
11
12
13
14
15
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1 persond protection insurance with Lockton. It is not

2 caled Carry Guard. Asaresult of what we believe was
3 an unfair targeting by the Department of Financial
Services as part of this plan to weaponize the
government of New Y ork state, Maria VVullo, and her
Department of Financial Services put out notices to
banks and insurance companies and others that it was a
risk factor doing business with the NRA and not wise
and then, from what we understand, had back channel
10 communication and -- which we believe was clearly a
11 viewpoint discrimination. It was clearly aviolation of
12 this organization's constitutional rights, and we have

13 filed First Amendment cases against both the New Y ork
14 Department of Financial Services and the New Y ork

15 Attorney General with the support of the American Civil
16 Liberties Union, who agrees with us that what is going
17 onisnot proper under the Constitution of the United

18 States.

19 And so | mean, we're-- as| said, when |

20 started down this path in 2017, | wasn't alawyer, I'm
21 not aCPA, I'm not an accountant. But when Attorney
22 General Schneiderman told usthat, | was determined to
23 do whatever this organization needed to do to take a

24 look at everything, every employee. If we needed to

25 self-correct, self-correct. If -- asyou heard me say
Page 298
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1 A. March14th?

2 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.

3 Go ahead.

4 Q. (BY MR. SHEEHAN) The meeting was not actually
5 held, but it was scheduled for March 14th. Did you

6 travel to Dallas for the March 14th meeting?

7 A. Theonethat was canceled, no, | did not.

8 Q. Okay. Areyou traveling to Dallas for the

9 meeting on Sunday, the 28th?

10  A. I will be.

11 Q. Okay. Andwho -- how are you going to get to
12 Dallas?

13  A. Thesecurity is setting up private

14 transportation, and | will take -- take probably a board
15 member and some staff people with me.

16 Q. Okay. Isthere an agendafor the March 28
17 meeting?
18 A. | havenot seen an agenda. | know the notice

19 talked about a-- that went out publicly talked about a
20 legal briefing, and | haven't seen an agenda beyond
21 that.

22 Q. Isit customary to get agendas in advance for
23 the board meetings at the NRA?

1 before, if | lost every friend | ever made, that's the
2 path we were going down because it was the right course
3 for the organization.
4 Q. Soletmeask you, Mr. LaPierre. Did you know
5 that Michael Marcellin had a contract with the Lockton
6 Affinity people at the time that he was managing some
7 relationships with Lockton Affinity at the NRA?
8 A. Ididnot. | knew nothing about that.
9 Q. His--did heget aconsulting contract when

10 heleft the NRA?

11 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
12 Go ahead.
13  A. | knew nothing about that. | now believe,

14 based on information that's come to light, he did, but |

15 knew nothing about it at all.

16 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) So you knew nothing about
17 the -- his contract with Lockton Affinity. Correct?

18  A. | knew nothing about his contract with Lockton
19 Affinity.
20 Q. Didyou know anything about his contract at

21 the end of his employment for consulting services?

22 A. ldidnot.

23 Q. Okay. With respect to the meeting that was

24 scheduled for March 14th, did you travel to Dallasto go

25 to that meeting?
Page 299

24 A. Foraregular full board meeting, there are
25 agendas in advance that are given out, that's correct.
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1 Q. Doyouknow if there's been a board book
2 distributed with respect to the March 28 meeting?
3 A. Idonot.
4 Q. Who'sresponsible for preparing board books or
5 board materials for board meetings at the NRA?
6 A. The secretary, Mr. Frazer.
7 Q. Okay. Andto the best of your knowledge, he's
8 not prepared a board book for the March 28 meeting?
9 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
10 Go ahead.
11 A. I haventseenitif hehas.
12 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) Okay. Do you planto ask
13 the board to ratify the filing of this bankruptcy case?
14 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
15 question.
16 | instruct you not to answer to the extent
17 that invades the attorney/client privilege and/or
18 strategy.
19  A. I'mnot-- I'm not sure what the strategy is

20 interms of the board and what they plan to do on that.
21 Q. (BY MR. SHEEHAN) Have you discussed with
22 anyone elsein the -- on the board or the specia

23 litigation committee whether the meeting will discuss
24 theissue of ratification of the bankruptcy filing?

25 MR. GARMAN: Objection. | object to the
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1 question.

2 | instruct you not to answer. That invades

3 the attorney/client privilege.

4 THE WITNESS: Okay.

5 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) Okay. | am not asking you

6 about Mr. Brewer. | am asking you about the three

7 members of the special litigation committee.

8 MR. GARMAN: | understand.

9 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) Have you discussed -- have
10 you had discussions with members -- I'm sorry.
11 MR. GARMAN: I'm sorry, Counsel. Go
12 ahead. | was apologizing for interrupting you.
13 MR. SHEEHAN: Okay. Okay.
14 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) Have you discussed with
15 members of the special litigation committee whether the
16 subject of ratification should be discussed at the March
17 28 meeting?
18 MR. GARMAN: | instruct you not to answer
19 to the extent those communicationsincluded your legal
20 counsel.
21 MR. CORRELL: ThisisKent Correll. I'm
22 aso -- | object to the form of the question --
23 (Reporter clarification.)
24 MR. CORRELL: ThisisKent Correll. |

25 object to the form of the question, and | instruct the
Page 302

1 A. Youknow, | don't. | have not asked John

2 that. | know at the last one that we did and ended up

3 being canceled, there were 47 that were planning on

4 attending. | don't know what the number that he has on
5 thisone. | have not had a chance to talk with him.

6 Q. Areall thedirectorsflying by coach classto

7 Dallas?

8 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
9 question.

10 A. Asfarasl know, they are.

11 Q. (BY MR. SHEEHAN) Have you authorized any

12 board member to fly other than by coach class?

13 A. | havenot.

14 Q. Andwasthere aboard member flying down with
15 you on your private charter to the meeting on the 28th?
16 A. lintendedto. Given thefact the plane was

17 going down there, | intended to offer Willes Lee, who
18 livesin this area, a chance to ride down and one or two
19 staff people that -- given the fact the planeis going

20 there anyway, an opportunity to go down that way.

21 Q. During--

22 A. And--

23 Q. I'msorry.

24  A. Andl asointended -- intend to check with

25 counsel to see whether that's appropriate before | --
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1 witness not to answer the question to the extent that it

2 would require him to divulge conversations he had with

3 members of the SLC about litigation.

4 A. | had -- the conversations with the SLC were

5 dll conversations with attorneys that were -- | believe

6 the counsd is advising me not to talk about.

7 | had one conversation with Sandy Froman

8 where -- where we talked about it, and | told her |

9 wasn't sure whether they were or were not going to ask
10 specifically for aratification of what -- of what -- of
11 the bankruptcy. And we talked about the board in
12 general. And we talked about the fact that they should
13 beableto ask al kinds of questions and they should be
14 ableto befully filled in on everything. And it should
15 be avery open dialogue in terms of everyone and because
16 everything needed to get out in the open.
17 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) Isthe March 28 meeting, is
18 that in Dallas?

19 A. Yesitis.

20 Q. Andisitin person?

21 A. ltis

22 Q. Will people be allowed to join electronically?
23  A. |donotbelievethey will be.

24 Q. Do you know how many directors are confirmed

25 to attend on March 28 meeting?
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1 before| do that.

2 Q. Duringtheyear of -- between March 15th of

3 2020 and today, how frequently do you go into the office
4 atthe NRA?

5 A. I'vebeen here quite ahit.

6 Q. Twiceaweek, threetimes aweek?

7 A. A coupledaysaweek. Again, acoupledaysa

8 week.

9 Q. Okay.
10  A. Andthen I've been working from home a couple
11 daysaweek --
12 Q. Doyou--
13 (Reporter clarification.)
14  A. --about COVID and -- over the COVID exposure.
15 Q. (BY MR. SHEEHAN) Do you know why the decision

16 was made not to allow attendance electronically at the
17 Dallas meeting on the 28th?

18 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
19 question.
20 A. ldont, butl believeit wasin relation to

21 security concerns of somehow if they -- if they used
22 Zoom or something like that of security -- security
23 issues, dthough I'm not positive of that.

24 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) Okay.

25 MR. SHEEHAN: At thispoint | think I'm
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1 finished. | just want to go off the record and talk to

2 my colleagues for afew minutes, but | think that the
3 individual portion of Mr. LaPierre's deposition will be
4 completed at that point.

5 So let's take five minutes and then come back,
6 and then | may have one or two more questions.
7 MR. MASON: Just to clarify, theNY AG's
8 portion of the individual?
9 MR. SHEEHAN: Correct. Correct.
10 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: WEe're off the record.

11 Thetime on thevideois 10:52 am.

12 (Break from 10:52 am. to 11:01 am.)

13 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: WeEe're back on the

14 record. Thetime onthevideois11:01 am.

15 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) So Mr. LaPierre, | just have
16 one more question and then turn it over to Mr. Mason.

17 If something were to happen to you, isthere

18 anyone at the NRA that's in position to succeed you as

19 executive VP and has the training and experience?

20 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
21 question.
22 A. |think that that is -- that that is one of

23 the-- | have aconcern and | know the board of
24 directors has a concern of the fact that -- the fact

25 that | have been for 40 years the voice of our members
Page 306

it's not even my decision; it'sthe board of directors
decision. And | think whatever would happen, the board
of directors would be the one that would make the
decision after doing a search, and it would be their
decision, not mine. So | don't know that | should even
speculate, given the fact that that is entirely a

decision to be made not by me, who works for the board,
but by the board of directors. | mean, that's how | was
chosen, and that's how I've been reelected every year by
the board, and the board will make that decision. Soll
would hesitate to even throw out names, given the fact
that ultimately it's not my decision.

Q. But do you have an opinion about the young
people you mentioned before who could step into that
role? That is, who they might be?

MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
question. | think he said no one was ready.

A. There'salot of good peoplein this
organization that I'm sure the board would look at. |
mean, | could -- | could throw out names like -- but
it'snot my decision. | mean, I'm sure they would look
at Doug Hamlin. I'm sure they would look at Jason
Ouimet. I'm surethey would look at Mr. Schropp. 1I'm
sure they would look at, you know, Mr. DeBergalis. I'm

sure they would look at -- but they would also look
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1 out there on television, in terms of, you know, being

2 their voice and fighting their fight and standing up for

3 their freedoms. My fundraising signature and

4 fundraising ability helpsthe organization. And | --

5 the fact that I've been out there with the members for

6 40 yearsthat are the ultimate -- what makes this

7 association work, | think | have a unique relationship

8 with the membership in terms of -- and | think -- |

9 think one of the concerns that we're all wrestling with
10 ishow that succession will take place when it takes
11 place and how it will affect the monetary situation of
12 the NRA.
13 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) Soisthereany personin
14 your view who is currently in a position to take over
15 your position if you left?

16 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
17 question.

18 Go ahead and answer.

19 A. |--therearealot -- there are some smart

20 young people around here. | think they are growing, and
21 | have confidence that they have the potential of

22 growing into the job.

23 Q. (BY MR. SHEEHAN) Who are they?

24 A. Wadll, | don't have a specific successor picked

25 yet. I'm not so sureit -- I'm not so sureit's -- and
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probably at other can dates, and it's ultimately their
decision.
| just know that -- | think we have areally

good staff here right now, and they're doing really good
work, and | respect them al. And | wouldn't want to --
I wouldn't want to really at this point -- it's not my
decision. It'sthe board's decision. | mean, | -- |
don't know how to say it beyond that. Itisentirely

9 the board of directors decision asto who they pick to
10 succeed me should | choose to retire.
11 Q. (BY MR.SHEEHAN) Have you had discussions
12 with the board about a succession plan?
13 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
14 question.
15 Go ahead.
16  A. | know theboard is-- talks about that. |
17 know the officerstalk about that. | know they talk
18 also about the fundraising issues that -- that will
19 exist, based on the amount of money that -- | mean, a
20 lot of years -- | mean, because NRA's money comesin
21 based on whether you're out there fighting on TV and
22 whether you're out there fighting the cause and whether
23 you're out there battling.
24 And then, you know, we also have all these

25 great programs, whether they're -- | talked about them,
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1 the 130,000 safety instructors, 14,000 law enforcement
2 instructors, the child safety programs, the great
3 magazines we publish. | mean, al the work the NRA does
4 on aday-to-day basisthat's not legidlative or
5 political.
6 Andit -- itisa-- and ultimately, the 5
7 million members that elect the board of directors, a
8 third of them each year, control the organization. And
9 it'savery robust process, and I'm sure that the
10 successor -- you know, the board will look at all of
11 those factors when they make the decision.
12 MR. SHEEHAN: All right. At thispoint |
13 will turn it over to Mr. Mason on behalf of Ackerman
14 McQueen for questioning.

15 EXAMINATION

16 BY MR. MASON:

17 Q. Good morning, Mr. LaPierre. Areyou ready --
18 A. Good morning.

19 Q. --toproceed?

20 A. Yes. Good morning.

21 Q. My nameisBrian Mason. I'm apartner at

22 Dorsey & Whitney in Dallas, and | represent Ackerman
23 McQueen. Do you understand who | am and who |

management of that litigation in any way and am
completely out of the process. It's being managed by
the specid litigation committee.

Q. Sodoesthat include al litigation, including
the Ackerman McQueen litigation?

A. The special litigation committee is managing
all that litigation, because | think the belief isit's
all directly related to the New Y ork state issues.

Q. Isthe special litigation committee managing
the litigation with Under Wild Skies?

A. The special litigation committeeis-- is
managing that legidation.

Q. Isthe special litigation committee managing
the litigation that the NRA has against Mark Dycio?

A. The special litigation committee is managing
that litigation also.

Q. Soal of the current litigation that the NRA
has is being managed by the special litigation
committee. Do | understand that correctly?

A. That's-- that's my understanding.

Q. And Mr. Frazer has recused himself from
involvement with the special litigation committee
because of the New York AG action?
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22
23

24 represent? 24 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
25 A, ldo. 25 question.
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1 Q. | wanttoask youafew follow-up questions 1 A. Hehas

2 from earlier this morning.

3 With respect to the money that you were

4 testifying about that was set aside in the Brewer trust
5 account, was that in reference to the $5 million?

6 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
7 question.
8 Go ahead if you understand.

9 A. Yes, itwas$5 million that was put in the
10 Brewer trust account to be used on reorganization
11 matterswith -- yes.

12 MR. CORRELL: ThisisKent Correll.
13 Mr. Mason, with Mr. Sheehan we had an agreement that any
14 objection made by the NRA would be joined by
15 Mr. LaPierreindividually. Can we have that same
16 agreement?

17 MR. MASON: Yes, wecan.
18 MR. CORRELL: Thank you.
19 Q. (BY MR. MASON) You aso tetified that the

20 Brewer firm was handling the litigation matters under

21 the management of the specid litigation committee. Did
22 | understand that correctly?

23 A. Thatiscorrect. Because | wasindividualy

24 named by the New Y ork AG's Office and John Frazer was

25 individually named, | cannot be involved in the
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2 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Andyou have also --
3 A. I'mnot -- I'm saying to the best of my
4 knowledge on this. | mean, I'm not an expert on --
5 you'd have to ask John Frazer whether he'sinvolved in
6 any of thislegidation that in some way they may
7 consider different than the New Y ork legislation.
8 Q. Butasyou sit hereright now, your
9 understanding is--
10 MR. CORRELL: Excuse me, Mr. Mason. This
11 isKent Correll. | just want to note that Mr. LaPierre
12 hastwice used the word "legidlation” rather than
13 "litigation."
14 THE WITNESS: Yes. | meant "litigation."
15 MR. CORRELL: Thank you.
16 Q. (BY MR.MASON) But asyou sit hereright now,
17 Mr. LaPierre, it's your understanding that all of the
18 litigation that the Brewer law firm ishandling is being
19 managed by the specid litigation committee?

20 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
21 question.

22  A. |bdieve-- | believeitis.

23 Q. (BY MR.MASON) You also said that the Brewer

24 firm was responsible for running down any whistleblower

25 complaints. Do you recall that?
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1 A. |did, becausethey dl related to the -- the

2 New York -- the New York AG litigation.

3 Q. HastheNRA had any whistleblower complaints
4 that the Brewer law firm was not involved with in the

5 last -- in the last two years?

6 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
7 question.

8 Go ahead and answer.

9 A. Ithinkinthelast two years, the -- when the

10 whistleblower complaints started to come forward, the
11 Brewer firm was -- was charged with running down those
12 internal whistleblower complaints and then checking them
13 out, making sure the whistleblower was protected, and

Q. And that includes the entire board, not just a

portion of the board. Correct?
MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
question.
But go ahead.

A. Itincludesthe -- it includes the whole of
the board of directorsasa-- asabody. Not an
individual board member, but the -- the -- the board of
directorsin its entirety and in terms of -- in other
words, while | do everything | can to work with
individual board members, | actually work for the board
asawhole. The power restsin the board as awhole and
their votes and their consensus as a mgjority of the

© 00N UL WDN PR
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11
12
13

5 forward that we believed would directly relate to the
6 litigation involving New Y ork, and one of the things
7 that we asked Mr. Brewer to do was to -- the Brewer firm
8 to do was to run down these whistleblower complaints and
9 check them out and get to the bottom of it and protect
10 the whistleblower and do everything appropriate that
11 should be done in that type situation.
12 Q. Okay. Yesterday morning you were asked
13 whether you had reviewed any documents prior to your
14 deposition yesterday, and you indicated that you had
15 not.
16 Did you review any documentsin preparation
17 for your deposition today, between yesterday evening and
18 thismorning?
19 A. Ididnot.
20 Q. Asexecutive vice president, do you report to
21 the NRA board of directors?
22 A. | work for the NRA board of directors.
23 They -- they can hireme. They canfireme. They -- |
24 work completely for the board of directors. | am
25 their -- their employee.

14 seeing whether there was truth or not truth and, if 14 board of directors.
15 there wastruth, getting to the bottom of it and dealing 15 Q. (BY MR.MASON) And you've previously
16 with it appropriately. 16 testified that the ultimate authority for the governance
17 Q. (BY MR.MASON) And wasthat done at your 17 of the NRA rests with the entire board. Right?
18 direction? 18 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form.
19 A. Absolutely. | wanted -- | mean, going back 19 Go ahead.
20 to 2017 after the call from Attorney General 20 A. Itabsolutely does.
21 Schneiderman -- 21 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Do you believeit'simportant
22 Q. Mr. LaPierre, my question was much simpler. 22 to be open and transparent with the board?
23 It wasjust was that done at your direction? 23 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
24 A. Yes. | -- oneof the things that we were 24 A. | believel'veawaysbelieved it's very
25 involved with, this New Y ork litigation, the potential 25 important to be open and transparent with the board.
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1 of it. 1 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Do you believeit'simportant
2 We were already involved with the Department 2 to be honest with the board?
3 of Financial Services, which was thefirst part of it. 3 MR. GARMAN: Objection, form.
4 Whistleblower complaints started to come 4  A. l'veawaysbelieved it'simportant to be
5
6
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honest with the board.
Q. (BY MR. MASON) Do you trust the NRA board to

7 overseethe NRA?

8 A. I dotrust the NRA board to oversee the NRA.

9 That'swhy I've dways said it's very important that NRA
10 do everything it can to get very distinguished and
11 accomplished people on our board of directors that have
12 experience and intellect and vision and -- and
13 resourcefulness, because ultimately this entire staff in
14 this building works for the board; and if the board in
15 some way is not outstanding, it affects the morale of
16 the entire staff in this building.
17 Q. Doyou trust the NRA board to make decisions
18 that are in the best interest of the NRA?
19 A. | dotrustthe NRA board. | thinkit'sa--
20 it'sa-- it'savery responsible board.

21 Q. Andthat includesall board members?
22 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form.
23  A. Youknow, | always give my respect to -- or

24 try to, to al board members, to tell you the truth, and

25 treat them with respect. That doesn't mean | always
Page 317
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1 agreewith them all, but | always try to respect them 1 confidence, that the NRA exercised almost no genuine
2 all and listen to them and -- and be civil and decent. 2 oversight on the NRA executive leadership?
3 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Doyou trusttheboardtokeep | 3 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
4 information confidential if you -- if you ask them to do 4 question.
5 s0? 5 A. No, | did not tell Mr. Powell that.
6 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form. 6 Mr. Powell -- | haven't read his book. From what people
7 Go ahead. 7 havetold me about it, he appears to be making up alot
8 A. Idontthinkit'sany secret if you wereto 8 of things that are not accurate.
9 talk to our -- most of our board, is the board of 9 Q. (BY MR.MASON) But he also appearsto be
10 directorsrealizes that in recent years they have had a 10 making statements that are also true. Right?
11 problem with leaks out of the board meeting, evenin 11 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form.
12 executive session, real-time information being passed 12 A. I don't know.
13 out -- out of executive session to various individuals 13 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
14 or the media, and it is a problem that the board of 14 question.
15 directorsiswrestling with as to how to -- how to 15  A. Idon'tknow. | haven't read his book.
16 function as a board when that type of activity has been 16 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Mr. LaPierre, asyou sit here
17 going on. 17 today, are you aware whether the NRA board was told on
18 Q. (BY MR.MASON) And that'saproblem hereand | 18 January 7 that the NRA was going to befiling for
19 now today on March 23rd. Right? 19 Chapter 11 bankruptcy?
20 A. Ithinkitisanongoing concern of agood 20 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
21 number of our board of directors. | don't think they 21 question.
22 know who isdoing it. | don't think they -- but | just 22 | instruct you not to answer the contents of
23 know that they all believe it has been happening. 23 executive session. Otherwise, you can answer the
24 Q. Doesit makeit difficult to be open and 24 question.
25 transparent with the NRA board if you're concerned about | 25  A. | wasnotin that session. | -- | do not know
Page 318 Page 320
1 lesks? 1 what the discussion was because | wasnotinit. All |
2 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form. 2 know isthat out of that session, | was -- came out of
3 Go ahead. 3 contract that involved me, and a part of that contract
4  A. Wadll, that's one of the concerns the board has 4 included a delegation of authority to the executive vice
5 had, isthe fact that it makes it difficult for them to 5 president to reorganize the association.
6 be open and transparent in executive session if they 6 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Soisityour testimony that,
7 believe that there's a possibility it will be leaked. 7 asyou sit here right now, you do not know whether the
8 Q. (BY MR.MASON) So how canyou trust the NRA | 8 board was advised of the Chapter 11 bankruptcy on
9 board to make governance decisions that are in the best 9 January the 7th?
10 interest of the NRA if you're concerned that information 10 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
11 shared with them could be |eaked? 11 question.
12 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the 12 Go ahead.
13 question. 13  A. Iwasnotinthat session. | wasnot privy to
14  A. Waell, | think the board strugglesin the best 14 the discussion asto what took place.
15 asthey can with that circumstance and try to be as open 15 Q. (BY MR.MASON) | understand you were not
16 and transparent as they can, given the fact they are 16 present, but my question is more simple than that.
17 aware that that type of situation has been occurring. 17 Asyou sit hereright now, are you aware
18 It's a problem they wrestle with, but | know they try to 18 whether or not the NRA board was advised about the
19 be as open and transparent as they can be, recognizing a 19 Chapter 11 bankruptcy on January the 7th?
20 reality that has existed. 20 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
21 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Mr. Powell in hisbook stated, | 21 question.
22 And as Wayne admitted to me in confidence, they, being | 22 Go ahead.
23 the NRA board, exercised ailmost no genuine oversight on | 23 A. To the best of my knowledge, the board
24 the NRA executive leadership. 24 delegated authority to the executive vice president to
25 Did you ever tell Mr. Powell that -- in 25 make decisions on reorganization. And at that point, |
Page 319 Page 321
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1 don't -- adecision had not been made on whether or not 1 Y ou said that you've spoken with board members
2 the NRA was going to move to filing Chapter 11 2 since the bankruptcy filing that have indicated to you
3 bankruptcy. Asl said, without that delegation of 3 that they did not know at the January 7 meeting that
4 authority by the board to the EVP, | certainly wouldn't 4 what they were doing was authorizing -- purportedly
5 have moved forward with it. 5 authorizing the NRA to file Chapter 11 bankruptcy. And
6 MR. MASON: Objection, nonresponsive. 6 so my question is who are those board members that you
7 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Haveyou had conversations 7 have had those conversations with?
8 with board members since the bankruptcy filing on 8 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
9 January the 15th? 9 A. Theydidn't-- | wouldn't say they all put it
10 A. | have had conversations with board members. 10 in exactly the terms you just described, but | talked
11 Q. Haveany of those board membersindicated to 11 with numerous board members that -- that have expressed
12 you that they were not advised that the NRA was goingto | 12 the need for -- they would -- and | -- and | believe
13 befiling for Chapter 11 bankruptcy on January the 7th? 13 this, for an open session where everybody can get
14  A. I'vehad board memberstell methat they -- 14 everything out in the open, everyone can ask their
15 that they -- they -- yeah, that they did not realize 15 questions.
16 that, they -- they -- and that's one of the reasons that 16 And now that the NRA has made the decision,
17 | thought it was agood idea to get them all together 17 based on the delegation of authority with the SLCsto
18 and let everyone ask their questions, because | don't 18 file the Chapter 11, they have a discussion about the
19 think some of them bothered to read the delegation of 19 wholething. I'vetalked to board members, from Susan
20 authority to the executive VP to reorganize the 20 Howard to Sandy Froman to -- to Joel Friedman, to --
21 association or ask questions about it. 21 to-- gosh, | would have to have alist of the board
22 And in executive session, even though | wasn't 22 membersin front of meto -- but | talked to probably
23 there, any board member could have asked any question 23 10, 15, 20 of them about -- you know, and everyone
24 that they wanted to, and | assume the officers would 24 agreesthat it would be good to get everyone together
25 have responded. But adecision had not been made at 25 and have afull, open discussion of everything.
Page 322 Page 324
1 that point to go that route. | guessit's something 1 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Did any of those board member
2 they could have talked about, but a decision had not 2 express concerns that they wish that there was that
3 been made at that point. 3 discussion that happened -- let me start over.
4 Q. Who are the board members that you're 4 Did any of those board members express
5 referring to that you spoke with and had that 5 concernsto you that -- about those discussions and how
6 conversation with? 6 they should have occurred on January the 7th?
7 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the 7 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
8 question. 8 A. Iwouldn't say it was so muchinrelation to
9 Go ahead. 9 those discussions and how they should have occurred.
10 A. About -- about the need for more discussion on 10 It wasthat they expressed a desire to get everything
11 everything? 11 out in the open, ask questions, have afull discussion
12 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Yeah, about the board not 12 of everything, everybody get their questions answered,
13 being told that, hey, we're about to go file for 13 and -- and that would be -- that's a good thing for the
14 Chapter 11 bankruptcy? 14 board and the association, because some of them clearly
15 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the 15 did not pay attention or -- or from what -- or follow
16 question. 16 that part on the reorganization.
17 A. Well -- 17 | had one of them tell me, for example, the
18 MR. CORRELL: ThisisMr. Corréll. | 18 only part that he really read was the part that involved
19 would just like to instruct the witness not to reveal 19 my contract and didn't really pay attention to any of
20 the substance of any communications with any members of | 20 the rest of the resolution. So | think there -- | think
21 the specid litigation committee that related to 21 it would be good for the association to have a board
22 litigation strategy. 22 meeting and afull discussion of everything and
23 A. Yeah, I'msorry, could you state the question 23 everybody get everything out in the open.
24 again? 24 Q. (BY MR.MASON) And afull disclosure with the
25 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Sure. 25 board, right, because that didn't happen on January
Page 323 Page 325
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1 the 7th? 1 do when you're facing that type situation, where we
2 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the 2 believed that we were being -- viewpoint discriminated
3 question. 3 against by the State of New Y ork, and we believed that
4  A. Wadll, keep in mind, that discussion could have 4 plan that Attorney General Schneiderman had laid out in
5 gone anywhere the board took it. | wasn't in there, but 5 2017 wasin full operation and in violation of the
6 in every executive session, every board member has the 6 organization's constitutional rights. And that's why we
7 right to ask any question that they have at all. And 7 have two First Amendment cases pending against the
8 the person that was chairing the meeting or the other 8 Department of Financial Services --
9 board members have an opportunity to take the mic and 9 Q. (BY MR.MASON) I understand. | understand.
10 talk about it. And | wasn'tinthere. | don't -- | 10 You've answered my question.
11 mean, if -- if questions weren't asked, they weren't 11 Who is Duane Liptak?
12 asked, but that's -- that's -- | mean, | wasn't in the 12 MR. CORRELL: Excuseme. ThisisKent
13 room. 13 Correll. Please don't interrupt the witness and

14 Q. (BY MR.MASON) On January 6, 2021, did you
15 know that if your employment agreement was approved by
16 the board on January 7, that you would be having -- that
17 you would believe that you had the authority to file

18 Chapter 11 bankruptcy on behalf of the NRA?

19 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
20 Go ahead and answer if you understand.
21 MR. CORRELL: Yeah. And to the extent --

22 thisisMr. Correll. To the extent that you had any
23 conversations with attorneys on that subject, not saying
24 you did, but if you did, please steer clear of those

25 conversations.
Page 326
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allow -- and please do allow the witness to finish his
answer.

Q. (BY MR. MASON) Mr. LaPierre, who is Duane
Liptak?

A. Duane Liptak isamember of the board, or was
amember of the board.

Q. How long was he amember of the board?

Well, let me ask you this. Why ishe no

longer amember of the board?

A. Hesentin aresignation letter saying that --
| can't remember exactly what it said. | know he said

that he continues to support the organization, he'll do
Page 328

1 A. Wadll, al of my conversations | had prior to
2 that were with -- were with attorneysin regard to my
3 contract and what wasin it in terms of -- in terms of
4 the reorganization.
5 Q. (BY MR.MASON) And who were those attorneys?
6 A. | haddiscussions on my contract with Kent
7 Correll, my personal attorney. | had discussions
8 with -- with Bill Brewer.
9 Q. Youtedtified at the first 341 creditors
10 meeting that you made the decision for -- to file for
11 bankruptcy a couple weeks before January 15. Do you
12 remember that?
13 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
14 A. | think we made the actual final decision a
15 couple of days before. Asl said, if we had not had
16 that delegation of authority at the board meeting
17 through the executive VP to reorganize the NRA, | would
18 not have gone ahead, at least | wouldn't have, and filed
19 for that reorganization. So | mean, it -- that's the
20 case.
21 There had been discussions of all kinds of
22 different options that the NRA might take, but no
23 decisions had been made, strategic alternativesto -- to
24 dealing with what we believed was a not fair -- fair

25 playing field in New Y ork state and how -- what do you
Page 327
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anything he can to -- to help it. | honestly don't
remember what the rest of the letter said. | read it,
but | just don't remember.

Q. Let'stakealook at -- if we can get
Exhibit -- Ackerman Exhibit 148, please.

(AMc Exhibit 148 marked.)

Q. (BY MR. MASON) And if you'll let me know,
Mr. LaPierre, when you've got Exhibit 148 up.

MR. GARMAN: We are pulling it up right

now.

Brian, it's Greg. | keep refreshing, but it's
not there yet. Isitinthe folder deposition of Wayne
LaPierre, 3/23 under Marked Exhibits?

MR. CORRELL: It should be. Can| get
delegated access to share my screen please?

MR. GARMAN: Y eah, the screen is pretty
far from us. WEe'll do our best, but it's probably a
good 15 feet from us. But you can try. We'll do our
best.

MR. CORRELL: Let'sgo off the record
real quick. Let me get thisfigured out. Just for one
or two minutes.

MR. GARMAN: Wewon't leave.

THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We are going off the

record. Thetimeonthevideois11:37 am.
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1 (Break from 11:37 am. to 11:42 am.) 1 attorney/client privilege, but otherwise you can answer.
2 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: WEe'e back on the 2 A. Yeah, theonly discussions | had were with
3 record. Thetime ontherecordis11:47 -- I'm sorry -- 3 counsel and with the SLC.
4 11:42 am. 4 Q. (BY MR.MASON) And that was prior to January
5 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Mr. LaPierre, I'vegot up on 57?
6 my screen Ackerman Exhibit 148. Can you see the 6 A. Thatiscorrect.
7 document on the screen and specifically the email at the 7 Q. Andwho wasthe counsel that you're referring
8 top from Mr. Liptak? 8 to?
9 A. Letme--it'staking me aminute becauseit's 9 A. That would be Bill Brewer and the specia
10 along way away. I'm struggling to read it. | see 10 litigation committee.
11 to -- from Duane Liptak to John Frazer. Subject, 11 Q. Sodidyou have conversations with the special
12 announcement from Wayne LaPierre. Andit says-- | can | 12 litigation committee specifically prior to January 7
13 read it now. 13 relating to the NRA filing Chapter 11 bankruptcy?
14 (Witness reading to himself.) 14 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
15 | read -- just read that. 15 question.
16 Q. Haveyou seen thisemail before? 16 | again give you the same instruction.
17 A. | havenot seen that email. 17  A. And| did not have independent -- any
18 Q. Haveyou had any conversations with Mr. Liptak 18 discussions were in the presence of counsel.
19 since January the 15th? 19 Q. (BY MR.MASON) And I'm not asking you to get
20 A. | havenot. 20 into those discussions. I'm asking you -- well, let me
21 Q. Doyou believe -- do you believe Mr. Liptak 21 ask it thisway.
22 would have sent this email to Mr. Frazer if the 22 Did you ever tell Charles Cotton prior to
23 Chapter 11 bankruptcy had been discussed at the January | 23 January 7 that the NRA is seriously considering about to
24 7th board meeting? 24 file Chapter 11 bankruptcy in Texas?
25 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the 25 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
Page 330 Page 332
1 question. question.
2 A. Wédll, I'm speculating. | mean, | -- Same instruction. Y ou can otherwise answer.
3 MR. GARMAN: No, no, no. We're not going A. Wewere -- we were working with Charles Cotton

1

2

3
4 to speculate. | also object to foundation. 4 on -- and Charles Cotton was actually having meetings
5 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Areyou going to answer my 5 with the governor of Texas and with other people,
6 question, Mr. LaPierre? 6 because Texas was, along with about 20 other states,
7 A. I'danswer your question that | wasn't in the 7 really were doing everything they can to encourage NRA
8 room, but when aresolution was passed, any board member| 8 to leave the toxic environment in New Y ork, which they
9 had the opportunity to ask any question that they wanted 9 considered, based on their reading of the news and the

10 to ask. And if someone wanted to ask a question in 10 information they were receiving from their -- from their

11 relation to the reorganization and what that entailed, 11 contactsthat -- and to reorganize in their state. And

12 which was delegated to the EV P, they had a full 12 | had the discussions with Charles Cotton about the work

13 opportunity to doit. | mean, obviously, you know, | 13 hewas doing with the -- with the governor of Texas and

14 wasn't intheroom, so | -- | don't -- | don't know the 14 with -- in relation to that.

15 full extent of the discussion or how close they got to 15 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Okay. So prior to January 7,

16 it or what they discussed. 16 did you specifically tell Mr. Cotton that we are on the

17 Q. Prior to the January 7th board meeting, did 17 verge of making adecision to file Chapter 11 bankruptcy

18 you have any discussions with anyone about not telling 18 and reincorporate in Texas?

19 the board of directors at the January 7th meeting that 19 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the

20 the NRA was considering filing for Chapter 11 20 question.

21 bankruptcy? 21 I give you the same instruction.

22 MR. GARMAN: Object to the form of the 22 A. | --1think that Charles was aware that that

23 question. 23 wasone of the options. | don't think -- adecision had

24 And simply to the extent your answer would 24 not been made. It -- but | had discussions with Charles

25 include counsel, | instruct you not to invade the 25 interms of reorganizing and -- and moving NRA to a--
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1 somewhere that wanted the organization, would offer a
2 fair regulatory environment where the organization could
3 grow and prosper.
4 A decision had not been made on how that would
5 be done, whether it would be Chapter 11, whether it
6 would be bankruptcy. | think that every -- every option
7 was being explored, but a decision had not been made.
8 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Who is Phillip Journey?
9 A. Phillip Journey isamember of the board of
10 directors, aprevious member of the board of directors,
11 and heisaformer state legidator, | believe. And
12 he'sajudge now, to the best of my knowledge.

13 Q. How long have you known Judge Journey?
14  A. Gosh, probably 20, 25 years.

15 Q. Doyouconsider him afriend?

16  A. Imean, | -- I'mfriendly with everybody. |

17 respect everybody. | mean, do we -- do we pal around
18 together? No, wedon't. But I'verun into Phil at

19 numerous meetings on -- speaking on the road over the
20 years, and we've aways had very friendly conversations
21 and -- yes.

22 Q. Haveyou known him to be an honest and

23 truthful person?

1 about someone I'm saying | really don't know very well.
2 I'm not trying to be evasive on the issue; it's just
3 that if you -- if you -- | mean, if you don't know
4 somebody very well, it's hard to make an assessment. |
5 mean, | guess| take everybody at face value, as|
6 believe there'sgood in everybody that | meet, you know.
7 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Prior to -
8 A. Ihopethereis.
9 Q. Priorto January 15, did Judge Journey ever

10 say or do anything that made you question hisintegrity?

11 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
12 question.
13 A. Asl'vesad, thelast 15 or 20 years, every

14 timeI've met Phil Journey, Judge Journey, he's been

15 nice and we had a nice conversation and nothing happened
16 in those conversations that -- that made me question his
17 integrity.

18 I remember back in the days of the '97 and '98

19 when he was on the board, | thought that -- when there

20 was an issue going on, | thought some of the decisions

21 that he made -- was making in terms of how he voted

22 was-- | thought was the wrong way, but -- and was the

23 wrong decision, but that was along, long time ago and,

24 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form. 24 you know, people change. And I'm somebody that
25 Go ahead. 25 understands people change, and that's why | responded
Page 334 Page 336
1 A. Youknow,all cansayisl'vehad -- I've 1 theway | responded when the -- when the person called
2 had friendly conversations with him, like all kinds of 2 me about, What do you think about Phil being nominated
3 other people you have friendly conversations with. 3 for the board? | said, I've got alot of -- I've run
4 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Prior to January 14, did you 4 into him alot of times and he was friendly and nice.

5 consider Mr. -- Judge Journey an honest and truthful

6 person?

7 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the

8 question.

9 A. Youknow, again, | don't have -- | don't have
10 adeep relationship with -- I'm not trying to disparage
11 Mr. Journey in any way; it'sjust | don't have the type
12 of relationship or the amount of experience in terms of
13 working with to -- you know, | mean, Mr. Journey has
14 aways appeared to me to be, you know, nice and he was
15 friendly.
16 In fact, prior to his nomination to the board,
17 someone called me on the board and said, What do you
18 think of Phil Journey? And | said, Well, I've run into
19 him several times and he's always been nice and we've
20 had nice conversations. And that was my answer.
21 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Prior to January 15, did you
22 bhelieve that Judge Journey was a man of integrity?

23 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
24 question.
25  A. Again, you're asking me to make a judgment
Page 335

5 And| -- basicdly, | said I've had very nice
6 conversations with him, even though I think back in the
7 '90s some of the positions he took on the board | -- |
8 disagreed with, to the best of my recollection. |
9 didn't think it wasin the best interest of the NRA.
10 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Wasthe NRA'sfiling of
11 Chapter 11 bankruptcy a major decision for the NRA?

12 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
13 question.
14  A. Yes, the NRA'sdecision to file Chapter 11 was

15 a-- wasamajor decision.

16 Q. (BY MR.MASON) The NRA hasbeenin New York
17 for 150 years. Right?

18 A. They have.

19 Q. Thiswas-- thiswasahistoric decision,

20 wasn'tit?

21 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the

22 question.

23 A. Wael,itwasadecisionthat -- as| said, the

24 NRA for years has been talking on and off about the need
25 to reincorporate in somewhere that offered afriendlier
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1 environment than New Y ork state to the organization.
2 There were also ongoing discussions even about the NRA's
3 principal place of operation herein Virginia, that
4 maybe -- maybe it would be better for our employeesto
5 moveinto afriendlier place.
6 So these discussions have been going on for
7 many, many years, long before the issue of General
8 Schneiderman's tel ephone call, Governor Cuomo, DFS,
9 General James or General James' statement during her
10 campaign about the NRA being a criminal terrorist
11 organization and --
12 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Mr. LaPierre, my question was
13 much more -- was much more simple than that. Let's move
14 on.
15 Would you agree --
16 MR. CORRELL: ThisisKent Correll.
17 Mr. Mason, again, | would just caution you to allow the
18 witness to finish his answers and not --
19 MR. MASON: Not if he'sjust going to
20 filibuster, not if I'm asking him simple questions,
21 so--

22 MR. CORRELL: Mr. Mason, you have a

23 duty --

24 MR. MASON: Let's move on.

25 MR. CORRELL: Excuse me, Mr. Mason. You

Page 338

1 decisionto do it at that point and would not have done
2 itif the board did not delegate that authority.
3 Q. (BY MR.MASON) If the board did not delegate
4 that authority, are you aware of any other NRA corporate
5 governance document that provided you with the authority
6 tofile Chapter 11 bankruptcy on behalf of the NRA?
7 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
8 question, calsfor legal conclusion.
9 A. Yeah, | amnot aware, but I'm not alawyer and

10 I'm not an expert on all of the NRA documents and

11 bylaws.

12 But as| said, | would not -- without that

13 specific delegation of authority from the board in that

14 resolution that delegated me the ability to reorganize,

15 | certainly would not have moved forward.

16 Q. Youtestified yesterday that on January 15th,

17 the day that the NRA filed for bankruptcy, you had a

18 telephone call withthe SLC. Isthat right?

19 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the

20 question.

21 Go ahead.

22 A. Yes | did

23 Q. (BY MR.MASON) And on that telephone call was

24 yourself and Ms. Meadows and Mr. Cotton and Mr. Lee. Is

25 that correct?
Page 340

1 have aduty as an officer of the court and under the
2 rules of this court to allow awitness to finish an
3 answer. It'snot for you to decide when the witnessis
4 done.
5 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Mr. LaPierre, would you agree
6 that if acompany isgoing to file for Chapter 11
7 bankruptcy, that that bankruptcy must be authorized?
8 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
9 question, callsfor alegal conclusion.
10 A. The--theboard -- as|'ve said before, the
11 board in the resolution that they passed at the January
12 meseting specifically allocated to the executive VP, and
13 asodid it in consultation with the SLC, the authority
14 to reorganize the organization. If they had not done
15 that, | certainly would not have moved forward.
16 Q. (BY MR.MASON) And on January 6, did you know
17 that? Did you know that the authorization -- the
18 approval of your employment agreement would provide you
19 that authorization?

20 MR. GARMAN: Objection, asked and
21 answered.

22 Go ahead again.

23 A. | --1 knew that within that delegation that

24 was being proposed, it would open up the option of doing

25 that, if we choseto do it, but we had not made a
Page 339

1 A. Thatiscorrect.

2 Q. Wasthat thefirst time that you told the

3 members of the SLC that you had made a final decision
4 with respect to filing Chapter 11 bankruptcy?

5 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
6 question.
7 MR. CORRELL: Also, thisis Mr. Correll.

8 | would instruct the witness not to divulge any
9 communications that were made to the SLC for purposes of
10 obtaining legal advice or assistance for the
11 organization.
12 A. Thediscussionsthat | had with the SLC at
13 that point included -- included legal advice from
14 counselors.
15 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Werethere any attorneys on
16 that -- on that phone call?

17 A. Yes

18 Q. Mr. Cotton?

19 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.

20 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Or were there other -- were

21 there other attorneys on besides the four of you?

22 MR. CORRELL: Objection to the form of
23 the question. ThisisMr. Correll.

24  A. Butl asohad -- | also had an independent
25 call with --
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1 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Mr. LaPierre, I'm asking about
2 whowasonthecall. | believe you said -- | asked you

3 if there was attorneys on the call, and you said yes.

4 You said there was four people on the telephone call,

5 yourself, Mr. Cotton, Mr. Lee and Ms. Meadows. |s that

6 correct?

7 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
8 question.
9 Y ou can answer that.

10 A. Yeah, that'sthe onel wasjust going to say.

11 | had conversation with the three officers of the SLC
12 and myself where we made the final decision to file --
13 filefor bankruptcy.

14 Q. Soprior to that phone call, had you made a
15 final decision on the decision to file for bankruptcy?
16 A. No, that phone cal is when we made the final
17 decisionto doit.

18 Q. How long did that phone call last?
19 A. | don't remember.
20 Q. Wasthat thefirst timethat you told the SLC

21 that you had made afina decision to file Chapter 11
22 bankruptcy?

23 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
24 question.
25 A. No. Wehad had discussions about it earlier
Page 342

1 A. Wadll, there was tremendous concern among the
2 specid litigation committee, in particular, about leaks
3 and the fact that -- and as we talked about, there was
4 an ongoing process of leaks, unfortunately, in real-time
5 fromthe -- from the board. And the special litigation
6 committee, in particular -- but | shared the same
7 concern, but they were very concerned that aleak on
8 thiswith the clear intent of General James to dissolve
9 the National Rifle Association in what we believed, as |
10 said numerous times, was an improper use of government
11 authority, that she would -- if leaked, she would
12 immediately attempt to put the NRA into receivership,
13 which would, in effect, destroy the organization.
14 Andwe, the SLC and |, had a-- | mean, my
15 gosh, it'sawonderful organization with 5 million
16 members. It doesal kinds of amazing things, aswe
17 talked about, safety training, education, political and
18 legidative advocacy. It's one of the oldest civil
19 rights organizations in the country, and it sure doesn't
20 deserveto be dissolved or put into receivership, so --
21 and that's why.
22 Q. Okay. Werethere any other reasons, asyou
23 sit here right now, that you can think of ?
24 A. No.

25 Q. Withrespect to New York putting the NRA into
Page 344

1 inthe week and had -- had just not cometo afina --

2 final decision on if and when or the time in which we

3 weregoing to do it.

4 MR. MASON: Let'sdo this. We've been

5 going about an hour. Why don't we go ahead and take a

6 five-minute break, if that's okay.

7 MR. GARMAN: Sure.

8 Brian, when do you want to take a lunch break,

9 so we can plan?
10 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: Do you want to go off
11 the record?
12 MR. GARMAN: Okay. Y eah, we can go off
13 the record.
14 MR. MASON: It'suptoy'al and
15 Mr. LaPierre.
16 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We're going off the
17 record. Thetime on thevideois 12:04 p.m.
18 (Break from 12:04 p.m. to 12:19 pm.)
19 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We're back on the
20 record. Thetime onthevideo is12:19 p.m.
21 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Mr. LaPierre, after you and
22 the special litigation committee made the final decision
23 tofile Chapter 11 bankruptcy, why did you not go back
24 to the NRA board before actually pulling the trigger and

25 filing?
Page 343

1 receivership, isthat a concern that you came up with on

2 your own?
3 MR. GARMAN: So | object.
4 | instruct you not to divulge the

5 attorney/client privilege, and any information you
6 received from counsel on that point, | instruct you not
7 torespond with.
8 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Areyou going to answer my
9 question, Mr. LaPierre?
10 A. No, I'mnot. I'm going to take the advice of
11 counsel on that issue.
12 Q. Andwho wasthe counsel that you're
13 referencing in refusing to answer that particular
14 question?
15 MR. CORRELL: Objection. Thisis
16 Mr. Correll. Objection to the extent that the question
17 impliesthat any particular counsel was -- was giving
18 any advice on that issue.
19 My instruction to the witnessis to the extent
20 that you can answer the question without divulging
21 communications with attorneys, you can do so. Otherwise
22 your instruction is not to answer the question.
23 Q. (BY MR.MASON) And | am not asking you for
24 any communications, Mr. LaPierre. | am just asking for

25 theidentity of the lawyersthat you're refusing to
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1 answer the question based upon the attorney/client 1 usually haveto pull out the bylaws and -- as do most

2 privilege. 2 people, and try to find the section and see what it

3 MR. CORRELL: Mr. Mason, you're asking 3 says.

4 him, in effect, to identify lawyers who advised him on 4 Q. Areyou bound by the NRA bylaws?

5 theissue of whether -- of litigation strategy with 5 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the

6 respect to the pending litigation in New York. | think 6 question.

7 that's an improper question. Maybe you can try to 7 A. Yes. | work for the board of directors and

8 rephrase your question and we can get to a place where 8 the bylaws that the organization operates under.

9 we're more comfortable with your question. 9 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Did your employment agreement,
10 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Let meask it thisway. 10 your January 2021 employment agreement, amend or modify
11 Mr. LaPierre, was the concern that you had 11 the NRA bylawsin any way?

12 with receivership, was that -- was that a concern based 12 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
13 upon communications with counsel ? 13 question.
14 MR. GARMAN: So | am going to give you 14 A. Not-- not that I'm aware of.
15 the sameinstruction. Y ou can answer that question yes 15 Q. (BY MR MASON) Let'stakealook at -- if we
16 or no. 16 can look at Ackerman Exhibit 11.
17 A. Yeah. 17 MR. GARMAN: We have Ackerman Exhibit 148
18 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Who was that counsel? 18 and then we have Exhibits 7 through 10.
19 A. Actualy, it was-- it was more than one 19 MR. MASON: Hopefully it's going to drop
20 counsel. 20 in any second.
21 Q. Okay. Who -- who were the more than one? 21 MR. GARMAN: Well keep refreshing.
22 MR. GARMAN: So | don't understand the 22 (AMc Exhibit 11 marked.)
23 relevance of this. 1'm going to instruct him not to 23 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Let'scome back to that.
24 divulge even who the advice came from. | don't seeits 24 Let's come back to that if it's not going to be dropped
25 relevance. 25 inthere.
Page 346 Page 348
1 MR. MASON: Relevanceis not a proper 1 On January 6, were you aware that there was an

2 objection, and it is not improper. He's aready
3 testified that there was a concern about the NRA going
4 into receivership and that was based upon communications
5 with counsel. It's a perfectly appropriate question to
6 ask who those communications were with without going
7 into anything else.
8 MR. CORRELL: ThisisMr. Correll. |
9 respectfully disagree, and | think that if the question
10 isdesigned to elicit information as to which counsel
11 expressed opinions or gave advice on the issue of
12 whether receivership was -- was something that might be
13 appropriately -- well, receivership might be a concern
14 in New York, | think that it's -- you're asking for who
15 advised him on those issues.

16 MR. GARMAN: | joinin that.

17 And | instruct you not to answer.

18 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Mr. LaPierre, are you going to
19 follow your counsel's instruction?

20 A. lam.

21 Q. Didyou personaly come up with the concern

22 about -- strike that. I'll come back to that.
23 Areyou familiar with the NRA's bylaws?
24 A. Moreorless. | wouldn't say I'm an expert on

25 the NRA bylaws, but | mean, when a question comes up, |
Page 347

2 officer's compensation committee meeting?

3 A. That would be the -- | assume that would be

4 the meeting that took place during the -- during the

5 board of directors meeting. Was that the date of the

6 board of directors meeting, the 6th?

7 Q. Thisistheday before.

8 A. Widl, | was-- | waswith the officers that

9 day who represent the special compensation committee and
10 who are the members of the special compensation
11 committee. | don't know that they had ameeting. They
12 might have.
13 Q. Soasyou sit hereright now, you were not
14 aware as to whether the officers compensation committee
15 was having a meeting on January 6 with respect to your
16 employment agreement?

17 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
18 Go ahead.
19 A. lwas--| wasinameeting with al three of

20 those -- all three of those officers on the 6th, but |

21 wouldn't have been in the part of the meeting where they
22 did the special compensation committee part.

23 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Woasthe meeting that you were
24 with the SLC on January 6, was that in person? Was

25 everybody there in person?
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1 A. They were. | think they were. | can't

2 remember whether Carolyn -- Carolyn Meadows, | think,
3 was on the phone.

4 Q. Andwereyou -- where were the rest of you?

5 Wereyou at the Brewer firm offices on January 6?

6 A. That'scorrect.

7 Q. Okay. Let'stry thisagain. Let'sseeif we

8 can drop Exhibit 109. It lookslikeit may beupin

9 the--

10 (AMc Exhibit 109 marked.)
11 MR. GARMAN: Yeah, it's |loaded.
12 Q. (BY MR.MASON) And if you will, please scroll

13 down to page 11 of 16, please.

14 Canyou see 11 of 16, Mr. LaPierre? At the

15 top, it says National Rifle Association of America

16 report of the officers compensation committee?

17  A. | doseethat.

18 Q. Okay. Andthenif you go down to the third

19 paragraph, it says the committee was presented with and

20 considered an employment agreement negotiated by counsel
21 for the NRA and counsel for Mr. LaPierre. Questions and
22 discussion ensued.

23 Do you seethat?
24 A. |doseethat.
25 Q. Hadyou seen acopy of your -- adraft copy of

Page 350

1 me-- we had talked about this. He asked meif | was
2 okay --

3 Q. ldont--1don'twantto getinto

4 conversations with -- with your counsel.

5 So let me ask this question. When did you

6 first execute your employment agreement?

7 A. I'msorry. | don't understand the question.
8 Q. Sure
9 Well, let me ask it thisway. Prior to the

10 board meeting on January the 7th, did you -- did you

11 sign your employment agreement?

12 A. No, | believel signed it after -- after the

13 board meeting -- after the board meeting approved the

14 employment -- the contract.

15 Q. Didyou haveachanceto fully review and

16 approve the employment agreement before it was presented
17 to the board on January the 7th?

18 A. Yeah, | believe the specia compensation

19 committee showed me what they were going to propose on
20 the 6th, and it was what | had agreed to with my

21 attorney.

22 Q. Areyou aware that the -- the employment

23 agreement that was presented to the board on January 7th
24 did not have a choice of law or choice of venue

25 provisioninit?
Page 352

1 your employment agreement as of January the 6th?
2 A. Ithink | saw acopy of it on January 6th of
3 what they -- what they had proposed or were proposing.

Q. Prior to January 6th, were you involved at al
in the negotiations with respect to your employment
agreement?

MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
| had talked about it with my --

MR. CORRELL: Excuseme. Thisis
Mr. Correll.

Q. (BY MR.MASON) And | don't want to get into
conversations between you and Mr. Correll.

MR. CORRELL: Thank you.

Q. (BY MR. MASON) So to the extent that you had
aconversation, | don't want to get into the substance.
My question isjust simply -- well, let me ask it this
way.

Prior to January 6th, were you aware of any
negotiations relating to your employment agreement?

A. Thecommunications| -- in terms of this
employment agreement took place between myself and --
and my attorney, Mr. Correll.

Q. WasMr. Correll present at the Brewer office
on January the 6th?

A. No, | don't believe he was, but he had called
Page 351

N

A.

25

1 A, |-lwasn'tawareof that. I'mnota
2 lawyer. | wouldn't have been looking for that.
3 Q. Asyou sit heretoday, do you know why your
4 employment agreement that was presented to the board on
5 January 7th did not have a choice of law or choice of
6 venue provision?
7 A. ldonot. | mean, those arelegal questions
8 that | just would not have focused on.
9 Q. Whowould be the peopleto ask to find the
10 answer to that question?

11 A. I think the special compensation committee.
12 Q. Anyoneelse?
13  A. Waell, whoever the special compensation

14 committee worked with from alegal standpoint, if they
15 worked with someone.

16 Q. Didyou notice when reviewing your employment
17 agreement that was going to be presented to the board

18 that it did not have a choice of law or choice of venue

19 provision?

20 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
21 Go ahead.
22 A. I didnot. | mean, that would be something

23 that | did not -- not being alawyer, would not have
24 focused on, did not understand, would not even realize

25 that needed to be in there, if it did.
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1 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Asyou sit heretoday, do you
2 know that the employment agreement that was presented to
3 the board on January 7th did not have a choice of law or
4 choice of venue provision?
5 A. [|didnot know that.
6 Q. Youstill did not know that asyou sit here
7 today?
8 A. No, | --1did not know that until after the
9 board -- board meeting when | remember -- when | sat
10 down and signed the agreement after the board meeting,
11 after it had been approved, | noticed that it said
12 something about the state of Texas and -- onit. That's
13 thefirst | noticed it.
14 Q. Areyou aware of any negotiations that took
15 place with respect to the choice of law or choice of
16 venue provision in the employment agreement that you
17 ultimately executed?
18 A. lamnot. Thefirst| saw it waswhen | was
19 there with -- | believe sitting there with Charles
20 Cotton and | signed the agreement.
21 Q. Doyou know if any other -- any other states
22 or forums besides Texas were considered for the choice

1 my namefor fundraising if they decided they wanted to
2 doit, at their discretion, not mine.
3 Q. Doyouknow al of the people -- or let me ask
4 it thisway. Do you know the people that reviewed a
5 draft of your employment agreement before it was
6 presented to the board on January the 7th?
7  A. ldontknow. | know the-- | know the-- |
8 know the officersdid. | don't know whether any other
9 board members did or not.
10 Q. Why did your employment agreement that was
11 presented to the board on January 7th not include
12 specific language delegating you the power to file
13 Chapter 11 bankruptcy on behaf of the NRA?

14 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
15 question.
16 A. Why did my employment agreement not include

17 that language?

18 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Yes.

19 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
20 question.

21 A. Becauseit wasmy -- the part | had was my

22 contract with the -- with the -- involving my employment

23 of law and venue provision in your employment agreement? 23 with the NRA.
24 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form. 24 Q. (BY MR.MASON) But if I understand your
25 Go ahead. 25 testimony --
Page 354 Page 356
1 A. Idon't, becausel did not even understand 1 A. | saw--1|saw it onthe 6th, asecond part of
2 that that was necessary to be put in there or that there 2 that contract that talked about the delegation to the
3 was adiscussion going on around it or that it was going 3 EVP about reorganizing the association.
4 to happen. | just -- not being alawyer, it's just not 4 Q. When you reviewed that contract on January
5 something that | would have looked for or understood. 5 6th, did you understand that that reorganization
6 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Fair enough. 6 language in the employment agreement would have provide
7 Soisit fair to say that you just left that 7 you with the authority to file Chapter 11 bankruptcy on
8 up to the attorneys? 8 behalf of the NRA?

A. | --thefair thing to say isthat | noticed

10 that it was there when | signed the contract and had not
11 noticed anything about it until | happened to see it

12 when | was signing the contract.

13 Q. How did you noticeit after when you were

14 signing the contract if you didn't notice it when you

15 originaly reviewed the employment agreement before the

16 January 7th board meeting?

17 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.

18 Go ahead.

19  A. Becausel don't -- | don't think it was there

20 intheoriginal draft that | -- that | saw.

21 Q. (BY MR.MASON) And so --
22  A. ltwasthe part that | talked about with my
23 attorney in terms of the conditions of employment and

24 the -- you know, and the fact that NRA, not me, had

25 certain -- at their discretion, certain rightsto -- to
Page 355

9 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
10 question.
11 Go ahead and answer.
12 A. Ithink | understood that it would give the

13 EVP wide latitude in terms of strategic alternatives

14 to -- interms -- in terms of how it proceeded forward

15 with the NRA and that one of them would have been --
16 would have been pursuing the Chapter 11.

17 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Sowhy was -- why was that no
18 put into the employment agreement? Why -- why was --
19 why was there not bankruptcy language added into the
20 employment agreement?

21 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
22 question and the characterization.

23 A. ldon'tknow. I don't know. All | know isl

24 read the -- | read the piece of paper al the way

25 through, and | don't know the why.
Page 357
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2 relied on your lawyers for?
3 MR. CORRELL: ThisisMr. Correll.
4 Objection to the form.

7 SLC or somebody added the second part to it.

9 go ahead and take a lunch break, if that's works for
10 everybody.
11 MR. GARMAN: Sure.
12
13 record. Thetime on the video is 12:45 p.m.

1 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Isthat something that you

5 A. Thepart that | wasfocused on was my part of
6 thecontract. | know that the -- the -- you know, the

8 MR. MASON: Let'sdo this. Why don't we

THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We're going off the

1 Q. Onsectionahere, it saysrepea or amend the
2 bylaws or adopt new bylaws. Do you see that?

3  A. Reped or amend -- yeah, | do see that.

4 Q. Soisityour understanding that the board of
5 directors has the power to -- strike that.

6 Isit your understanding that the board of

7 directors has the sole power to repeal or amend the

8 bylaws or adopt new bylaws?

9 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
10 question.
11 A. Yeah, | mean, | am not alawyer, but that's

12 the way -- that's they way that reads.
13 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Okay. If you'll go down to

24 seethat?
25 A. | do.

22 when said board is not in session, other than the powers
23 to -- and then there's alist of various things. Do you

Page 359

14 (Break from 12:45 p.m. to 1:36 p m.) 14 the next page, please, section f. Do you see where it
15 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We'e back on the 15 saysthe board has the power to adopt and disseminate a
16 record. Thetime onthevideois1:36 pm. 16 fundamental change of view or basic policy or basic
17 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Mr. LaPierre, areyou ready to | 17 organizationa structure of the association? Do you see
18 proceed? 18 that?
19 A. lam. 19 A. Ido.
20 Q. Hopefully you've got Exhibit -- Ackerman 20 Q. Isityour understanding that the board has
21 Exhibit 11 in front of you. Do you recognize those to 21 the sole authority to adopt and disseminate a
22 bethe most recent NRA bylaws? 22 fundamental change of view or basic policy or basic
23 A. ldo. 23 organizational structure of the association?
24 Q. Okay. Couldyou go to page 23 for me, please? 24 MR. GARMAN: Object to the form of the
25 Let me know when you're there, please? 25 question.
Page 358 Page 360
1 MR. GARMAN: Hey, Counsdl, the way we're 1 Y ou can answer.
2 setupin here, | haveto do the scralling. It's Greg. 2 A. Fromwhat| -- from what | understand, that
3 Sowe're amost there. Okay. 3 the board aso had the power to delegate to the EVP's
4 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Doyouseearticle VI, 4 office the authority to restructure the organization.
5 Mr. LaPierre, executive committee? 5 I've heard -- well, | shouldn't get into
6 MR. GARMAN: Oh, you mean 23 -- do you 6 privileged conversation with lawyers on this, but --
7 mean 23 of the bylaws or the page of the exhibit? 7 MR. GARMAN: Right. Stop there.
8 MR. MASON: Page 23 of the bylaws. | 8 THE WITNESS: Yeah.
9 guessit looks like page 27 of 60 on the PDF. 9 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Soisit--isityour
10 MR. GARMAN: We'reon page 23. Goahead. | 10 understanding that your January 2021 employment
11 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Do you seethe sectiontitled | 11 agreement modified or changed the section f that we just
12 article VI, Mr. LaPierre? 12 read here?
13 A. ldo. 13 MR. GARMAN: Object to the form of the
14 Q. Andthat'srelated to the executive committee. 14 question.
15 Right? 15 A. My understandingisthat in my -- that 2020
16 A. That'scorrect. 16 employment agreement, it delegated the board -- the full
17 Q. And then do you see at the bottom, section 2, 17 board delegated to the EV P's office the authority to
18 powers and duties? 18 reorganize the -- the association.
19 A. Ido. 19 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Okay. Soit'syour
20 Q. And it says the executive committee shall 20 understanding then that, according to f here, that the
21 exerciseadl of the powers of the board of directors 21 executive vice president now has the power to adopt and

22 disseminate afundamental change of view or basic policy
23 or basic organizational structure of the association?
24 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the

25 question.
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A. | understand that the full board has the
power -- has the power to delegate to the executive vice
president the authority to reorganize the association
and the full board operates under the bylaws of the
association.

Q. (BY MR. MASON) My questionisalittle bit
more simple than that.

Did the full board authorize the executive
vice president to adopt and disseminate a fundamental
change of view or basic policy or basic organizational
structure of the association?
MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the

question.

A. The board delegated to the executive vice
president in a-- in aresolution that they passed at
the board meeting in Dallas the authority to reorganize
the association.

Q. (BY MR.MASON) Soisthe answer to my
question yes?

MR. GARMAN: No, objection to the form of

the question.
22 A. No, my answer isthat the board delegated the
23 authority to the executive vice president at the full
24 board meeting in Dallas to do areorganization.

© 00N UL WDN PR
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MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
question.
A. They -- they delegated through the EVP's
office the authority to reorganize the -- the
association.
MR. MASON: Objection, honresponsive.
Q. (BY MR. MASON) Do you know what the word
"merger" means?
MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
question to the extent that it calls for alega
conclusion.
MR. CORRELL: Also, | object to your
objection. | don't think you can object to your own

© 00N UL WDN PR

10
11
12
13

14 question. If you're moving to strike, | think that

15 would be the proper response.

16 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Do you know what "merger"
17 means, Mr. LaPierre?

18 MR. GARMAN: Same objection.

19 A. Tell mewhat it means.

20 Q. (BY MR.MASON) I'masking you if you know

21 what it means.

22  A. | --1don't know exactly what it means as
23 it's-- asit's stated there. | mean, what | do know is
24 that board at that board meeting passed a resolution

25 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Do you seetheword 25 giving the EVP the authority to reorganize the
Page 362 Page 364
1 "reorganization" anywhere in subsection f? 1 association, and it was with that authority that | and
2 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the 2 the SLC did what we did. And there was an opportunity
3 question. 3 for full debate at that board meeting. | wasn'tin the

4  A. No, | don't seetheword, but that's what was
5 in the resolution that was passed by our full board of
6 directors at the board meeting.
7 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Let'sgo down to subsectioni.
8 Do you see where it says present a petition for judicial
9 dissolution or to adopt plans of merger, consolidation,
10 or nonjudicia dissolution? Do you see that?
11  A. ldo.
12 Q. Would you agree with me that the board has the
13 sole authority to present a petition for judicial
14 dissolution or adopt plans of merger, consolidation or
15 nonjudicial dissolution?

16 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
17 question.
18 A. I would agreethat that language -- that's

19 what that language says. On the other hand, the board
20 of directors at the Dallas meeting delegated the

21 authority to the executive vice president's office to do
22 are-- to reorganize the association, and that iswho |
23 work for, isthe board of directors.

24 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Did the board of directors

25 designate you the power to adopt a plan of merger?
Page 363

4 session, but that's what happened.

5 Q. Didthe NRA board designate the executive vice
6 president with the power to petition for judicia

7 dissolution or adopt a plan of merger, consolidation or

8 nonjudicia dissolution in your January 2021 employment
9 agreement?

10 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
11 question.
12 A. They -- they passed aresolution authorizing

13 the EVP to reorganize the association and -- and beyond
14 that, | would be getting into discussions, all kinds of

15 discussions with lawyers as to what that authority

16 involved.

17 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Let'sgo town to subsection k.
18 Do you see where it says formulate such other corporate
19 policy decisions or perform corporate activities of the
20 association of such major significance asto warrant

21 action by the full board of directors? Do you see that?
22 A. ldo.

23 Q. Doyou believethat thefiling of Chapter 11

24 bankruptcy is an activity of the association of such

25 major significance?
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1 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the 1 filed individual charges against John Frazer and also
2 question. 2 against me personally, the Brewer firm recused
3 A. Il giveyou-- 1 mean, I'll giveyou the 3 themselves from representing me. And | -- | found a

4 same answer. | mean, | understood that with that

5 resolution passed by the full board of directors, they

6 were delegating to the EVP's office, the executive vice

7 president's office, the authority to reorganize the

8 association, and it was under that authority delegated

9 by thefull board of directors to the EVP's office that
10 I, in consultation with the SLC, took the action that we
11 took.
12 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Wasthefiling of Chapter 11
13 bankruptcy amajor action for the NRA?

14 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
15 question.
16 A. Ithink I'veaready said it was -- it was a

17 major -- magjor item. Significant.

18 Q. (BY MR. MASON) Yeah. Okay.

19 Do you intend to ask the board of directors to
20 ratify thefiling of the bankruptcy on March the 28hth?

21 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
22 question.
23 And | instruct you not to answer to the extent

24 that your answer would constitute our legal strategy and

25 the discussions with counsel.
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4 lawyer to represent me, Kent Correll. And John Frazer
5 found out that the Brewer firm made it very clear they
6 could no longer represent us individualy.
7 Q. Areyouawareyou're anindividua defendant
8 in thelitigation between the NRA and Ackerman McQueen?
9 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
10 A. | amawareof alawsuit Ackerman McQueen filed
11 against -- against me.
12 Q. (BY MR.MASON) And prior to the -- prior to
13 thefiling of the New York Attorney General lawsuit, do
14 you know who represented you in your individual
15 capacity?
16  A. Priortothefiling of the attorney genera's
17 lawsuit against the NRA and against John Frazer and
18 myself?
19 Q. Correct.
20 A. TheBrewer firm was representing the NRA.
21 Q. Werethey representing you aswell
22 individually?
23  A. Notindividualy. They were representing
24 me -- they were representing NRA, who | work for.

25 Q. Butyouaren't aware-- you're not aware if
Page 368

1 A. | will takethe advice of counsel on that.
2 MR. CORRELL: ThisisMr. Correll. | add
3 that instruction. | join in that instruction.
4 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Mr. LaPierre, the employment
5 agreement that you've been referencing that provides you
6 the authorization to reorganize the Chapter 11 -- I'm
7 sorry, let me back up.
8 The employment agreement that you have been
9 referencing here today that discusses the power of you
10 reorganizing the National Rifle Association, is-- is
11 that employment agreement the one that was reviewed and
12 approved by the board of directors on January the 7th?
13 A. That would be correct.
14 Q. The onethat was approved by the board of
15 directors, though, it didn't have the choice of law or
16 choice of venue provisioninit, did it?
17 A. Again, | wasn't -- | wasn't in that board
18 mesting. | was-- | was not -- because it involved me,
19 | wasn't there. | testified earlier that | did not see
20 that choice of venue provision until | actually sat down
21 to sign the contract after that board meeting was over.
22 Q. Atonepoint the Brewer firm represented both
23 the NRA and yourself individually. Isn't that true?
24 A. No. TheBrewer firm represented the National

25 Rifle Association, and the minute General James' office
Page 367

1 the Brewer firm was ever representing you in your
2 individual capacity in the district court litigation
3 against Ackerman McQueen?

4 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
5 question.
6 MR. CORRELL: Timeframe? Istherea

7 timeframe on that question?
8 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Let meask it thisway.
9 In early 2020, Mr. LaPierre, who was
10 representing you in your individual capacity in the
11 district court litigation against Ackerman McQueen?
12 MR. CORRELL: Objection to the form.
13 ThisisMr. Correll.
14 A. | think that district court -- that
15 legidlation (sic) was against the National Rifle
16 Association at that time, asfar as| know.
17 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Areyou aware that you've been
18 anindividual defendant in the district court litigation
19 with Ackerman McQueen since the fall of 2019?
20 MR. CORRELL: ThisisMr. Correll.
21 Objection to form.
22 A. |--1 believed until that -- that recent
23 lawsuit that -- that Ackerman McQueen legidlation (sic)
24 was against the National Rifle Association.

25 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Okay. So prior tothe New
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1 York Attorney General's lawsuit that was filed in August

2 of last year, you were not aware that you were an

3 individua defendant in the litigation between Ackerman

4 McQueen and the NRA in Dallas, Texas federal court?

5 MR. CORRELL: ThisisMr. Correll.

6 Objection to form.

7  A. Asfaras| knew, that legislation (sic) was

8 against the National Rifle Association.

9 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Okay. So the answer to my
10 question s, no, you did not know that?

11 MR. CORRELL: Objection to form.

12 Mr. Correll.

13 A. Idon'tthink -- | don't think | did.

14 Q. (BY MR.MASON) When you -- when the New Y ork

15 AG action wasfiled and you decided to find a different
16 attorney, how did -- well, let me ask you this.

17 Mr. Correll was the one that ultimately agreed to

18 represent you. Correct?

1 A ldid

2 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
3 question.

4 Go ahead.

5 A. Yes |did.

6 Q. (BY MR.MASON) During that meeting, was there

7 adiscussion -- let me back up.

8 During that meeting, did members of --

9 representatives of Ackerman McQueen express concerns
10 with respect to the Brewer law firm?

11 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
12 Go ahead.
13 A. You know, the purpose of that meeting was to

14 try to find cost reductions for the budget going forward
15 from 2018 into 2019, and it was -- | remember the

16 Ackerman McQueen people were incredibly hostile. |
17 remember Angus McQueen pointing his finger at me and
18 saying, You're dead to me. Don't you understand it?

19  A. That'scorrect. 19 You're dead to me.
20 Q. And how were you introduced to Mr. Correll? 20 And al | wastrying to do was, given the
21 A. Hewasareference from -- from the Brewer 21 budget situation of the NRA and given the fact that |
22 firm. 22 felt that NRATV -- we had gotten to the point where we
23 Q. WhoisWit Davis? 23 were putting a huge amount into NRATV and we couldn't
24 A. Wit Davisisgeneral counsel to the board of 24 seethereturn --
25 directors. 25 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Mr. LaPierre, | asked you a
Page 370 Page 372
1 Q. How washe-- or doyou know who recommended | 1 very simple question.
2 Mr. Davisfor the counsel position to represent the 2 MR. CORRELL: Excuseme. Please --
3 board? 3 MR. MASON: No. | asked him avery
4 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form. 4 simple question.
5 Go ahead. 5 MR. CORRELL: Excuseme. Excuseme. I'm
6 A. I'mnotsure. It--I'mnotsure. It may 6 representing thiswitness, sir. Please hear my

7 have been the Brewer firm. It may not have. | know
8 that he was interviewed by -- | don't think |
9 interviewed him. Hewas interviewed by several members
10 of the board of directors, and they agreed to hire --
11 and they hired him.
12 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Areyou awarethat Mr. Davis
13 isaformer client of Mr. Brewer's?
14  A. | had heard that.
15 Q. Areyouawarethat Mr. Correll isaformer
16 partner of Mr. Brewer's?
17 A. | did know that, and | knew they had been on
18 the same side and on opposite sides of some cases over
19 theyears, iswhat -- in discussions with my lawyer.
20 Q. Mr. Marschall Smith, the former proposed CRO,
21 was he recommended by Mr. Brewer aswell?
22  A. | believehewas.
23 Q. Didyou attend ameeting in October of 2018
24 with Craig Spray and various representatives from

25 Ackerman McQueen?
Page 371

7 objection. My objection isthat you are not allowing

8 the witness to answer the question. You are

9 interrupting him because apparently you don't like the
10 answer.
11 MR. MASON: No.
12 MR. CORRELL: Itisnot for you, sir, to
13 decide -- you are not the judge here. Excuse me, sir.
14 It's not for you to decide whether the judge hears this
15 testimony or not. Okay. Please let him continue.
16 MR. MASON: Okay. Sojust soI'm clear,
17 your position is whatever question | ask, the witness
18 canjust talk for seven hours and | have no right to
19 stop that?
20 MR. CORRELL: | will suggest that you ask
21 your questions in a manner that promotes a succinct
22 exchange, and if you ask awhy question or an open-ended
23 question, you are inviting the witness to explain and to
24 giveyou afull explanation and not just the answer you
25 want.
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1 MR. MASON: And that's exactly what |
2 did. Let'smoveon.
3 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Mr. LaPierre, during that
4 October 2018 meeting, did representatives of Ackerman
5 McQueen express concerns to you about the Brewer firm?
6 A. Youknow, Ackerman McQueen had been -- ever
7 since we started down this course reduction -- course
8 correction and to look at every employee and every
9 vendor and see al their records, Ackerman McQueen had
10 been incredibly hostile towards -- towards Mr. Brewer.
11 And it had been incredibly hostile toward Mr. Brewer,
12 despite the fact that he was simply defending NRA on
13 litigation involving the Department of Financia
14 Servicesin New York state and other issues that might
15 arise from the AG and attempting to do the right thing
16 interms of looking at everyone's records. And we
17 didn't think anyone was doing anything wrong, just to
18 make sure that we were in compliance with New Y ork state
19 not-for-profit law.
20 Q. Did--
21 A. And there was an incredible amount of
22 hostility from the very start, early -- well, let me say
23 early on, maybe not from the very start, toward
24 Mr. Brewer.

1 And he just went into a complete rant.
2 Q. Soyou never heard Mr. Brewer, Josh Powell or
3 Steve Hart say anything about the FBI raiding Ackerman
4 McQueen's offices?
5 A. Ididnot.
6 Q. Around that sametime, did you ever hear from
7 Mr. Brewer or anyone else that Mr. Brewer was going to
8 have Ackerman McQueen brought up on RICO charges?
9 A. Idontthink I did. All weweretryingto do
10 wasdo areview of records so that if something was
11 being done -- and we didn't think anyone was doing
12 anything wrong -- that was out of compliance with New
13 York state not-for-profit law, we wanted to do exactly
14 what Attorney General Schneiderman told usto do, which
15 wasto self-correct, and that's why we were trying to do
16 the review. No other reason at all.
17 Q. Sowhendid -- when did you come to the
18 conclusion that Ackerman wasn't complying with the NRA's
19 request?
20 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
21 A. Weél, thiswent on throughout 2018. |
22 remember during the summer of 2019 numerous
23 conversations with Angus on the phone where he was using
24 al kinds of cusswords at me, you know, about you're

25 Q. Mr.LaPierre, in the summer around that 2018 25 not going to see our records and what's wrong with you
Page 374 Page 376
1 time period, were you aware of -- did you ever hear 1 and, you know, culminating at that meeting in October
2 anyone say that the FBI was going to raid Ackerman's 2 where he's pointing at me and saying you're dead to me
3 offices? 3 right now and don't you understand?
4 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the 4 And then it became very apparent to usin 2019
5 question. 5 that they had no intention of letting us see their
6 Go ahead. 6 records. Andin order -- we did what we had to do,
7  A. No, | didn't hear anyone say that. 7 which we sued for our right under the contract to -- to
8 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Soyou're not aware of 8 seetherecords.
9 Mr. Brewer stating that the FBI was going to raid 9 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Wereyou aware that the NRA

=
o

Ackerman McQueen's offices?
A.

[y
[

I'm not --
MR. CORRELL: ThisisMr. Correll. |
object to the form of the question.
A.
from the very first time | asked that we wanted to do a
review of the Ackerman McQueen records, | remember Angus

N
2w N

| am not aware of that. What | am aware of is

P
N o a

McQueen going off on arant on the AG in New Y ork has no

=
[oe]

right to see our records, the AG -- we're a Texas

=
©

company, an Oklahoma company, the AG will never see our

N
o

records. And -- and | remember they have no right to.

N
=

And | remember that he went off and then said
22
23 New York and the Department of Financial Services,

and you're acomplete fool to have sued the governor of

24 they're probably popping the champagne corks up there

25 because that's exactly what they want you to do.
Page 375

10 had conducted any audits of Ackerman around that time?

11 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form.
12 Go ahead.
13  A. | thought that the NRA was doing constant --

14 the NRA's treasurer's office was doing constant audits

15 of Ackerman every year.

16 Q. (BY MR.MASON) But wereyou awarethat in the
17 fall of 2018 and the beginning part of 2019, were you

18 aware that there was three different audits that the NRA

19 did of Ackerman McQueen's books and records?

20 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
21 Go ahead.
22  A. I'mawarethat there was -- there was

23 something that was done, alittle bit done by, | don't
24 know, some company that -- | know NRA was trying

25 numerous waysto look at the records. And to the best
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1 of my memory, those attempts never got far enough to --

2 to serve the purpose that NRA needed to to fulfill its

3 obligations, to look at all the records to seeif

4 something was out of compliance and, therefore, correct

5 it, that those -- I'm aware that a number of different

6 attemptswere made, but they never were allowed to get

7 to the point where they would fulfill the mission that

8 the NRA wastrying to achieve.

9 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Wereyou aware that between
10 August -- or September of 2018 and February 2019, there
11 was three separate audits that the NRA did where they
12 physically went to the Ackerman McQueen's business and
13 inspected their books and records? Are you aware of
14 that, asyou sit right here today?

15 A. Whenyou say the "NRA," what do you mean by
16 the NRA?

17 Q. TheNRA or the NRA's representatives.

18 Well, let me ask it thisway. Were you aware

19 that the Brewer firm went to Ackerman McQueen's offices
20 and conducted an audit?

21 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
22 Go ahead.
23  A. | --fromwhat | understand, that whatever any

24 of those attempts, they never were allowed to see the

25 amount of information they needed to see to fulfill the
Page 378

1 Q. Wereyou awarethat the NRA had retained

2 Forensic Risk Alliance in early 2019 to conduct an

3 audit -- athird audit of Ackerman McQueen's books and
4 records?

5 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
6 Go ahead.
7 A. |believel wasaware of that.

8 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Do you know how long that
9 audit lasted?
10 A. Idont. Alllknow isfromwhat |
11 understood, that was one of them that never was allowed
12 to get to the point where -- to see all the records
13 where they could do the diligence to say they had seen
14 everything and whether something needed to be corrected
15 or not.
16 Q. Andsowhat --
17 A. I think thelast thing NRA wanted to do was
18 sue Ackerman McQueen. We didn't believe they were doing
19 anything wrong. They had been along-time partner of
20 the association. They had done great work for the
21 association. And | just kept saying, look, we don't
22 think you've done anything wrong, we just need to see
23 therecords.
24 Q. Andasyou sit here right now, you don't

25 actually have personal knowledge of whether Ackerman
Page 380

1 duty to look at the records to make an assessment as to

2 whether there was something that needed to be

3 self-corrected. And there was tremendous frustration on

4 the part of the NRA and its attorneys that those

5 attempts were never allowed to get far enough to do the

6 diligence that the NRA needed to do to see if there was

7 something that was out of compliance that needed to be

8 corrected.

9 Q. (BY MR.MASON) How do you know that Ackerman
10
11
12
13
14

McQueen did not comply with the audits and the documents
that were being requested? How do you know that?

A. That getsinto conversations with attorneys.

It's conversations with attorneys.

MR. CORRELL: ThisisMr. Correll. |
instruct the witness not to answer the question as it
16 would require him to divulge attorney/client
communication with attorneys.

Q. (BY MR.MASON) And without going into any of
the communications, were those communications with the
20 Brewer law firm?

21
22 Q. The--thefinal audit -- do you know -- have
23 you heard of Forensic Risk Alliance before? Does that
24 ring abell for one of the audits?

25 A

A. They were.

I've heard that name.
Page 379

1 complied with the records request in al those three
2 audits, do you?

3 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
4 question.
5 A. I wasn't personaly on the scene, but | --

6 what | would be responding to would be conversations
7 with attorneys as to what they told me.
8 Q. (BY MR.MASON) And you're aware of
9 Mr. Brewer's relationship with the McQueen family.
10 Right?
11 A lam.
12 Q. Andyou're aware that there are -- you're
13 aware that there has been prior hostilities between
14 Mr. Brewer and certain members of the McQueen family.
15 Right?
16 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
17 A. I don't know the extent of the hostilities.
18 | -- al | know isthat Mr. Brewer married the daughter
19 of Angus McQueen, and | -- apparently there was some
20 unhappiness about that.
21 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Did you ever tell anyone from
22 Ackerman McQueen that Mr. Brewer was the only one that
23 could keep you out of jail?
24 A. No, | did not.

25 Q. Didyou ever tell anyone from Ackerman McQueen
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1 anything about going to jail?
2 A. No, | did not.
3 Q. Didyou evertell Mr. Powell that Mr. Brewer
4 wasthe only one that could keep you from going to jail?
5 A. No, | didnot.
6 Q. Didyou ever tell Steve Hart that Mr. Brewer
7 wasthe only person that could keep you from going to
8 jal?
9 A. No, | did not.
10 Q. Didyou ever tell Colonel North that
11 Mr. Brewer was the only person that could keep you from
12 goingtojail?
13 A. No, Il didnot. You can put al that down with
14 the intern story about -- that | did not have an affair
15 with either.
16 Q. Haveyou read the sworn testimony from those
17 variousindividuals that have stated that you did tell
18 them that? Have you read that?
19 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
20 A. No, | haven't, but | know the truth doesn't
21 seemto bind alot of these people these days, the last
22 year or two.
23 Q. (BY MR.MASON) So why should the Court
24 believe you as opposed to them?

23
24

Q. (BY MR. MASON) Mr. LaPierre -
MR. CORRELL: Excuseme, sir. Couldyou

25 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form. 25 let him finish his answer?
Page 382 I
1 A. Becauseit'sthetruth, asisthefact that | 1 MR. MASON: No, | want the original
2 didn't have an affair with theintern that they keep 2 question read back.
3 flowing out. 3 MR. CORRELL: ThisisKent Correll. |
4 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Let'stakealook at 4 object. Allow the witnessto finish his answer.
5 Exhibit 59, if we could drop that into the shared 5 MR. MASON: | am not going to let him

6 folder, please.
7 (AMc Exhibit 59 marked.)
8 Q. (BY MR.MASON) If you can let me know when
9 you havethisup, Mr. LaPierre.
10 MR. GARMAN: We have the first page up.
11 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Mr. LaPierre, have you seen
12 Exhibit 59 before?
13 A. Idon'tthink I have.

Page 383

6 just filibuster. Can | havethe original question read

7 back, please?

8 MR. CORRELL: Why don't we go off the

9 camerafor amoment and let's talk about this and maybe
10 we should call the judge and ask for some guidance.

11 MR. MASON: That would be great.

12 MR. CORRELL: Let'sdoit.

13 MR. MASON: Get him on the phone.

14 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We're going off the
15 record. Thetimeis2:17 pm.

16 (Break from 2:17 pm. to 2220 pm.)

17 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We're back on the

18 record. Thetime onthevideois2:20 p m.
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11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

relating to the Brewer law firm, do you believeit is
appropriate for the Brewer law firm to be conducting
investigation into that complaint?
MR. CORRELL: Objection asto form.
MR. GARMAN: Object to the form of the
question. Sorry.

A. | think if the -- if awhistleblower complaint
was against the Brewer law firm in particular, that it
would be -- you would find a neutral party to
investigate that.

Q. (BY MR. MASON) Let'sswitch gearsalittle
bit. So |l think we'vetalked alot -- you've talked a
lot about how during your time at the NRA, you've had
various concerns with respect to security and
confidentiality. Isthat fair?

A. Yes, that'strue.

Q. And were those concerns expressed to Ackerman
McQueen throughout your relationship with them?

MR. GARMAN: Object to the form.
Go ahead and answer.

A. That was -- yes, Ackerman McQueen was a
trusted partner, and | think one of the reasons NRA --
for example, some of NRA's donor information involving
Mr. Schropp was under Ackerman McQueen for

confidentiality reasons. Now that's one of the things,
Page 388
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MR. GARMAN: Okay. Let'slet him ask his
13 next question.

MR. MASON: Thank you, Mr. Garman.

5 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Mr. LaPierre, do you think
16 that it's appropriate for the Brewer firm to investigate
17 whistleblower complaints relating to the Brewer firm?

=
=

18 MR. GARMAN: Object to the form of the
19 question.
20 A. | don't know that -- I'm not aware that --

21 that there was a whistleblower complaint on the Brewer
22 firm at the time Brewer started running them down.

3 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Sure. Fair enough.

Let me ask you this, though. If there were --

25 if there was awhistleblower complaint at the NRA

N N
i
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15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

when we went through the course correction involving the
state of New Y ork and their nonprofit law, that we
understood we had to self-correct on, that that would be
out of compliance with New Y ork state not-for-profit
law. But we trusted the Ackerman McQueen firm for
sensitivity to leaks. We didn't want our ad buys
leaked. We didn't want our work product leaked. And we
trusted them as a partner in terms of security.

Q. (BY MR. MASON) Itwasareally good
relationship for decades that y'all had. Right?

A. That's correct.

Q. And you mentioned -- you mentioned
Mr. Schropp. Areyou -- are you specifically referring
to the credit card that Mr. Schropp had with Ackerman
McQueen?

A. | just know that some of Mr. Schropp's
expenses involving donors was under Ackerman McQueen.

Q. And you knew that prior to the relationship --
the fallout of the relationship. Right?

MR. GARMAN: Objection to form. | might
have just missed aword.
If you understand it, go ahead.

A. Yeah, | think | did know that, that they were

there for sensitivity reasons to protect the donor.

Q. (BY MR. MASON) Isit --
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1 A. Anditwasdiscovered that that was out of

2 compliance with New Y ork state not-for-profit law and it
3 was one of the things you were going to have to correct.
4 Q. Didyou know that the NRA was running

5 pass-through expenses through Ackerman McQueen prior
6 to--

7 A. No, | didn't.
8 MR. GARMAN: Hold on. Hold on.
9 Objection to form.
10 Go ahead.
11  A. No, I did not.
12 Q. (BY MR.MASON) You were not aware of that?
13 A. No.
14 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
15 A. No.
16 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Let'stakealook at

17 Exhibit 152, if we could get that |oaded.
18 (AMc Exhibit 152 marked.)
19 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Mr. LaPierre, whilethat's

20 getting pulled up, did you attend budget meetings with

21 Ackerman on an annual basis?

22 A. You know, most of the budget of Ackerman was

23 put together by -- by the treasurer's office in terms of

24 building the budget. | remember being in the 2018

25 meeting with Craig Spray with Ackerman about the budget.

1 A. Yeah | do.

2 Q. And then do you see, the third line down,

3 pass-through expenses? Do you see that?

4  A. Yeah, | doseethat.

5 Q. Doyou know what -- what those pass-through
6 expenseswere for?

7 MR. GARMAN: Object to form, object to
8 foundation.
9 A. Idon'tknow what they'refor. I've never

10 even focused on that before.

11 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Do you recal ever asking what
12 the pass-through expenses were?

13 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form,

14 objection to foundation.

15 A. ldon't. |didn't--asl sad, | did not

16 spend much time at al building the Ackerman McQueen --
17 if any, building the Ackerman McQueen budget each year.
18 | mean, | was focused more on what | just talked about

19 earlier. | would seethefina -- thefina figures,

20 but | don't remember being in awhole number of budget
21 meetings with Ackerman McQueen as their budget was put
22 together.

23 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Sol just want to be sure that
24 therecord isclear. It'syour testimony, Mr. LaPierre,

25 that you do not know what the pass-through expenses were

Page 390 Page 392
1 | -- most of my interaction with Ackerman McQueen wasn't 1 between Ackerman and the NRA?
2 from afiscal standpoint. It was from abranding, PR, 2 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form.
3 crisis management, speeches, me doing all the 3 Go ahead and answer.
4 television, the strategy on media campaigns, all of that 4 A. ldon't.
5 type of activity. Thefiscal relationship with Ackerman 5 MR. MASON: Let'sdo this. We can go off

6 McQueen tended to be managed by the treasurer's office.
7 Q. Ifyoucouldtake alook at Exhibit 152 and go
8 down to the second page. Let me know when you're there,

9 please.
10 MR. GARMAN: We have page 2 open.
11 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Do you recal, when you were

12 having some of your budgeting meetings with Ackerman,
13 looking at charts such as this one right here?

14 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.

15 Go ahead and answer it.

16 He's reviewing the document, Counsel.

17 A. | remember looking at some and involving

18 particularly NRATV and what the budget would be, and
19 | -- | don't remember all these specific charts. Likel

20 remember what First Freedom cost. | remember -- |

21 remember looking at something like thiswith Craig Spray
22 at the meeting | wasin with him.

23 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Okay. If you -- do you see
24 the second -- the second bucket of categories, Mercury

25 Group? Do you see that?
Page 391

6 therecord and see where we're at with time, and welll
7 go from there.
8 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We are off the record.
9 Thetime on thevideois 2:32 p m.
10 (Break from 2:32 pm. to 2:49 pm.)
11 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We are back on the
12 record. Timeonthevideois2:49 pm.
13 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Mr. LaPierre, you previously
14 testified that you didn't know anything about the
15 out-of-pocket expenses or the pass-through expenses, but
16 how did you -- how did you think that Tyler Schropp's
17 expenses were being handled with Ackerman McQueen?

18 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
19 Go ahead and answer.
20 A. | heardtalk somewhere of the fact that to

21 protect donor secrecy. And | can't even remember when |
22 heardit. It might have even been when we started the

23 course correction, safety check stuff, that his expenses
24 wereto protect donor -- donor security under Ackerman

25 McQueen. | can't remember the time when | heard it, but
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1 | know | heard it and | knew it was one of the things|
2 heard that needed to be self-corrected under New Y ork
3 state's not-for-profit law in terms of the course
4 correction.
5 Q. (BY MR.MASON) So prior to January of 2019,
6 did you know that Tyler Schropp had a credit card that
7 wasin the name of Ackerman?
8 A. Idon'tthink | did know that.
9 Q. If wecould take alook at Exhibit 70, please.

10 It should be, hopefully, in the folder.

11 (AMc Exhibit 70 marked.)
12 MR. GARMAN: We haveit.
13 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Mr. LaPierre, do you see

14 Ackerman depo Exhibit No. 70.

15 A. lamreadingit right now.

16 Yes, | do remember that.

17 Q. Soyou've seen -- you've seen Exhibit 70
18 before?

19 A. I'veseenthisletter before, yes.

20 Q. Didyou draft thisletter?

21 MR. CORRELL: Objection to form.
22 And to the extent that it would require you to
23 reveal any communications with attorneys, | would

24 instruct you not to answer.

allowed the full disclosure, we felt we had to go to
court and sue for our right to see the records under the
contract.

Q. If I represent to you, Mr. LaPierre, that the
board meeting in September occurred on or about
September 8, 2018, do you have any reason to dispute
that?

A. With the board meeting September 8th, | mean,
it would be the same thing.

Asaresult of what | just said, Ackerman
McQueen was also involved in what we, |, the NRA,
clearly considered an extortion attempt against me, that
13 if wedidn't -- if we did not -- if | did not resign,

14 they were going to smear me to the point where |

15 couldn't walk down the street, and | better withdraw
16 that lawsuit against them or the smear campaigh was
17 going to take place, and step down and let -- and let
18 Ollie North get reelected.

19 And | felt the end result of that extortion

20 attempt, if | went along with it, would be the ultimate
21 demise of the NRA, because the whole course correction
22 would have been thrown off course, the stuff that we
23 needed to do to be in compliance with New Y ork state
24 not-for-profit law. | felt the Brewer firm would be

© 00N UL WDN PR
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25  A. 1 will takemy lawyer's advice. 25 fired, which would -- which would cripple NRA's effort
Page 394 Page 396
1 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Soyou'renot goingtoanswer | 1 to self-correct and bein compliance with New Y ork state
2 the question yes or no whether you drafted this letter? 2 law and --
3 MR. CORRELL: Again, sameinstruction. 3 Q. Mr.LaPierre, you've answered my question.
4 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Areyou going to follow your | 4 MR. CORRELL: Excuseme, sir. Excuse me,
5 counsel's advice? 5 Mr. Mason. That was awhy question, and Mr. LaPierre
6 A. Ithinkit would be the wise thing to do. 6 had not finished his answer. Please allow him to
7 Q. Why did you send this letter to Mr. Dycio? 7 finish.

8 A. Because-- because Mr. Dycio has represented

9 the NRA and did bill the NRA quite a bit of money over
10 theyearsfor his services, and al of asudden he -- he
11 startsrepresenting a party that by this time had become
12 adverseto the NRA, and we felt it was not proper.
13 Q. Ifyougodowninthe--tothefirst
14 paragraph, about halfway down, do you see where you
15 state, The NRA and | have common legal interestsin the
16 litigation against Ackerman McQueen which crystallized
17 before the September board meeting and colored the
18 discussion that day?

19 Do you seethat?
20 A. ldo.
21 Q. What wasthe litigation against Ackerman

22 McQueen that you were referring to here?
23  A. Thefact that NRA had sued Ackerman McQueen
24 to -- for our right under the contract with them to see

25 their records and that we -- because we had not been
Page 395

8 A. Anyway, that's-- that's -- that's pretty much
9 it. | felt that therewasa--
10 The other thing is Mark Dycio had set in, as
11 it saysin thisletter, asthe NRA lawyer. Andwe
12 identified him as an NRA lawyer when the executive
13 session started at -- at one of Mr. Brewer's
14 confidential privileged briefings to the board of
15 directors. And there were only afew people alowed to
16 stay inthe room to hear Mr. Brewer's confidential
17 presentation, and one of them was Mr. Mark Dycio, that
18 was clearly identified by the secretary as allowed to
19 stay in the room.
20 Q. (BY MR.MASON) And that wasin September of
21 2018. Right?
22 A. |think that probably would have been right
23 when Mr. Dycio sat in the room, yes.
24 Q. Sothelitigation against Ackerman

25 crystallized before the September 2018 board meeting,
Page 397
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1 according to you. Right?
2 A. Itdid-- no, thelitigation against Ackerman
3 crystallized before the either April or May 2019 board
4 meeting. It was, | think, sometime in March or early
5 April we brought the litigation.
6 Q. Thenwhy -- why did you say that the
7 litigation against Ackerman crystallized before the
8 September board meeting and colored the discussion that
9 day?
10 A. Where-- I'm sorry, you'relosing me. | mean,
11 isitinthisletter you'rereferring to?
12 Q. Wejustreadit. First paragraph, about
13 halfway down. The NRA and | have common legal interest
14 inthelitigation against Ackerman McQueen, and then you
15 state, which crystallized before the September board
16 meeting and colored the discussion that day.

17 Do you seethat?
18 A. (Witnessreading to himself.)
19 Well, we were trying to see their records, and

20 they were not letting us see their records. And, you

21 know, Mr. Dycio at the September board meeting sat in on
22 the privileged, confidential briefing from Mr. Brewer as
23 an NRA attorney.

24 Q. Did--

25 A. And part of that was the effort on the part of
Page 398

1 part of the NRA going back to summer of 2018 to take a
2 full look at the Ackerman McQueen records. And | -- |
3 just knew that was ongoing, al the way through the rest
4 of theyear.
5 Q. (BY MR.MASON) And the basisfor your
6 knowledge was -- was based upon communications with
7 counsel. Do | understand that correctly?
8 A. That'scorrect.
9 Q. Andthat counsel being the Brewer firm.
10 Correct?
11 A. TheBrewer firm. Andin--in 2018 even --
12 even other counsels too, other counsels also.
513 Q. Before Mr. Brewer was hired in 2018, over the
14 course of the nearly 40-year relationship between the
15 NRA and Ackerman, do you recall any instance where
16 Ackerman denied the NRA access information or
17 documentation that they had requested?

18 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
19 Go ahead and answer.
20 A. |don't know because, as| said, my

21 relationship with Ackerman was primarily -- was actually
22 was -- redlly involved the brand, the marketing, the

23 advertising, the speeches, being the voice on

24 television, building the brand, the advertising

25 campaign, the PR strategy, the television appearances
Page 400

1 the NRA to look at all the records of all the vendors
2 and if we needed to self-correct on something.
3 Q. Wasthe NRA anticipating litigation against
4 Ackerman as of that September 2018 board meeting?
5 MR. GARMAN: So | am going to object to
6 the form of the question.
7 And to the extent your answer constitutes
8 attorney/client communications privilege, | am going to
9 instruct you not to answer. So, Mr. LaPierre, if the
10 only basisfor your answer is the conversations with
11 your attorneys, | instruct you not to answer, but
12 otherwise you can answer.
13 A. We-- weweregoing back and forth with the
14 attorneys on -- we had to see -- we had to have afull
15 disclosure of Ackerman McQueen's records, and at some
16 point if they wouldn't do that, NRA would end up having
17 to suefor it to exerciseits right under the contract
18 to seethe records.
19 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Wereyou aware that none of
20 the three audits that the NRA conducted of Ackerman had
21 occurred as of the September 2018 board meeting?

22 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
23 question.

24 Go ahead and answer.

25 A. | know that there was a constant effort on the

Page 399

and the preparation for that, speeches. | wasn't the
guy that would have been asking to see their recordsin
relation to anything. That would have been our
treasurer's office. So | wouldn't be aware of -- or
wasn't made aware of any of those types of issues.

Q. (BY MR. MASON) Let'sswitch gearsalittle
bit. You have testified that Colonel North had a
conflict of interest when he was attempting to conduct a

© 00 N o 0o b~ WN PP

review of the Brewer firm's bills because heis an

=
o

employee of Ackerman. Do | understand that correctly?
MR. CORRELL: ThisisKent Correll.
Objection to form.
A.
Colonel North started to interfere with our attempt to
do this safety check and this course correction and
getting in compliance with New Y ork state not-for-profit

e
w N P

| -- 1 -- | consistently was -- the more
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24 They are our largest vendor.
25

law, it became very clear that Colonel North was -- he

was doing an NRATV show on NRATV network for Ackerman
McQueen for NRA, and that he was adamant and hostile
toward Mr. Brewer, trying to get Mr. Brewer fired

constantly, to the point where | kept telling him you

need to stay out of this. | mean, you have a conflict

of interest. You are -- you work with Ackerman McQueen.

And | kept informing him over and over and
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1 over to back off. You know, you're out of your lane. | 1 Colonel North, | don't know -- | don't know whether to
2 mean, we're trying to do the right thing here for the 2 believethat or not, because -- | don't know that that's
3 NRA, and you're trying to derail -- derail al this. 3 actudly accurate.
4 And | even gave him letters telling him he had 4 Q. Doyou think it'simportant to actually read
5 aconflict of interest in terms of all of his attacks 5 what somebody testified to under oath in order to figure
6 on-- on Mr. Brewer. He was upset that Mr. Brewer was 6 out what actually happened?
7 involved in terms of the whole Russiaissue, trying to 7 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
8 check out all the factsin regard to that for us so we 8 question.
9 would -- we would be able to 100 percent understood 9 A. Ido,butl asoknow what happened in terms
10 if -- what the story was on all that, if there was any. 10 of my involvement with Colonel North. And | know that
11 On that Russian trip, | remember Olliein the 11 startingin -- in late -- in 2018, and really continuing
12 room with -- 12 through early 2019, Colonel North was doing everything
13 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Mr. LaPierre-- 13 he possibly could to derail Mr. Brewer. Get him fired,
14  A. I'msorry. I'msorry, I'll back off. 14 get aphony audit in terms of Mr. Brewer's bills, which
15 Q. Let'stakealook at -- let's take alook at 15 they dready -- which they told me they already had the
16 Exhibit 74. 16 guy picked whowasgoingtodoit, sol -- | knew it was
17 (AMc Exhibit 74 marked.) 17 asetup. And everything he could to derail -- derail
18 Q. (BY MR. MASON) Haveyou read the deposition | 18 Mr. Brewer, which, in my opinion, if he had succeeded,
19 testimony of Colonel North? 19 would have helped destroy the National Rifle
20 A. No, I havenot. 20 Association. Because we were doing a heck of ajob to
21 Q. Okay. Let'stakealook at Exhibit 74. Page 21 try to get in compliance with New Y ork state
22 156, please. 22 not-for-profit law, and Colonel North was basically
23 MR. GARMAN: 156 of the condensed? 23 laying down on the railroad track to prevent that
24 MR. MASON: Yes. 24 principled path of correction -- self-correction from
25 MR. GARMAN: Okay. We haveit. 25 succeeding and doing everything he could to derail it.
Page 402 Page 404
1 Q. (BY MR.MASON) If you'll look, Mr. LaPierre, 1 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Or hewasjust trying to
2 atline 6, do you see where the question is: When you 2 comply with hisfiduciary duties as the president of the
3 were in the process of trying to get information about 3 NRA. Right?
4 Mr. Brewer's engagement letters or Mr. Brewer'sinvoices | 4 MR. GARMAN: Objection. That's abit
5 or hishilling records, had you ever talked to anybody 5 argumentative.
6 at Ackerman McQueen about that? And he says no. 6 A. |don'tbelievethat for aminute, that that's
7 Do you see that? 7 what he wastrying to do. He never understood things
8 A. I'msorry. Whereareyou? 8 like the Lockton settlement. He -- he was constantly
9 MR. GARMAN: Counsel, do you mind if | 9 trying to get meto do thingsthat -- like we told him
10 point out the testimony on the page? 10 hecould look at Mr. Brewer'sinvoicesin Mr. Frazer's
11 MR. MASON: That'sfine. 11 office, just not the ones involving his employer, but he
12 A. (Witnessreading to himself.) 12 tried to get me to say that that whole Russiatrip along
13 MR. GARMAN: So he asked if you see this 13 with -- along with Jim Porter and a couple of the rest
14 testimony. 14 of them was an NRA trip, when it wasn't, when | had done

15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

A. Yeah, | seethat testimony. | don't know it
to betrue.

Q. (BY MR. MASON) Okay. Let'sgodowntoline
20 on the same page. Do you see where it says. Well,
let me ask you this. Did anybody at Ackerman McQueen
ever ask you to start looking into Mr. Brewer's invoices
or his engagements or hiswork for the NRA?

And what does Mr. -- what is Colonel North's
23 response?
24 A. Hesaysno, but | don't know that that --

25 based on what | know with my personal interaction with
Page 403

15 everything | could to stop it, including to get the

16 president to cancel and all the NRA staff. | told them

17 they couldn't go and no NRA money could be spent. |

18 mean, Colonel North was off base on -- on so many issues
19 that -- and I'll give an example. We were paying for

20 himto do histelevision show on NRATV --

21 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Mr. LaPierre, | appreciate --
22 you have answered my question.

23 Let's -- you've mentioned the extortion. Have

24 you reviewed the sworn testimony of Millie Hallow

25 relating to the alleged extortion?
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1 A. No, | haven't. | wasthere --

2 Q. Haveyou reviewed the -- the sworn deposition

3 testimony of Carolyn Meadows relating to the extortion?

4 A. No, | haven't.

5 Q. AndCarolyn Meadows s the president of the

6 NRA right now. Right?

7  A. That'scorrect.

8 Q. Andsheissomebody that you trust. Right?

9 A. Itrust Carolyn, youreright. | think she's
10 agood person.
11 Q. Haveyou ever reviewed the testimony of former
12 board member Dan Boren relating to the alleged
13 extortion?
14 A. | have not, although | know what Dan Boren
15 said about the fact he realized why Ackerman McQueen
16 couldn't let anybody see their records, because they
17 were charging NRA 100 percent for employees that were
18 actually working on other accounts.
19 Q. Haveyou read Dan Boren's deposition testimony
20 where he said that that is absolutely not true, what you
21 just said is absolutely not true?
22 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
23 question. Objection, foundation.

1 A. Colonel North talked on the phone to Carolyn

2 Meadows and Millie Hallow, and they wrote down what --
3 what he said. There were notes of what he said that

4 were relayed to about 35 members of the board of

5 directorsright after it happened.

6 Q. (BY MR.MASON) And then they testified under
7 oath about exactly what happened, and you haven't gone
8 back to read what they said, have you?

9 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form, asked and
10 answered.
11  A. I wasintheroom when they were going through

12 their notes with the 20 or 30 other board members.
13 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Youweren't on the phone,
14 though, were you?

15 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form, asked and
16 answered.

17 A. | wasn't onthe phone.

18 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Let'stakealook at Exhibit

19 65. Now you have previously testified that the -- well,

20 let'sdo this. Do you haveit up?

21 MR. GARMAN: It's opening now.

22 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Mr. LaPierre, you previously
23 testified that the Dallas house was Angus McQueen's idea

24 A. Wadl, | haven't read it, but that's -- that's 24 and that when you found out the NRA was going to pay for
25 what he said at the time. 25 it, you killed it. Isn't that true?
Page 406 Page 408

1 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Haveyouread Colonel North's| 1 A. That's exactly what happened.

2 deposition testimony with respect to the extortion? 2 Q. Okay. Let'stakealook at Exhibit 65.

3 A. I havenot, but I know what happened. 3 (AMc Exhibit 65 marked.)

4 Q. Don'tyou think it'simportant to review the 4 MR. GARMAN: Counsdl, isthe top of this

5 sworn testimony of all the people that were involved 5 redacted? | just want to make surel --

6 with the alleged extortion before coming to aconclusion 6 MR. MASON: ltis.

7 about it? 7 Q. (BY MR.MASON) If you scroll down to the

8 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the 8 first page.

9 question. 9 MR. GARMAN: Wedid.
10 A. Youknow, I livedit. 1 know what happened. 10 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Haveyou -- have you seen this

11 | know what they did. | mean, | don't -- | don't think

12 | need -- that'swhy | didn't read Josh Powell's book.

13 | don't need to read alot of fiction. | mean, these

14 people just make stuff up. | know what happened. |

15 livedit. | went throughiit. | wasthe one that stood

16 uptoit al and took al the heat.

17 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Just to be clear, nobody --

18 Dan Boren never called you and made any threats. Right?

19 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.

20 If you understand the question --

21 A. Hedid not -- hedid not call me.

22 Q. (BY MR.MASON) And just to be clear, Colonel

23 North never called you on the phone and made any
24 threats. Correct?

25 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
Page 407

11 email before, Mr. LaPierre?

12 A. | know that there was some email traffic

13 that -- let me look at this one.

14 MR. GARMAN: So he's asking a specific

15 question, though, that | want to know the answer to;

16 have you seen this email ?

17 A. Okay.

18 Q. (BY MR.MASON) And it was your understanding
19 that Ackerman was going to buy the Dallas house. Right?
20 That'swhat you testified to previously?

21  A. Hereiswhat thetruthis--

22 Q. Mr. LaPierre--

23 MR. GARMAN: Answer the question.
24 Q. (BY MR.MASON) It'sayes or no question.

25 You previously testified that you understood that
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1 Ackerman McQueen was going to buy the Dallas house.
2 |Isn't that true?
3 A. My initia understanding was that Ackerman
4 McQueen had an investment company, they invest in real
5 estate; that Angus McQueen said, Wayne, nobody can live
6 likeyou guys areliving, it's going to drive you crazy,
7 you can't stay on theroad all thetime. Likethe NRA
8 told me, to get out of town, they can't protect mein my
9 house.
10 Angus said hereiswhat | propose. Our
11 investment company will buy ahouse. You guys can use
12 it asasafe house. And he said nobody |oses money on
13 real estate in North Dallas, and by the way, we'll get
14 our Realtor to comein here -- or you go out and take a
15 look at some houses and everything.
16 And, you know, my understanding at that point
17 isit was going to be an Ackerman McQueen investment
18 and -- and we could use it as a safe house.
19 Q. Okay. Soon Exhibit 65, thisis an email from
20 Melanie Montgomery to Bill Winkler, and Susan LaPierre
21 your wifeiscc'd onit. Do you see that?
22  A. ldo.
23 Q. Andyou know Ms. Montgomery and Mr. Winkler,
24 don't you?

25 A. | know both of them.
Page 410

1 leaves me with afoundation objection.
2 And then, second, we are out of time. | will
3 let you finish this-- | will let you finish this up,
4 but those are one comment and one foundation objection.
5 A. Canl make acomment on this?
6 Q. (BY MR.MASON) No. I'mtrying to get through
7 my time, Mr. LaPierre.
8 If you go down to page 2, do you see the
9 bullet points? Do you see the last bullet point that
10 saysgolf cart if possible?
11  A. Yesah, | do seethat.
12 Q. Wasit your understanding that Ackerman was
13 going to be buying you a golf cart aswell?
14 MR. CORRELL: Objection to the form.
15 ThisisMr. Correll.
16  A. You know, thiswhole thing, Angus proposed it.
17 We were so beaten up, from the threats and everything
18 else, that we did go look at a bunch of houses. We did
19 look at this house. | understand some email traffic
20 went back and forth between my wife and Melanie
21 Montgomery and the retailer that's afriend of Melanie
22 Montgomery's. But the bottom line to the whole thing is
23 when | found out they wanted to use NRA money to buy
24 this-- thishouse, | killed it. No one elsekilled it.

25 Not the audit committee, not the co-committees, not the
Page 412

1 Q. Okay. AndsoMs. Montgomery says, Hi Bill,

2 Susan, copied here, and | spoke this morning. Following
3 are my notes from the conversation to assist you in the

4 offer documents -- in the offer document, excuse me.

5 Susan also plansto talk with Amy, soit's likely Amy

6 will have more information.

7 Do you see that?
8 MR. GARMAN: Counsdl, | am going to
9 object. | don't think we have foundation for this.
10 But go ahead and answer.
11  A. Yeah, | know that we --

12 MR. GARMAN: Do you seethis? He's

13 asking whether you see this.

14 A. ldoseeit.

15 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Let me ask you this,

16 Mr. LaPierre. Have you seen Exhibit 65 before?

17 A. | have.

18 Q. Okay. Soif you'll come down to at the bottom
19 of page 1, Ms. Montgomery says equipment/furnishings to
20 retain as part of offer. Do you seethat? And then

21 there'salist of bullet points that flows on to page 2.
22 MR. GARMAN: So Counsel, a couple of
23 things. | don't want to make this a speaking objection,
24 but it looks to me like he's seen this simply because it

25 was put in front of him at a deposition, which still
Page 411

1 board. | said, no, thisis not happening, and | killed

2 it.

3 And then my wife, | believe, informed Melanie

4 Hill that the whole thing was dead. And that's the end
5 of thestory. | killedit. | --

6 Q. (BY MR.MASON) If youlook alittle bit

7 further down the page, it says we need to discuss how to
8 acquire a social membership to the club. Do you see

9 that?
10 A.
11
12
13
14
15

| do see that.
MR. GARMAN: Again -- again, I'm going to
make a foundation objection.

Q. (BY MR. MASON) Wasit your understanding
that -- well, let me ask you this. Did you have any
conversations with Ackerman, either you or your wife
16 that you're aware of, relating to a social membership to
17 theclub?

18 A. Ididnt. My wifemay have. | was out on the
19 road doing NRA business here and there and there.
20 And this whole thing was afantasy. Angus

21 proposed it. We were so beaten up, we did look at
22 houses, but when | found out that -- that he wanted to
23 use NRA money, | said no and | killed it.

24 So | don't know why thisis such abig deal.

25 Itwasn't my idea. It was Angus' idea. It was-- the
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1 whole thing was a fantasy, and when | found out they 1 MR. GARMAN: Do you want abreak? Well
2 wanted to use NRA money, | killed it and nothing ever 2 dofive. Well do ashort break.
3 happened, and not a penny of NRA money ever ended up 3 MR. DRAKE: Come back on at half past.
4 being lost in this -- 4 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We're going off the
5 MR. GARMAN: Brian, did he answer your 5 record. Thetime on thevideois3:24 pm.
6 question to thisone? 6 (Break from 3:24pm.to 3:34 pm.)
7 MR. MASON: No, but I'll ask a couple 7 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We're back on the
8 more, and then we'll -- we'll wrap it up. 8 record. Thetimeonthevideois3:34pm.
9 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Mr. LaPierre, the NRA did send 9 EXAMINATION
10 Ackerman $70,000 with respect to the house. Right? 10 BY MR. DRAKE:
11 A. I understand that at some point Mr. Phillips 11 Q. Good afternoon, Mr. LaPierre. My nameis
12 office sent earnest money of $70,000 that was returned 12 Scott Drake. I'm one of the lawyers that represents the
13 after | got back from wherever | was and said this whole 13 Official Committee of Unsecured Creditors.
14 thing is not happening and killed the deal. 14  A. Good afternoon.
15 Q. Soyoudid not tell Mr. Phillips to send that 15 Q. Without getting into all the specifics, are
16 money to Ackerman? 16 you familiar just generally with what the Official
17 A. Ididnot. | think he probably got talked 17 Committee of Unsecured Creditorsisin a Chapter 11
18 into that by Ackerman. 18 case?
19 Q. Atthebottom, it saystwo vehicles will need 19 A. Moreorless| am, yes.
20 to be purchased prior to movein aswell. Do you see 20 Q. Okay. Well, obviously over the past two days
21 that? 21 you've been questioned by lawyers for the New Y ork
22 A. Yeah. | don't know anything about that. 22 Attorney General and Ackerman McQueen, and obviously
23 Q. Didyou -- did you expect that Ackerman was 23 you're familiar with both of those groups from other
24 going to be buying two vehicles aswell asthe 24 litigation. Right?
25 $6 million house? 25 A. Yes, | am.
Page 414 Page 416
1 A. Ididnot-- 1 did not expect anything. | 1 Q. Okay. AndI'll just represent to you,
2 didn't write this. The whole thing to me is afantasy 2 generaly the Official Committee of Unsecured Creditors
3 that never happened, that | didn't propose and | killed 3 isacommittee of certain creditors of the NRA appointed
4 it. And that'sthe whole story. 4 by the US Trustee who represent all the unsecured
5 And they sure have marketed it to the media, 5 creditors of the National Rifle Association in these
6 because the house ended up in the paper and then they 6 Chapter 11 cases. So --
7 tried to say that | suggested it, which | didn't. And 7 A. Okay. | understand.
8 they tried to say that they killed it, not me. And you 8 Q. SoMr. LaPiere, | may try to jump around a
9 know, theliesjust go on and on and on. 9 little bit because I'm going to try to be as quick as
10 MR. GARMAN: So, Brian, | think unless 10 possible. | have some follow-up based on some of the
11 you've got more on this, we're probably done. 11 things|I've heard over the past two days.
12 MR. MASON: Yeah, I'm just making sure | 12 So | want to first focus on the filing of the
13 don't have any -- any fina couple questions. 13 bankruptcy. Both Mr. Sheehan and -- asked you about --
14 All right. Mr. LaPierre, | am going to pass 14 Mr. Mason asked you about who all was told about the
15 thewitness at thistime. | appreciate the time. 15 filing and at what point. My questions are alittle bit
16 THE WITNESS: Thank you. Appreciateit. 16 different.
17 MR. DRAKE: Greg, do you guyswant to 17 I understand from your testimony that
18 take five minutes, or what's your preference? 18 obviously you personally were involved in the decision
19 MR. GARMAN: Yeah, Scott. Not to put 19 for the NRA to file. Correct?
20 words in your mouth, are we talking 30, 45 minutes? |Is 20 A. That'scorrect.
21 that what you're expecting? 21 Q. And the members of the SLC, which are
22 MR. DRAKE: That'swhat | expect. | 22 Ms. Meadows, Mr. Cotton, and Mr. Lee, they were involved
23 would be surprised if it was -- | mean, | expect it to 23 inthe decision aswell?
24 be under an hour and, hopefully, closer to 30 minutes 24  A. Yes, that's correct.
25 than an hour, but -- 25 Q. And]I believe you consulted with counsel,
Page 415 Page 417
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1 which includes people from the Brewer firm and also the
2 Neligan firm. Isthat right?
3 A. Thatiscorrect.
4 Q. Wasanyone else from the NRA, besides you and
5 the three members of the SLC, was anyone else at the NRA
6 involved in the decision to file for Chapter 11?
7 A. Notinthedecision. Andrew Arulanandam knew
8 about it because he had to be involved with getting --
9 getting press reaction prepared.
10 Q. Butasfar asthe people who actually made the
11 decision, it was just you and the three SLC members
12 along with advice of counsel?
13 A. That'scorrect, based on the authority
14 delegated to us by the board in their resolution.
15 Q. I wouldliketolook --
16 MR. DRAKE: | believel put, Greg, in the
17 folder, there's three exhibits, kind of halfway in the
18 folder below the AMc exhibits. Y ou should see UCC-1, 2
19 and 3. Do you have guys those?

1 it went out?

2 A ldid.

3 Q. Andso, Mr. LaPierre, | would just like to ask

4 about a couple of -- couple of things. If you'll scroll

5 down to the second page, you will see at the bottom

6 there's a subheading underlined that says building our

7 strengths. Do you see that?

8 A. Yes

9 Q. Andhereyou say, | have added Marschall Smith
10 asour chief restructuring officer. Do you seethat?

11 A. Yes, | do.
12 Q. Andsowereyou -- or let me strike that.
13 Who all wasinvolved in the decision to at

14 thistime add or contemplate adding Mr. Smith asthe
15 chief restructuring officer?

16 A. Wadll, ultimately | guess | made the decision,

17 but he was recommended by the -- by the Brewer firm.
18 Q. Didyou consult with any other potential

19 candidates besides Mr. Smith?

20 A. ldidnot.

21 Q. Didyou personaly have an understanding as
22 what a chief restructuring officer does in a bankruptcy?
23 A. Waell, my understanding is he was going to help
24 interms of looking at the organization, streamlining

25 it, looking for cost efficiencies and any way we could
Page 420

20 MR. GARMAN: Refreshing. Hold on.
21 Y eah, we got them.
22 MR. DRAKE: Pull up number 1, please.
23 (UCC Exhibit 1 marked.)
24 Q. (BY MR.DRAKE) Mr. LaPierre, canyou see UCC
25 Exhibit 1?
Page 418
1 A. Yesldo.
2 Q. Anddo you recognize thisas an email that
3 Mr. Frazer sent out on January 15 of 2021, with a
4 subject line of announcement from Wayne LaPierre.
5 A. Yes | do.
6 Q. Did-- didyou prepare the body of the email
7 that startswith "Dear Board of Directors'?
8 MR. GARMAN: Scott, give him one second
9 toreview it.
10 MR. DRAKE: Sure.

11  A. No. No, I did not prepareit. It was

12 prepared by Andrew Arulanandam, who was our director of
13 public affairs, working with Travis, who works public

14 affairs with the -- with the Brewer firm.

15 Q. (BY MR.DRAKE) Andas! understand it from

16 Mr. Frazer, the purpose of this message was to inform

17 the entire board of directors about the fact that the

18 NRA had filed for reorganization under Chapter 11 in

19 Dadllas. Isthat correct?

20 MR. GARMAN: | am going to object to

21 form.

22 But go ahead and answer.

23 A. Yes, thatiscorrect.

24 Q. (BY MR.DRAKE) Didyou -- | understand you

25 had other people prepareit. Did you review it before
Page 419

1 improve the -- the structure of the organization.
2 Q. Didyou personally believe, Mr. LaPierre, that
3 it would be beneficial for the NRA to have a chief
4 restructuring officer look at the type of things that
5 you just described?
6 A. If any of them could be improved as we go
7 through this process, | would be all in favor of it. So
8 | -- | thought it was a good idea to have someone else
9 take alook at it.
10 Q. Andlooking at the bottom line of page 2
11 there, did the -- did the things that you envisioned the
12 CRO might look at include the NRA's compliance efforts?
13 A. I wouldhopeso. | mean, wewould -- we want
14 everyoneto look at that. | mean, it's-- it isaway
15 of life around this place right now that has been
16 ingrained in every division. And yes, | would
17 definitely want him to look at that.
18 Q. Andwould you have also wanted Mr. Smith to
19 look into the NRA's corporate governance?
20 A. Yesh
21 Q. Andwhy -- why did you believe it was worth
22 having an outside person look at the NRA's corporate
23 governance in the context of a bankruptcy?
24 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.

25 Go ahead and answer.
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1 A. Wdl, I justthink -- and I'm kind of winging
2 it here on that, but if in any way our corporate

4 himtotakealook at it.
5

7 was not appointed as chief restructuring officer?
8 A. Youknow, my understanding isit was kind

10 announced and he was sitting in on meetings. And
11 all of asudden about 3:30, he acted sick or acrisis
12 had come up, and he said -- he said to me, | apol ogi

14 went back home. And then the following week, | fi
15 that he wasn't going to -- for whatever reason had c

17 it was some medical issue or something like that.
18 Q. Wouldyou personally, Mr. LaPierre, still

3 governance could be improved, we would -- we would want

Q. (BY MR.DRAKE) And Mr. LaPierre, what's --
6 what was your understanding of why Mr. Smith ultimately

of

9 strange, because he was here the day the bankruptcy was

then

Ze,

13 | have some emergency, | haveto leave. And he left and

nd out
ome

16 up, hewasn't going to be able to do thejob. | assumed

19 support having someone serve in such arole to look at
20 the NRA's compliance and corporate governance through

1 together, but it was put out by the two of them.

2 Everything on the website is done by the two of them.

3 Q. Andyoull seeinitlooks like the fourth

4 paragraph, it looks like there's a quote from you.

5 A. Yes | seit.

6 Q. Sodoyourecal whether you reviewed this

7 letter before it went out to the vendors?

8 A. Youknow, | review so many letters. |

9 probably took alook at thisone. | can't remember
10 specifically whether | saw -- | saw this one.
11 Q. Andas| understand from your testimony over
12 the past couple days, you -- you personally interact
13 with many of the NRA'svendors. Isthat right?
14  A. Well, theones| interact most with are the
15 onesinvolved in raising money and in the branding and
16 the image and the PR crisis management and the -- the
17 advertising and the -- | mean, all the things that --
18 that raise money for the NRA and project NRA's image and
19 keep usin the mainstream of American society, which
20 alows NRA to prosper and thrive.

2 Q. (BY MR.DRAKE) Andif theright person
3 found, that would include supporting a chief

4 restructuring officer?

5

question.

© 00N O

of it.
10
11
12
13
14

number 2.
(UCC Exhibit 2 marked.)
MR. GARMAN: All right. It'sup.

16
17

18 the NRA's vendors. Have you seen this before?
19 A. Yes | have. It wasput out by -- I'm sorry.
20 Q. No, goahead. | wasgoingto ask -- | think

21 you were anticipating my question. So who put thi
22

21 the bankruptcy process? 21 Q. And--
22 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the 22 A. Those werethe vendors.
23 question. 23 Q. --dothosevendorsplay animportant rolein
24 A. | wouldn't have any problem with anyone 24 allowing the NRA to prosper and thrive?
25 looking at NRA's structure and corporate governance 25 A. Theydo. They have.
Page 422 Page 424
1 through the restructuring process. 1 Q. Andisitimportant toyou, Mr. LaPierre, that

were

MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the

A. Yes. If they could come up with suggestions
that would improve this place, | would be dl in favor

MR. DRAKE: Greg, if you want to pull up

Q. (BY MR.DRAKE) Mr. LaPierre, if you want to
15 take asecond to look at UCC Exhibit 2, | will represent
to you this is something off the NRA Forward website
dated January 15, 2021, that is apparently aletter to

sout?

A. Thiswas put out on our website by Andrew
23 Arulanandam and Billy, who -- one of our staff people
24 that works with him. | think they also worked with
25 Travisin the Brewer team in terms of putting the copy

Page 423

2 through this bankruptcy the NRA can reorganize in away
3 that you can continue -- the NRA can continue to do
4 business with those vendors going forward?
5 A. Yes, with some of them.
6 Q. AndMr. LaPiere, if you'll look at the bottom
7 of page 1, second to last paragraph, it looks like the
8 first bold paragraph. It says, as part of the
9 restructuring, the NRA will propose a plan providing
10 payment in full of al valid creditors claims. Do you
11 seethat?

12 A. Thatiscorrect. We wanted --

13 Q. Goahead.

14  A. I'msorry.

15 Q. No, go ahead.

16 A. Wewanted to let the vendors know that.

17 Q. Andwasthat something that was personally

18 important to you, for the vendors to understand that

19 they would be paid in full for al valid creditor

20 claims?

21  A. That'scorrect. We thought that wasthe

22 proper thing to do, and we wanted to make it clear that
23 NRA was -- was on solid financial footing and that our
24 vendors would be paid.

25 Q. And Mr. LaPierre, that sentence also says that
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1 the NRA will propose aplan. Areyou generaly familiar
2 with the term "plan of reorganization"?

3 A. | amnot generally familiar with that term,

4 no.

Q. Okay. Wéll, do you have any awareness at all
that adebtor in a Chapter 11 proceeding files a
document that's called a plan of reorganization, which
isalega document under the bankruptcy code which

9 describes the proposed terms by which the debtor will
10 reorganize under Chapter 11 and then emerge from
11 bankruptcy?
12 A. Yes, | know we are -- we are in the process of
13 beginning to put that together.
14 Q. AndI understand from Mr. Frazer that
15 Mr. Néligan and hislaw firmis-- isworking on aplan
16 of reorganization for the NRA. Areyou personally
17 involved in -- in the development of the plan of
18 reorganization?
19 A. | have not been at this point, but | -- |
20 intend to be.
21 Q. Anddo you have an understanding as to who
22 elsefrom the NRA, not its outside advisers but actually
23 from the NRA, who isinvolved in the plan process?
24 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
25 Go ahead and answer if you can.

0 N o »

Page 426

1 just to sort of refamiliarize yourself. | know you've
2 looked at alot of documents. If you go back up to page
3 5, that's actually thefirst page. Thisisthe
4 January 7 resolution authorizing Chapter 11
5 reorganization and related retention of counsdl. Is
6 that right?
7 MR. GARMAN: Thisisthe resolution we
8 looked at.
9 A. Okay. Yes.
10 Q. (BY MR.DRAKE) Okay. So now the question |
11 haveison the next page, which is page 6 of 16. And
12 you'll see the second paragraph is the resolution that
13 empowersthe NRA and Sea Girt to retain the Neligan
14 firm. Correct?
15  A. Yes, that's correct.
16 Q. Okay. And soisthiswhat you'retalking
17 about, Mr. LaPierre, that ultimately it was your
18 decision along with the three members of the SLC?
19 A. Yes
20 Q. Allright. And sothe next question | haveis
21 the next paragraph then says resolved that the NRA and
22 SeaGirt shall retain the firm of Brewer, Associates &
23 Counselors as special counsel to prosecute and defend
24 certain non-bankruptcy matters during the course of such

25 Chapter 11 proceeding, including the pre-petition
Page 428

1 A, Wadl, I think it will be some of our -- our
2 key valued people that have been around here and we
3 place atremendous amount of trust in. Probably Sonya
4 Rowling, isour chief financial officer. Jason Ouimet.
5 Peoplelike Joe DeBergalis, who that we -- that help run
6 theassociation. | think they need to beinvolved in
7 it, people like that.
8 Q. (BY MR.DRAKE) Mr. -- Mr. LaPierre, you were
9 asked some questions by Mr. Mason about the retention of
10 the Neligan firm, and | believe that you met with them
11 sometimein Dallasin 2021. Isthat right?
12 A. That'scorrect.
13 Q. Who from the NRA actually made the decision to
14 engage the Neligan firm?
15 A. Thefinal decision was made -- | made it along
16 with the special litigation committee, Charles Cotton
17 and Willes Lee and Carolyn Meadows.
18 MR. CORRELL: Greg, if you could pull up
19 Exhibit 9, which I think was from the New York AG. Just
20 Exhibit 9. It'sthe petition.

21 MR. GARMAN: All right. We haveit.

22 MR. DRAKE: If you'll go to page 6 of

23 that, please.

24 MR. GARMAN: Okay.

25 Q. (BY MR.DRAKE) And Mr. LaPierre, if you want,

Page 427

1 matters presently handled by BAC. Do you see that?
2 A. ldo.

3 Q. Andsodol understand that as of January 7,

4 you were not intending to engage the Brewer firm for
bankruptcy matters; isthat correct?

MR. GARMAN: Objection. Counsel, you
referenced January 7. | think thisisaJanuary 15
document.

MR. CORRELL: Oh, thanks. | apologize.

Q. (BY MR.DRAKE) So asof the date of this
resolution, isit true that the NRA did not intend to
engage the Brewer firm for bankruptcy matters?

A. Waéll, we hired -- we -- we executed an
agreement with the Neligan firm and the Garman firm to
help us on bankruptcy matters specifically.

Q. Right. And | was going to ask about
Mr. Garman's firm.

18 At the time of thisresolution, it was just

19 the Neligan firm. Correct?

20 A. | believethat's correct.

21 Q. Andthen later, | believe the NRA realized it
22 needed additional --

23 A. Yes

24 Q. --I'll say manpower or attorney power, and so

25 Mr. Garman's firm was al so brought on to assist the
Page 429
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1 Neligan firm on bankruptcy matters. Right?

2 A. Thatiscorrect.

3 Q. Andsoareyou aware of any resolutions that

4 the NRA adopted that retained the Brewer firm for

5 bankruptcy matters?

6 A. | amnot aware of aresolution that the -- in

7 terms of the Brewer firm on bankruptcy matters, although

8 the Brewer firm isinvolved in litigation, all

9 litigation matters with us regarding New Y ork state and
10 regarding thiswholeissuein -- the whole issuein
11 general.
12 Q. Correct. And some of those arereferenced in
13 thelast line of thisresolution where it says,
14 including the pre-petition matters presently handled by
15 BAC?
16 A. Yes. Yes. Andthe Brewer firm continuesto
17 work with us on those issues.
18 Q. SoMr. LaPierre, changing focus, throughout
19 the last two days you've referenced things about
20 complete compliance or -- | don't remember your exact
21 words -- thankfully we have a court reporter -- but sort
22 of aself-examination that the NRA did. Wereyou --
23 were you personally involved in some of those efforts to

1 be avoided going forward in the future?
2 A. Ithink wehave -- | think we have done a
3 complete self-correction on anything NRA was doing that
4 was out of compliance with nonprofit law. We
5 self-corrected it.
6 | think that if you talk to peoplein this
7 building, compliance is now away of life for every
8 employee. There are -- there are procedures in place so
9 controls cannot be overwritten. And | think -- | think
10 if anyone interviews any of our financial people that
11 are heretoday, they will -- they will support what I'm
12 saying, including the ones that wereinitially
13 whistleblowers that thought things needed to be
14 corrected or might be out of -- out of -- out of line.
15 Q. Doyou -- do you think that the -- the
16 compliance efforts and sort of, | guess, public
17 reputation of the NRA with respect to compliance with
18 nonprofit laws is something that's important to NRA's
19 membership?
20 A. ldo. I think that -- | think it'simportant
21 totheorganization. | think it'simportant to the
22 membership. | think that's the type of organization
23 that they want to be a member of.

24 do kind of the self-examination and correction efforts 24 MR. CORRELL: Greg, could you pull up UCC
25 that the NRA undertook over the past couple of years? 25 3?
Page 430 Page 432
1 A. Yes, | was. | wasthe onethat -- that 1 MR. GARMAN: Yes.
2 started it. | wasthe one that insisted the NRA go down 2 (UCC Exhibit 3 marked.)

3 that path. Regardless of who liked it or who didn't
4 likeit, we were going to go down that path. And we
5 were going to look at every employee, every vendor,
6 everything NRA was doing. If there was something we
7 were doing that was not in compliance, we were going to
8 sdlf-correct and become fully compliant with -- well,
9 New York not-for-profit law at that point. And |
10 personally took the lead from the time we started down
11 that path, virtually every day, insisting that that's
12 the path we're going down whether you like it or not.
13 Andif you don't likeit, sorry, but thisis where we're
14 going.
15 And that's what we've done. And we never --
16 we never let anyone divert us from going down that path,
17 whichiswhy, as| said, we were so proud that we --
18 wherewe aretoday. | mean, we got atotally clean
19 audit with -- from abrand new audit firm that knew all
20 theissues and everything else in 2019, and we have
21 completely turned around the financia picture of the
22 NRA in 2020.
23 Q. And Mr. LaPierre, what gives you confidence
24 that the -- the allegations that were made afew years

25 ago have been addressed so that any -- any missteps can
Page 431

3 Q. (BY MR.DRAKE) So Mr. LaPierre, if you look
4 at thefirst page of this document, you'll seeit'sa
5 filing in these Chapter 11 cases. | will represent to
6 you that it's something filed by the debtors, which is
7 titled at the top of page 2, omnibus opposition to
8 Ackerman McQueen -- and I'm paraphrasing -- motion to
9 dismissor in the dternative for atrustee, and also
10 the State of New Y ork's motion to dismiss or in the
11 alternative atrustee, and also the District of
12 Columbia's motion to appoint a Chapter 11 trustee.
13 Mr. LaPierre, | just don't know. Do you -- do
14 you review legal filings like this on behalf of the NRA
15 or do you rely on others at the NRA to do that?
16 MR. GARMAN: Scott, this one might be a
17 little messy. Would you mind if we have 30 seconds to
18 talk about the privilege before you --
19 MR. DRAKE: Yeah. No, that'sfine.
20 MR. GARMAN: | am going to put you on
21 mute then, or we can just go off the record.
22 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We are going off the
23 record. Thetimeon thevideois4:03 p m.
24 (Break from 4:03 p m. to 4:05 p.m.)

25 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We are back on the
Page 433
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1 record. Thetime on the video is 4:05 p.m. 1 Mr. Schneiderman's warning, that's referring to what
2 Q. (BY MR.DRAKE) Mr. LaPierre, we're back on 2 you'vetestified to about the past two days?
3 therecord after abreak for you to consult with 3 A. That's correct.
4 counsel. 4 Q. Andl believe-- again, I'll paraphrase, but
5 MR. DRAKE: Could you read the question 5 in your words, led to the NRA deciding to take alook at
6 back to him, please, Julie? 6 itsown governance. Isthat generaly what you've been
7 THE REPORTER: Yes. 7 referring to?
8 (Requested testimony read.) 8 A. Yes. That'swhat Attorney General
9 A. Yes | -- | have beenin conversation about 9 Schneiderman advised usto do. He, as| said -- and
10 this document in terms of counsel describing it to me 10 I'll keep it short. He said there was a plan that had
11 what it contained. It was -- this was prepared by 11 been cooked up by some of the anti-NRA NGOs and they
12 counsel and in discussion also with key NRA employees. 12 were -- to improperly use the government of New Y ork
13 That's how it was put together. 13 state to target the NRA and attack us, and he thought it
14 Q. (BY MR.DRAKE) Okay. And Mr. LaPierre, 14 was an improper use of government. He said but they're
15 just -- just so you're clear -- and | think after 15 going to doit. And he said there's tremendous pressure
16 getting towards the end of day two, you probably have an 16 todoit. And hewent on to say that -- although he
17 understanding. Like Mr. Sheehan and Mr. Mason, | am not 17 disagreed with the NRA on the Second Amendment issues
18 trying to get into your conversations with the NRA's 18 altogether, he just thought it was an improper use of
19 lawyers or your personal counsel. So I'm sure they'll 19 government. And he said, but | think it's going to
20 caution you if they think the question calls for it, but 20 happen, and you would be wise -- New Y ork state law, a
21 just so you know, | don't want to know about those 21 lot of it's been changed in recent years. He said
22 communications. 22 there'salot of people out of compliance, probably no
23 But do you understand -- again, | know you're 23 oneisin full compliance, but that doesn't matter
24 not alawyer, but you understand that certain parties, 24 because they're going to target you guys, so you really
25 including Ackerman McQueen and the State of New Y ork and 25 ought to take afull look at the entire organization and
Page 434 Page 436
1 the District of Columbia, have moved either to dismiss 1 make sure you're in complete compliance with New Y ork
2 the bankruptcy entirely or for the appointment of what's 2 state not-for-profit law, because there's a safe harbor
3 called aChapter 11 trustee. Do you understand that 3 provision, if you do that and you self-correct, your
4 generally? 4 organization will be in good shape.
5 A. Yes | do 5 That made perfect senseto me. And from that
6 Q. I wouldliketo ask you about a couple of 6 moment forward, | decided that's the course we're going
7 statementsin here. If you'll go to page 13 of 54. Do 7 to go down, whether peoplelikeit or not, and thereis
8 you see, Mr. LaPierre, in the middle there's a heading, 8 nothing that is going to stop us from going down that
9 Roman numera |1, jurisdiction? 9 course.
10 MR. GARMAN: I'm sorry. Scott, are 10 MR. GRUBER: ThisisMike Gruber.
11 you -- oh, yeah, yeah. We're on it. 11 Objection to form for every -- al the hearsay. Thank
12 MR. DRAKE: Okay. 12 you.
13 Q. (BY MR.DRAKE) So Mr. LaPierre, if you see 13 MR. DRAKE: Just so I'm clear, Mike, are
14 right above that heading jurisdiction, the paragraph 14 you talking about my question or his answer?
15 aboveit starts with a sentence that says the facts are 15 MR. GRUBER: I'm talking about his answer
16 that the NRA, acting in the wake of Mr. Schneiderman's 16 was--
17 warning -- and then it continueson. Do you see that 17 MR. DRAKE: Okay.
18 paragraph? 18 MR. GRUBER: -- nothing but three minutes
19 A. Yes Yes | do. 19 of hearsay. Thank you.
20 Q. Okay. And Mr. LaPierre, you've testified | 20 MR. DRAKE: Okay. | just--1 didn't
21 think multiple times over the past two days about 21 know.
22 Mr. Schneiderman's call to you. 22 Q. (BY MR.DRAKE) Mr. LaPierre, do you seethe
23 A. Actualy it was Mr. Tom King on our board of 23 third line of that paragraph? It saystook stepsto
24 directors. 24 redress or obviate nearly every item the NYAG citesin
25 Q. Okay. | apologize. Isthat reference here 25 itsdissolution lawsuit. Do you see that?
Page 435 Page 437
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1 A. ldo

2 Q. Inyour persona opinion, do you think the NRA

3 has, in fact, taken steps to redress or obviate nearly

4 every itemin the New York AG lawsuit?

5 A. ldo. Ithink we have-- we have

6 self-corrected, and we continue to -- if anyone -- we

7 encourage people to step forward if they see anything

8 else. But, yes, | believe we have taken every step

9 possibleto -- to self-correct and to bring NRA into
10 full compliance.
11 Q. Do you have any concerns, sir, that -- that
12 many of the people who were in management positions at
13 the NRA at thetime prior to the New York AG lawsuit,
14 that the allegations or concern are still in management
15 positions at the NRA today?

16 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
17 Go ahead and answer.
18 Q. (BY MR.DRAKE) Doesthat give you any

19 concern?

20  A. |think the peoplethat are -- we talked about

21 some of them. | think that the people herethat arein

22 management positions are doing agood job and they're --
23 they're doing avery good job, and | think you see that

24 in the performance of the organization over the last

election every year, and they report -- they answer

directly to the members, and they have to run for

election. | think that gives us a pretty independent

board that expresses the will of the membership, which

is ultimately what makes this organization successful.

So | -- | know it's the subject of debate, but

I know there are alot of people that think, well, the

NRA board ought to be 15 or 20 people rather than as

largeasitis. | kind of believe the size of the board

isastrength of the organization, because the strength

of the organization is ultimately based on the

membership and the board representing that membership.
Q. And Mr. LaPierre, | have another question

14 about the membership. If you'll scroll down to page 47,

15 specifically page -- excuse me -- paragraph 83. If

16 you'll read that paragraph 83 and let me know when

17 you've had achanceto read it, please.

18 A. l'vereadit.

19 Q. Do you agree, Mr. LaPierre, with this second

20 sentence that says the removal of the members' selected

21 leadership and the installation of athird-party trustee

22 appointed by the government will have a devastating

23 impact on the NRA's ability to collect dues and raise

24 donations from its members? Do you agree with that?

© 00N UL WDN PR
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25 year and a half. 25 MR. THOMPSON: Thisis Stephen Thompson.
Page 438 Page 440
1 Q. Mr.LaPiere, if you could turn to page 24 of 1 Objection to form.
2 54. 2 A. lactuadly do agree with that. It -- it'sone
3 MR. GARMAN: Okay. We're on page 24. 3 of my biggest concerns, we talked about alittle bit
4 Q. (BY MR.DRAKE) Do you see paragraph b? 4 earlier, interms of succession. As| get toward
5 A. Yes | do 5 retirement, the fact that -- the fact that | have been
6 Q. Soyoucaneither -- | canread it, or if you 6 thevoice of the NRA literally for 40 years out in front
7 want to just take a minute to read it, read the few 7 of the membership, my signature raises hundreds of
8 sentences. 8 millions of dollarsfor the organization. It has
9 A. Yeah. Okay. Yeah, I'll read it right now. 9 actually raised billions of dollars for the
10 Yes, I've read paragraph b. 10 organization, based on the fact that they've seen me out
11 Q. Okay. Doyou agree, Mr. LaPierre, with the 11 therefighting and they've -- for what they believe in
12 last part of that, that the NRA would benefit from 12 and for their constitutional rights, and therefore, they

13 modernization to ensure its continued existence as a

14 going concern for the benefit of the NRA's creditors and
15 members?

16 A. Wadll, the NRA certainly can benefit from a--
17 from alook at any way we can be more efficient and

18 wecan -- dl of that. | think -- the oneissue | would

19 take -- thisis a subject of debate and we'll probably

20 debate it aswe get into this reorganization plan -- is

21 when you talk about the charter and the -- and the board
22 in particular.

23 | -- I think one of the strengths of the

24 NRA -- some people think it's aweakness -- is the fact

25 that we have 76 board members. A third of them run for
Page 439

13 are responsive based on -- based on -- based on the

14 relationship that | formed with them, based on that

15 they -- well, I've been with them probably 35, 40 years
16 on the road with them also.

17 So if you were to put atrustee, or someone to

18 put atrustee over this organization, you're going to

19 massively crash the amount of revenue coming into this
20 organization and which will have a devastating impact on
21 it. | mean, one of the reasons -- one of the ways we

22 were so successful last year in reducing our debt by 40
23 million and the NRA -- including accounting and paying
24 off theloans, and NRA ran 33 million in the black, was

25 that even with COVID we came within 7 percent of our
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1 preCOVID budget projection on revenue. And that was
2 phenomenal, given the COVID year and if you look at what
3 happened to other nonprofits.
4 And one of the ways we did that was to trust
5 that the membership placed -- places -- placed in the
6 relationship. And I'm not saying -- heck, everybody is
7 dispensable. | mean, | am not trying to build myself up
8 or anything else, but part of that is the relationship
9 over 40 yearsthat | built with those members and the --
10 and then the ability to turn that into dollars, whether
11 it'semail, direct mail or -- or digital communication
12 with them. A trustee would be horrible for the future
13 of the National Rifle Association in terms of
14 fundraising.
15 Q. (BY MR.DRAKE) Mr. LaPierre, with respect to
16 your views on the board and the 76 member board and the
17 fact that, you know, athird of the board sits for
18 election every year, how are the board candidates placed
19 up for nomination?
20 A. They -- there'stwoways. Thereisa
21 nominating committee of the board of directors that
22 nominates so many candidates each year. They usually
23 nominate -- | think 25 are elected. They usually
24 nominate somewhere between -- let's say 26 and 32 or 33

25 qualified candidates after looking at al the petitions
Page 442

1 York Attorney General is done with questioning for

2 Mr. LaPierrein hisindividual capacity.

3 MR. GARMAN: Brian, just confirming? |

4 think it'saformality. We're out of time, but --

5 MR. MASON: Yeah, that'sfine. We have

6 some 30(b)(6) time, so --

7 MR. GARMAN: Yeah. Okay. Do you guys

8 have an estimate of how long you -- I'm not going to

9 hold youtoit. | think you've got two hours and
10 one minute, by my calculation, left of 30(b)(6) time.
11 Do you guys have an estimate of how long you're going to
12 go?
13 MR. THOMPSON: Yeah, Greg, thisis
14 Stephen. I'm estimating about a half hour for my
15 questions.
16 MR. MASON: And | -- | probably will not
17 be more than that as well.
18 MR. GARMAN: Okay. Let'stake abreak
19 then. It sounds like we could have up to an hour. And
20 what do we say? Let'stake 15 minutes.

21 MR. THOMPSON: Thank you.

22 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We are going off the
23 record. Thetimeonthevideois4:23pm.

24 (Break from 4:23 pm. to 4:43 p m.)

25 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We're back on the

Page 444

that come in and recommendations. And then someone can
also run for the board of directors by gathering a
certain amount of petition signatures and so they -- and
be placed on the election ballot independently of the
nominating committee.
Q. How many people sit on the nominating

committee, if you know?

8 A. It'selected by our board of directors every

9 year, and it'susualy -- | think it requires six board
10 members and three nonboard membersto beonit, |
11 believe.
12 Q. And each of those membersis elected by --
13 actually by the board?
14  A. That'scorrect. It'selected by the board of
15 directors.

~N o O WN B

16 MR. DRAKE: Mr. LaPierre, | appreciate

17 your time, and at thistime I'll pass the witness.

18 THE WITNESS:. Thank you. | appreciate
19 it.

20 MR. GARMAN: Weéll, hearing no one come

21 forward, doesthis -- does this conclude the deposition
22 by the notice -- by the parties who noticed today?

23 MR. THOMPSON: Mr. Garman, thisis

24 Stephen Thompson just to confirm that we do still have

25 some 30(b)(6) questions for Mr. LaPierre, but the New
Page 443

1 record. Thetime onthevideois4:43 pm.

2 EXAMINATION

3 BY MR. THOMPSON:

4 Q. All right. Good afternoon, Mr. LaPierre.

5 A. Good afternoon.

6 Q. My nameis Stephen Thompson. | aman

7 assistant attorney general in the New Y ork State Office
8 of the Attorney General. So we are switching gears. |
will now be asking you some questions in your capacity
10 asacorporate representative for the NRA for the

11 30(b)(6) deposition.

12 A. Okay.

13 Q. Soif -- there should be a new exhibit,

14 Exhibit 11, in the shared folder. If you could please
15 let me know when you have that.

©

16 (Exhibit 11 marked.)
17 MR. GARMAN: I'm pulling it up now. One
18 second, Stephen. All right. It'sup.

19 Q. (BY MR.THOMPSON) So Mr. LaPierre, if you
20 would please scroll down to page 7 of 8 in this PDF --
21 oh, I'm sorry. Actualy, to -- to the last page.

22 A. Okay.

23 Q. Soif you could please take a moment to read

24 topics 12, 13 and 14. And just let me know if | am

25 correct that you are prepared to act as a corporate
Page 445
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1 representative for the NRA with respect to these three

2 topics.

3 A. Yes. Yes | am.

4 Q. Okay. Great. And canyou tell mewhat you

5 did to prepare for your 30(b)(6) deposition?

6 A. |takedwith our counselor here, Greg Garman,

7 and | also talked with -- we talked with Andrew

8 Arulanandam, our public relations director at the

9 National Rifle Association. And my attorney satin on
10 it, but the preparation was actually done with
11 discussion between Mr. Garman and Mr. Arulanandam and
12 myself.
13 Q. Okay. And other than Mr. Garman and
14 Mr. Arulanandam and | believe you said -- was that Kent
15 Correll, your individual lawyer was there for at |east

1 guess.

2 A. Idon'tknow.

3 Q. (BY MR.THOMPSON) Okay. And | believe that

4 you said that the special litigation committee was

5 involved. Were all three members of the specia

6 litigation committee involved?

7 A. Yes they al wereinvolved. They all were

8 aware of what we were doing.

9 Q. Okay. Andthenthe-- the, sort of,
10 incorporation documents were ultimately filed by the
11 NRA'schief of staff Vanessa Shahidi. Isthat correct?

12 A. That'scorrect.

13 Q. Okay.

14  A. That'scorrect.

15 Q. Soturning now to topic 13, there should be a

16 part of it? 16 new exhibit, Exhibit No. 12, in the share folder. If
17 A. Hesatinonit, but didn't -- didn't say 17 you could please let me know when you have that.
18 anything. 18 (Exhibit 12 marked.)
19 Q. Okay. Other than -- other than those folks, 19 MR. GARMAN: Okay. We have Exhibit 12.
20 did you speak with anyone elsein preparation for your 20 Q. (BY MR. THOMPSON) Mr. LaPierre, do you
21 30(b)(6)? 21 recognize this document?
22 A. |didnot. 22 A. It'sthe minutes of aboard of directors
23 Q. Anddidyou review any documentsin 23 mesting.
24 preparation for your 30(b)(6)? 24 Q. Okay. And let mescroll down and giveyou a
25 A. 1didnot. 25 PDF page number here.
Page 446 Page 448
1 MR. GARMAN: Counsdl, just to be clear, | 1 A. Thankyou.
2 put the noticesin front of him, but that's all. 2 Q. If you could please scroll down to PDF page 7,
3 MR. THOMPSON: Okay. Thank you. 3 whichis page 5 of the minutes. And if you see towards
4 Q. (BY MR. THOMPSON) Sol am going to -- 4 the -- halfway down the page, it starts, The chair
5 A. Thesetopics, yeah. 5 called for if new business. Mr. Frazer stated that he
6 Q. Allright. Sol am-- 6 had received one resolution, as follows.
7 A. I'msorry. Thenotice, yes, these topics were 7 Do you see that?
8 put in front of me. 8 A. Yes | do.
9 Q. Right. Okay. Thank you. 9 Q. Andistheresolution that follows the
10 So starting first with topic 12, which was 10 resolution that formalized the delegation of corporate
11 related to Sea Girt, can you tell mewho at the NRA was 11 authority by the NRA board of directors to the special
12 involved in the formation of Sea Girt? 12 litigation committee?
13 A. lwasinvolvedinit and the specia 13  A. That'scorrect. Theboard of directors needed
14 litigation committee, which is Carolyn Meadows, Charles | 14 to -- in order for the special litigation committee to

15 Cotton and Willes Lee. And we worked with counsel on it
16 intermsof -- interms of setting it up and filing.

17 Q. And canyou tell me, without providing me the

18 substance of any of your communications, which counsel
19 wereinvolved?

20 A. TheBrewer firm.
21 Q. Wasthe Neligan firm involved?
22 A. TheBrewer firmwasinvolved. | don't -- |

23 know the Brewer firm wasinvolved. The Neligan firm --
24 this goes back to November.

25 MR. GARMAN: If you don't know, don't
Page 447

15
16
17
18
19

represent the board as awhole, the board needed to
officialy bless the creation of the special litigation
committee where they would have the authority of the
board behind them.

Q. Atthetime of this-- this meeting of the
20 board on January 7th, did the board of directors have
21 any vacancies?
22 A. I'mnot sure whether they did or not. |
23 don't -- my answer is| doubt it because what happensis
24 if someone drops off, the next person in line moves up

25 and fillsthat spot. And there are usualy three or
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1 four or five peoplein line, where if someone were to 1 special litigation committee, which, as| said, are the
2 have a health problem or something and drop off, the 2 three officers of the board.
3 next person would move up. 3 Q. (BY MR.THOMPSON) Okay. Isitthe NRA's
4 Q. Gotit. 4 position that this bankruptcy is an additional legal
5 A. Sol don't think there was a vacancy. 5 proceeding arising from the same facts, circumstances or
6 Q. Andthatiswhat happened after Mr. Liptak 6 alegations as sub Romani, ii and iii in the resolution
7 resigned. Isthat correct? 7 on page 6 of this Exhibit 11 -- or 12? I'm sorry.
8 A. Thatiscorrect. 8 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
9 Q. Okay. Soturning to the -- what is the page 6 9 question. | object that | believeit's outside the
10 of the minutes, page 8 of the PDF, still staying within 10 scope of the 30(b)(6) witness.
11 thisresolution -- well, before | get to this, can you 11 But answer if you can.
12 tell me what role does the special litigation committee 12 A. I'msorry, could -- it'skind of the end of
13 have with respect to this bankruptcy? 13 theday. Could you repeat the question, please?
14 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the 14 Q. (BY MR.THOMPSON) Sure.
15 question. 15 Isit the NRA's position that this bankruptcy
16 Go ahead and answer, if you can. 16 is-- fallswithin the scope of sub Roman iv of this
17 A. | have been consulting them all the way 17 resolution?
18 through on this because they also represent the three 18 MR. GARMAN: | incorporate the same
19 officers of the National Rifle Association. And so they 19 objection.
20 are -- they have been a co-partner with the EVP's office 20 Answer to the extent you can.
21 in--inthisprocess. 21 A. Wadll, thisflows out of the fact that NRA came

22 Q. (BY MR.THOMPSON) Does the special litigation | 22 to believe that the New Y ork state was not afair
23 committee have the authority to direct you with respect 23 playing field for the organization in terms of it to

24 to -- direct you as executive vice president with 24 operate. And the organization looked for avehicle to
25 respect to the bankruptcy? 25 facilitate a possible transition. Sea Girt was formed.
Page 450 Page 452
1 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the 1 And -- and with the approval of afederal judge after we
2 question. 2 file Chapter 11, we could hopefully find a home for the
3 Go ahead and answer if you can. 3 NRA with afairer playing field from a-- well, let's
4 MR. CORRELL: Yeah, andif | could just 4 just say afairer playing field for the organization to
5 get the same agreement on objections, that | will be 5 grow and prosper in. Soit -- | mean, as| said
6 joining them without having to say it separately. Is 6 earlier, we have been looking, talking for quite awhile
7 that acceptable to you? 7 about, even before any of this came up about finding
8 MR. THOMPSON: Yes. Thank you, 8 another home for the NRA out of New Y ork state or even
9 Mr. Correll. 9 finding another home for our main facility here where
10 A. lamnottryingto beevasive. That'salegal 10 most of our employees are, amore favorable area to
11 question that | am not sure | know the answer to, to 11 operate out of, and it was the outgrowth of all of that.
12 tell you thetruth. I've donethis as a partner with 12 Q. (BY MR. THOMPSON) So just because | want to
13 them all the way through it, and | -- that would be a 13 make surethat | have -- to go back to my question, my
14 lega opinionthat | -- I don't know the answer to in 14 question iswhether the NRA believes that this
15 terms of direct. 15 bankruptcy falls within the scope of sub Roman iv of
16 Q. (BY MR. THOMPSON) Okay. Isit fair to say 16 thisresolution?
17 that the special litigation committee has the authority 17 MR. GARMAN: Hold on. Objection to form.
18 to supervise the bankruptcy? 18 Objection, | believeit falls outside the scope of
19 MR. CORRELL: Again, Mr. Correll. |1 am 19 question 13.
20 objecting asto form, callsfor legal conclusion. 20 Answer to the extent you can under romanette
21 A. Yeah, that -- I'm not alawyer. I'm not 21 iv.
22 trying to beevasive. | just don't know whether they 22 MR. CORRELL: AndthisisMr. Correll. |
23 have the authority to supervise the bankruptcy or not. 23 object to the form to the extent that it callsfor a
24 | just know that everything I've been doing in my spot 24 lega conclusion.
25 asEVP I've been doing in complete coordination withthe |25  A. It'srealy alegal question you're asking me
Page 451 Page 453
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1 that | -- I'm not sure of what the answer is, to tell

2 you the honest truth. | mean --

3 Q. (BY MR.THOMPSON) Soif therewereto bea
4 disagreement between you as the executive vice president
5 and the specia litigation committee about any decisions
6 that need to be made with respect to the bankruptcy, who
7 would have the ultimate authority to make the decision

8 between you as executive vice president and the specia

9 litigation committee?

MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
question, and objection it falls outside the scope of
question 13.

Answer if you can.

A. Wdl, | -- | think if we--if we--if a
disagreement of that type occurred between the EVP and
the special litigation committee, | think we would -- we
would seek further input from the board of directors, to
tell you the truth.

Q. (BY MR. THOMPSON) Okay. Isitthe NRA's
position that prior to -- let me step back for a second.

Isit the NRA's position that prior to the
resol ution adopting your employment agreement that was
23 adopted at the January 7th meeting, did you as the
24 executive vice president have the authority to filea

25 Chapter 11 bankruptcy petition on behalf of the National
Page 454

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

1 believe.

2 (Exhibit 13 marked.)

3 Q. (BY MR. THOMPSON) Okay. The exhibit should
4 beavailableif you refresh.

5 A. It'sherenow.

6 MR. GARMAN: All right. We'relooking at
7 page 1, questions and answers.

8 MR. THOMPSON: Yes.

9 Q. (BY MR.THOMPSON) Mr. LaPierre, do you
10 recognize -- | apologize for the formatting of this
11 document, but are you able to tell what it is?
12 A. Yes. Thisisaquestion and answer document
13 that was prepared by our public -- public relations
14 staff in consultation with Travis with the Brewer firm.
15 Q. Great. Soif you could please go down to the
16 bottom of the second page under the question, By filing
17 for Chapter 11, isthe NRA admitting it mismanaged donor
18 funds? Do you see that question?
19 A. | doseethat question.
20 Q. Okay. And then right underneath that question
21 doyou see whereit says. Not at all. We have utilized
22 al donor contributionsin furtherance of the NRA's
23 mission. Thisaction is necessitated primarily by one
24 thing, the unhinged and political attack against the NRA

25 by the New York Attorney General.
Page 456

1 Rifle Association?
2 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
3 question. It callsfor alegal conclusion, and it falls
4 outside the scope of the designated questions.
5 Go ahead and answer.
6 A. Yeah, asl-- 1 --1 would not have proceeded
7 interms of the executive vice president position to
8 move ahead with filing without that resolution from that
9 board of directors delegating authority to the EVP's
office to reorganize. Without that, | would not have
proceeded.

Q. (BY MR. THOMPSON) Okay. So let's go ahead
and turn to topic 14. So | believe during your

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21 Forward website are inaccurate?

22 A. | don't think we have any reason to believe
23 that. Not that | know of.

24 Q. Okay. Sol want to -- give me amoment to
25 actually mark it, but I am going to mark Exhibit 13, |

individual deposition you testified that the contents of
the NRA Forward website were prepared by Mr. Arulanandam
and his team with some input from Mr. Carter at the
Brewer firm. Isthat correct?
A. That iscorrect.
Q. Okay. Sitting here today, does the NRA have
any reason to believe that any statements on the NRA

Page 455

1 Do you seethat?
2 A. | doseethat.
3 Q. Doesthe NRA agree with this statement?
4 A, Wdl, asl said earlier, it -- not to be
5 repetitive, but going back to general -- Attorney
6 General Schneiderman and we believe -- we became
7 convinced that -- | became convinced in my deposition
8 thefirst time that -- where there seemed to be no
9 interest in the self-correction, tremendous pain the NRA
10 was going through to self-correct and look at everyone
11 and to bein complete compliance with New Y ork state
12 law, which we were proud of.
13 And then when the -- General James filed for
14 dissolution of the NRA, this 5 million member
15 organization that does all these great safety and
16 training and education and programs, as well as
17 political advocacy, that the atmospherein New York --
18 there didn't seem to be any good faith effort in terms
19 of al the work NRA had done on compliance, to even
20 recognize any of that and as -- or the safe harbor
21 provision that Attorney General Schneiderman had talked
22 about, that we honestly felt that we had -- in terms if
23 you cared about the NRA and its programs and its mission
24 and our members, our -- it gotten to the point where our
25 one dlternative was to file Chapter 11 and seek a

Page 457
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1 federal judge's approval on reincorporating in another
2 state.
3 We had tried -- and | will be quick. But
4 through 2017, after the Schneiderman call, in 2018, in
5 2019, not to leave New Y ork, but to actually look at
6 everything, self-correct and -- and ensure that we were
7 in complete compliance with New Y ork state law, but it
8 just got to the point where, based on what happened, if
9 you cared about the NRA we felt we had no other
10 alternative but to take this course.
11 Q. Okay. And | appreciate the context,
12 Mr. LaPierre, but | just want to go back to my question.
13 A. I'msorry.
14 Q. Somy question iswhether the NRA agrees with
15 this statement at the bottom of page 2 of Exhibit 13?

16 A. Yes wedo -- | do-- we do agree with it.
17 Q. Okay. Thank you.
18 MR. THOMPSON: Mr. Garman, if wejust

19 take atwo-minute bresk, that may be the end of my
20 30(b)(6) questioning, but | just want to have a moment
21 to confer with my colleagues.

22 MR. GARMAN: Sure. Take whatever time
23 you need. WEe'll go off the record.

1 personally.
2 Q. (BY MR.THOMPSON) Okay. And that was my
3 follow-up question, was without -- without itemizing for
4 me who wasinvolved in each particular conversation, can
5 you tell me generally who at the NRA who isn't alawyer
6 representing the NRA was involved in those
7 conversations?
8 MR. GARMAN: | object to the extent this
9 calls outside of question 13.
10 Go ahead and answer if you can.
11  A. Charles Cotton talked with the governor of
12 Texasdirectly. Randy Kozuch on our staff had
13 conversations with -- | know he had conversations with
14 the attorney general of Arizona. | think he also had
15 conversations with the governor of Arkansas. | may have
16 said Arizona. Arkansas. | believe the governor of
17 Arkansas also mentioned it to me personally in -- when |
18 wastalking with him. Ah --
19 Q. (BY MR.THOMPSON) I'm sorry. Go ahead.
20 A. No,I'mjusttrying to recal any -- I'm
21 thinking through the -- the governor of Tennessee
22 expressed an interest in setting up a meeting to talk
23 about it. Those are the ones that specifically come to

24 MR. THOMPSON: Okay. Thank you. 24 mind.
25 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We're going off the 25 Q. WhoisMr. Kozuch?
Page 458 Page 460
1 record. Thetimeonthevideois5:09 p m. 1 A. Randy Kozuch worksfor NRA in the Office of
2 (Break from 5:09 p m. to 5:12 p m.) 2 Advancement, but heis -- heisvery close to most of
3 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We are back on the 3 the governors and probably most of the attorney generals

4 record. Thetime onthevideois5:12 p m.
5 Q. (BY MR.THOMPSON) So Mr. LaPierre, just one
6 last question from me relating to topic 13, the process
7 by which the NRA determined to file for bankruptcy.
8 During your individual deposition, you mentioned that
9 there were some conversations that were occurring with
10 leadersin other states, or | believe you specifically
11 mentioned the governor of Texas about a potential move
12 for the NRA. Were there conversations with any other
13 states about a potential move?
14 MR. GARMAN: So objection to the form of
15 the question. Objection to the extent thisfalls
16 outside of question 13.
17 Go ahead and answer if you can.
18  A. Yes, there were -- there were conversations
19 with -- | know for afact Arkansas, West Virginia,
20 definitely Texas. | am trying to think, because we've
21 been contacted by -- those are the three that | am
22 gspecifically aware of, although | know there were many
23 othersthat also have expressed interest. | just -- |
24 just don't want to misstate the states by -- but | know,

25 for example, the governor of West Virginiacalled me
Page 459

4 inthe country.

5 Q. Anddoeshe-- heworksunder Mr. Schropp. Is

6 that correct?

7 A. Thatiscorrect.

8 Q. And other than Mr. Cotton, prior to thefiling

9 of the bankruptcy on January 15, were any members of the
10 board informed about any of the conversations that we
11 were discussing with Arkansas, West Virginia, Texas or
12 Tennessee?
13 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the extent this
14 question falls outside the scope of the identified
15 questions.
16 Go ahead and answer if you can.
17 A. Idon't--1 don't think any of them from our
18 end were informed or -- | know you had alot of
19 discussion going on among our board about the NRA ought
20 to moveto Texas, the NRA ought to move to North -- to
21 South Dakota, the NRA ought to move to, you know
22 Kentucky, Tennessee. | mean, everyone seemed to have an
23 opinion, and that was kind of a free-flowing discussion
24 going on just in general, not specifically related to

25 this, but it was just conversational talk going on among
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1 our board. 1 MR. CORRELL: Don't speculate.
2 MR. THOMPSON: Okay. So thank you very 2 A. I'mspeculating, but -- | know Travis Carter
3 much, Mr. LaPierre. With that, | will pass the witness 3 did.
4 back to Mr. Mason. 4 MR. GARMAN: Hold on. So onthis, | want

5 THE WITNESS: Thank you.
6 MR. MASON: Mr. LaPierre, are you ready
7 to continue, or would you like to take a break?
8 THE WITNESS: I'm fine.
9 MR. MASON: Okay.
10 THE WITNESS: If you are.
11 MR. MASON: | am good.
12 MR. GARMAN: Brian, let me find your

13 video. One second, please. Therewe are. Y ou were
14 just avoice from beyond before. We're ready.

15 FURTHER EXAMINATION

16 BY MR. MASON:

17 Q. Mr. LaPierre, when did the NRA and the Brewer
18 firm begin preparing the NRA Forward website?

19 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
20 question.
21 A. | --1don't know the exact date that the NRA

22 bhegan preparing the -- the website. | said that Andrew
23 Arulanandam was brought in on the process to work with
24 Travis and the Brewer firm, but | can't give you an

25 exact date asto when. | just don't know.
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5 tobeclear. | want you to testify to what you know,
6 and | want you to testify to what Andrew told us when we
7 asked him these questions.
8 A. Yeah, heworked with Travis Carter.
9 Q. (BY MR.MASON) How much time did you spend
10 preparing for your 30(b)(6) deposition today?
11  A. Wetaked -- we chatted maybe 30 -- 30 minutes
12 with Andrew and Mr. Garman and --
13 Q. Okay. Soonceyour individua deposition was
14 done, you spent about 30 minutes preparing for your
15 corporate representative deposition. |Isthat true?
16  A. That'strue.
17 Q. Who prepared the first draft of Wayne's
18 Letter?
19 A. That was prepared by -- by Andrew Arulanandam
20 and Travis Carter.
21 Q. DidMr. Arulanandam or Mr. Carter prepare the
22 first draft?

23 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
24 question.
25 But go ahead and answer.
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1 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Didthe NRA and the Brewer
2 firm begin working on the NRA Forward website before
3 January the 7th?
4 A. |don't know the answer to that.
5 Q. Whoareadl the people at the Brewer firm that
6 wereinvolved and had input on the content on the NRA
7 Forward website?
8 A. Asfaras| know, the one that worked with
9 Andrew was Travis.
10 Q. Andwhat'sthe basisfor that knowledge?
11 A. Justthefact that that'sthe onethat in
12 talking with me Andrew always told me he would talk
13 with.
14 Q. Haveyou made any attemptsto determine
15 whether anyone else at the Brewer firm besides
16 Mr. Carter wasinvolved in reviewing the content that
17 was going to be going on the NRA Forward website?
18 A. I havent.
19 Q. You'refamiliar with Wayne's Letter on the NRA
20 Forward website. Correct?
21 A. Yes, | am. | think Bill probably looked at
22 some of it, too, Bill Brewer, before -- before it went
23 forward also.
24 Q. Doyouknow that? Isthat your testimony on

25 behalf of the NRA?
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1 A. Asfar as| know, based on my conversation

2 with Andrew, that -- that is -- is what happened.

3 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Did Mr. Carter prepare the
4 initial draft of the Wayne's Letter that ultimately is

5 on -- currently on the NRA Forward website?

6  A. |think they both -- they both worked together

7 onall of that.

8 Q. Doyouknow how long it took them to prepare
9 that letter?

10 A. Idont.

11 Q. Do you know when they began preparing that
12 letter?

13 A. |think they started working on it a couple of

14 days before.

15 Q. Whendidyou first review Wayne's L etter

16 that's on the NRA Forward website?

17  A. 1think | wasin herethat whole day that we
18 filed and was looking over materia all day aswe

19 prepared tofile.

20 Q. Didyoumake any changesto Wayne's L etter
21 beforeit was posted to the NRA Forward website?
22  A. | can't--1don't remember, to tell you the

23 truth. If | did, they were minor.

24 Q. Didyou review the entirety of Wayne's Letter

25 beforeit was posted to the NRA Forward website?
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1 A. Yeah. Yes, | believel did.

2 Q. lIsitfairtosay that alot of time and

3 effort went into preparing the NRA Forward website?

4 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the

5 question.

6 A. I'msurethat Andrew and Billy in working with

7 Travis spent -- spent alot of time on it, worked very

8 hard for a couple days.

9 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Why did the Brewer firm need
10 to beinvolved in the preparation of the NRA Forward
11 website?

12 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
13 question.

14 Go ahead and answer if you can.

15  A. Wadll, | think Andrew and Billy actually --

16 actually did the website. It -- | think that Travis

17 Carter would have been involved in some of the content
18 working with Andrew.

19 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Would you agreethat it is
20 important that all of the content on the NRA Forward
21 websiteis-- is accurate?

22 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
23 question.

24 A. |thinkit'sawaysimportant to try to be

25 accurate.
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1 A. Tothe--tothebest of my knowledge, the
2 statements on the NRA website are -- are -- are accurate
3 and parallel the legal facts.
4 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Do you believe that the
5 statements on the NRA Forward website accurately reflect
6 why the NRA filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy?
7 MR. CORRELL: ThisisKent Correll.
8 Objection to the form, also callsfor legal conclusion.
9 A. Tothebest of my knowledge, they do
10 accurately reflect why the NRA filed for Chapter 11.
11 Q. (BY MR.MASON) There was a press rel ease that
12 was asoissued or also listed on the NRA Forward
13 website. Areyou familiar with that press release?
14  A. | haveread anumber of pressreleasesthat we
15 didin relation of that -- to this. | don't know which
16 oneyou're specifically referring to.
17 Q. Let'ssee. Let'stakealook at exhibit --
18 Ackerman Exhibit 90.

19 (AMc Exhibit 90 marked.)

20 Q. (BY MR.MASON) It should bein the folder.
21 MR. GARMAN: It'sthere.

22 A. Yeah, I'mlooking at it right now.

23 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Areyou familiar with this

24 pressrelease, Mr. LaPierre?

25 A. lam.
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1 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Words matter. Right?
2 A. Theydo.

3 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
4 question.
5 Go ahead.

6 A. Yes | agreewith that.
7 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Would you agree that -- well,
8 dtrike that.
9 And you would agree with me that on the NRA
10 Forward website, it's important to make accurate
11 statementsto all of your NRA members. Correct?

12 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
13 question.

14 Go ahead.

15 A. Weawaystry to make accurate statements to

16 al of our members, yes, | agree.

17 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Would you agree that the
18 public statements made on the NRA Forward website are
19 consistent with the NRA'slegal positionsin the

20 bankruptcy?

21 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
22 question.
23 MR. CORRELL: Yeah, | just want to also

24 object on the grounds that it calls for legal

25 conclusion.
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1 Q. Who prepared thefirst draft of this press

2 release?

3 A, Itwasprepared by Andrew Arulanandam and

4 Travis Carter.

5 Q. DidMr. Arulanandam or did Mr. Carter prepare

6 theinitial draft?

7 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the

8 question.

9 A. Tothebest of my knowledge, they worked as a
10 team together on this and they collaborated together on
11 it

12 Q. (BY MR.MASON) When wasthefirst draft
13 prepared?
14  A. |think they wereworking on it a couple days

15 before -- before the -- the bankruptcy wasfiled. |

16 know they were working like around the clock on the
17 couple days before the bankruptcy was filed on -- on all
18 of thistype of material.

19 Q. Let'stakealook at Exhibit 76, please.
20 (AMc Exhibit 76 marked.)
21 Q. (BY MR.MASON) It should bein the shared

22 folder.
23 MR. GARMAN: It'sup.
24 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Mr. LaPierre, do you see

25 Ackerman Exhibit 76?
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1 A. ldo.
2 Q. Anditlookslikethere's-- at thetop it
3 saysleadership quotes. Do you seethat?
4 A. | doseethat.
5 Q. And there's a statement from yourself, and
6 thenif you keep going through, there's a statement from
7 Ms. Meadows and then there's a statement from Mr. Brewer
8 and then there's a statement from Mr. King. Do you see
9 that?
10 A. Ildo.
11 Q. Who madethe decision as to which leadership
12 quotes were going to be -- well, let me back up.

13 Who made the decision as to which leaders were
14 going to be quoted on this particular page?

15 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.

16 Go ahead and answer.

17 A. | believe Andrew Arulanandam came up with the

18 list of who he thought should be quoted.

19 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Did Mr. Arulanandam consult
20 with anyone else at the NRA before this was posted on

21 the NRA Forward website?

22 A. | believe he-- I'm pretty sure he mentioned

23 to mein terms of these are people I'm thinking of using

24 quotes from, and he mentioned one from me and then he

25 mentioned these others.
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1 but he doesn't -- he doesn't do it usually on his own --
2 sometimes he might -- without -- without also seeking
3 input or running it by somebody.
4 Q. Andwhen you say "running it by somebody," are
5 you referring to running it by somebody at the NRA or
6 running it by somebody at the Brewer firm?
7 A. Wdll, I'mtalking about at the NRA, but as|
8 said, he workswith -- if it'salegal issue, he works
9 with Travis Carter at the Brewer firm onit if it
10 involves any of these litigation matters or -- or this
11 type of matter.
12 Q. Why was John Frazer not quoted on the
13 leadership quotes page on the NRA Forward website?
14 MR. GARMAN: Objection to form.
15 A. Idon'thaveanyidea. Thesearethe names
16 Andrew suggested be there, and | -- you'd have to ask
17 Andrew why they didn't decide to -- | mean, other people
18 aren't quoted either. | mean, | don't think it was
19 anything particularly involving John Frazer or aimed at
20 John Frazer. It wasjust these are the people Andrew
21 came up with that he thought should be quoted.
22 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Do you agreethat Mr. Brewer
23 isone of the leaders within the NRA?
24 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the

25 question.
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1 Q. DidMr. Brewer ask if he could be quoted on
2 the leadership quotes page?

3 MR. CORRELL: Objection. Thisis
4 Mr. Correll.
5 To the extent that it calls for you to reveal

6 any communications with attorneys about litigation, |

7 instruct you not to answer.

8 A. Waell, asl said, | -- theonel talked to

9 about thiswas Andrew. So Andrew would have the
10 knowledge on whether it was hisidea or whether he had a
11 conversation with Mr. Brewer.
12 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Does--
13  A. I know I didn't have a conversation with
14 Mr. Brewer about it.
15 Q. DoesMr. Arulanandam have complete control as
16 tothe NRA's public relations and the statements that
17 are put out by the NRA?
18 A. Heisdirector of public affairsfor the
19 Nationa Rifle Association, and he directs that
20 operation. He -- he runs by -- statements by a number
21 of people. Heruns-- depending on what the subject, he
22 runsit by me. Herunsthem by Jason Ouimet, the ILA
23 director, Institute for Legislative Action. Heruns
24 them by Joe DeBergalis, the director of genera

25 operations. It depends on the nature of the subject,
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1 A. No. Mr. Brewer islitigation counsel working

2 for the NRA. | would not say he's aleader of the NRA.

3 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Let'stakealook at

4 Exhibit 128, please.

5 (AMc Exhibit 128 marked.)

6 MR. GARMAN: Okay. We haveit.

7 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Mr. LaPierre, have you seen

8 this before, this article before?

9 MR. GARMAN: Counsel, Mr. LaPierre hasn't
10 read it. I'm either going to ask that he read it or you

11 represent what it is.

12 MR. MASON: Sure.

13  A. | havenot seenit.

14 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Sure.

15  A. | havenot seen the article before.

16 Q. Let meback up and ask one question.

17 Mr. LaPierre, you testified that | believe on

18 January 15, the day that the NRA was filing for

19 bankruptcy, you reviewed the various materials that were
20 going to be posted on the NRA Forward website. Is

21 that -- isthat accurate?

22 A. | reviewed all kinds of material that day.

23 | -- yes, | reviewed alot of material that day. |

24 don't know whether | reviewed everything that was going

25 to be posted on the website, but | reviewed alot of --
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1 alot of press releases and |etters to vendors and
2 lettersto the board and other things like that.
3 Q. Okay. Sogoing back to Ackerman Exhibit 128,
4 thisisapressrelease that was put out by Stephen
5 Gutowski that istitled "NRA Board to Hold Emergency
6 Hearing Amid Bankruptcy Turmoil."
7 And if youwill, Mr. LaPierre, | would like
8 for you to scroll down to the second page, please.
9 MR. GARMAN: Counsdl, thisisa press
10 release?
11 MR. MASON: Well, I'm sorry. It'snot a
12 pressrelease fromthe NRA. It'sanewsarticle. Thank
13 you for that correction.
14 Q. (BY MR.MASON) And if youwill, thefirst
15 full paragraph. It states, Y ou could have seen the top
16 of my car blow off with my head, Journey said, because |
17 knew what that meant. It meant that those three lawyers
18 committed alie of omission of material facts to the
19 board of directors. Nobody said bankruptcy.

20 Do you seethat?
21  A. | doseethat.
22 MR. GARMAN: So | am going to object.

23 You haven't laid foundation for this document, but go
24 ahead.

25 Q. (BY MR. MASON) And then Mr. Brewer, it
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1 statement in the press -- well, let me ask you this. As
2 you sit here today, are you aware of any statements that
3 Mr. Brewer has made in the press relating to the
4 bankruptcy that have been run or approved by you first?
5 A. No, I don't--1 don't know of any statement
6 that Mr. Brewer has made that -- a press release or
7 anything that was run by me. | know that in this quote,
8 the plan was widely endorsed by the board members. |
9 mean, since we have had an overwhelming support from
10 board members and NRA members and elected officialsin
11 termsof -- sincethefiling. | mean, people have --
12 our members have been cheering, to tell you the truth,
13 and so have elected officials.
14 Q. Sowhen Mr. Brewer saysthis plan was
15 undertaken in full compliance with the NRA policy, do
16 you understand that he is stating that the plan to file
17 Chapter 11 bankruptcy? Isthat your understanding?

18 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
19 question.
20 A. Yeah, | think he'saccurately stating the

21 truth, that it was -- the authority to file was

22 delegated to the EVP's office, and | worked with the
23 SLC, whichisin compliance with NRA policy.

24 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Who are al the board members

25 that supported the NRA filing Chapter 11 bankruptcy in
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1 states, Counsel to the NRA saysthat Journey is

2 mistaken. Judge Journey purportedly supports the

3 mission of the NRA and claims not to oppose the

4 association seeking to reincorporate in Texas, he said

5 inastatement. Unfortunately, he seems to mistakenly

6 believe that the NRA reorganization plan did not follow

7 board and internal protocol. This plan was undertaken

8 in full compliance with the NRA policy. The plan has

9 been widely endorsed by NRA board members, NRA members,
10 elected officials and other key stakeholders.

11 Do you see that?
12 A. Yesh
13 Q. Somy first question for you iswho at the NRA

14 authorized Mr. Brewer to make this statement?

15 MR. GARMAN: Objection first -- objection
16 to the form of the question and objection, lacks

17 foundation.

18 MR. CORRELL: | would aso -- thisis

19 Kent Correll. | object to the extent that it calls for

20 disclosure of any confidential attorney/client

21 communication.

22 A
23 Arulanandam and Mr. Brewer. | haven't seen this

It would be a conversation between Andrew

24 article, and | haven't seen this quote.

25 Q. (BY MR.MASON) When Mr. Brewer makes a
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1 Dallas, Texas, prior to the January 7th board meeting?
2 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
3 question, objection to foundation.
4  A. Wediscussed it at length. The resolution
5 that was passed delegated to the EVP's office the
6 authority to reorganize, and | consulted with the
7 specid litigation committee, Carolyn Meadows, Willes
8 Lee, Charles Cotton. We were very concerned about
9 leaks, as|'ve said on this, because if it had leaked --
10 given from her own statements, we believed General
11 James, had she been informed of it by through aleak,
12 would have tried to put the NRA into receivership, which
13 would have destroyed the NRA. So --
14 MR. MASON: Could | have my question read
15 back, please?
16 (Requested testimony read.)
17 MR. GARMAN: Counsel, | believe he
18 answered your question.

19 MR. CORRELL: Same objections.

20 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Prior to the January 7th board
21 meeting.

22 MR. GARMAN: Object to the form of the

23 question, asked and answered.
24 Y ou can identify the same individuals again.

25 A. | consulted with Carolyn Meadows, Willes Lee,
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1 Charles Cotton, and the authority was delegated to the

2 EVP'soffice to reorganize at that board meeting. And |

3 wasn't in theroom, so | don't know all the discussions

4 that took place on that resolution.

5 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Since January 15, have any

6 other board members besides Mr. Liptak resigned from the
7 NRA board?

8 MR. GARMAN: Object to the -- object to
9 it being outside the scope.

10 Go ahead and answer.

11  A. Not that I'm aware of.

12 Q. (BY MR.MASON) We can take alook at

13 Exhibit 91, please.

14 (AMc Exhibit 91 marked.)

15 Q. (BY MR.MASON) And whileyour counsel is
16 pulling that up, Mr. LaPierre, are you aware of any

17 leaksrelating to the executive committee meeting that
18 took place on January 7th?

19 MR. GARMAN: Object to the form of the
20 question, object that it's outside the scope of the

21 examination.

22 Go ahead.

23  A. | amnot aware of any leaks that took place at
24 that January 7th meeting, no, I'm not.

25 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Isthe reason that there were
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1 A |seethat.

2 Q. Andthe NRA states here, This process begins

3 immediately. The NRA isexpected to emerge from these
4 proceedings within the next six months.

5 Do you see that?
6 A. |doseethat.
7 Q. Isityour testimony that it was just

8 Mr. Arulanandam and Mr. Travis Carter that were involved
9 in preparing the answer to this question?

10 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
11 question.
12 A. | believe-- my belief on this questionis

13 that you would have to ask Andrew, but | would probably
14 bet that on the specific legal issue of proceed within

15 the next six months, they probably consulted legal

16 counsel.

17 Q. (BY MR.MASON) What'sthe factual basisfor
18 the statement that the NRA is expected to emerge from
19 these proceedings within the next six months?

20 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the
21 question.
22 A. | haveno personal knowledge of that. You

23 would need to ask -- it would be a question for the
24 attorneys and the bankruptcy attorneys, and | don't have

25 the -- | don't have the answer.
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1 not any leaks because Chapter 11 bankruptcy was not

2 discussed?

3 MR. GARMAN: Objection to the form of the

4 question.

5 MR. CORRELL: Objection to the form and

6 no foundation.

7  A. 1don't know the answer to that.

8 Q. (BY MR.MASON) If you could take alook at
9 Exhibit 91. | believe this -- we may have looked at

10 thisbefore. Thisisthe questions and answers section

11 of the NRA Forward website. Do you seethat?
12 A. Yes | do.
13 Q. Wasanyone elseinvolved with the preparation

14 of these questions and answers besides Mr. Arulanandam
15 and the Brewer law firm?

16 A. Not that | know of, based on my discussions

17 with -- with Andrew Arulanandam earlier today.

18 Q. Whendid the NRA begin preparing Exhibit 917
19 A. Asl'vesad, | think they worked onit a

20 couple of days before the -- the bankruptcy was

21 announced. They were working around the clock on this
22 stuff.

23 Q. If you'll go down to thethird page about

24 two-thirds of the way down. Do you see the question

25 when will the restructuring process be compl eted?
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1 Q. (BY MR.MASON) You arethe NRA's corporate
2 representative designated on the NRA Forward website.
3 Isthat right?
4 MR. GARMAN: Objection. He'sour
5 designated representative for question 8.
6 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Isthat true, Mr. LaPierre?
7 A. | amthedesigneefor the question -- the
8 Ackerman questions here today on -- that are
9 highlighted.
10 MR. GARMAN: Counsdl, for clarity of the
11 record, | have a highlighted copy of the -- of the
12 noticein front of me. That'ssimply all that's here.
13 Q. (BY MR.MASON) And just to beclear,
14 Mr. LaPierre, you were the corporate representative on
15 the Ackerman topics 5 and 8. Isthat correct?

16 MR. GARMAN: Thewitnessisreferring to
17 my copy --

18 A. That'scorrect, 5and 8.

19 Q. (BY MR.MASON) And with respect to topic 8,

20 did you review any of the contents on the NRA Forward
21 website before testifying as the NRA corporate

22 representative today?

23 A. Ididnot. | had conversations with Andrew

24 Arulanandam about who -- about the process and who he

25 worked with, and that's the conversations | had along,
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1 with counsel from the Garman firm. 1 CHANGES AND SIGNATURE
2 MR. MASON: All right. Let'sgo off the 2 WITNESSNAME: WAYNE LAPIERRE
3 record. | think I'm about done. Let me seeif I've got 3 DATE OF DEPOSITION: MARCH 23, 2021
4 any other questions. 4 PAGE LINE CHANGE  REASON
5 MR. GARMAN: Sure. 5
6 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We're going off the 6
7 record. Thetimeonthevideois5:49 pm. 7
8 (Break from 5:49 p m. to 5:51 p.m.) 8
9 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We're back on the 9
10 record. Thetime on the recordis5:51 p.m. 10
11 Q. (BY MR.MASON) Mr. LaPierre, the genera 1
12 counsel of the National Rifle Association, John Frazer 12
13 on Thursday testified that if the filing of the 13
14 bankruptcy was not authorized then it could not be filed 14
15 ingood faith. My question for you is do you agree with 15
16 that statement 16
17 MR. GARMAN: | object to the form of the 17
18 question. | object to the extent it calls for alega 18
19 conclusion. 19
20 A. | saidearlier if the board had not del egated 20
21 theauthority to the EVP's office to reorganize, | would 21
22 not have proceeded ahead with a reorganization. 22
23 MR. MASON: All right. | am going to 23
24 passthe witness at this point, save the -- reserve the 24
25 rest of our 30(b)(6) time, unless Mr. Thompson has any 25 JobNo TX4510606
Page 482 Page 484
1 other questions. 1 I, WAYNE LAPIERRE, have read the foregoing
2 MR. THOMPSON: No. Thank you. | will 2 deposition and hereby affix my signature that sameis
3 pass the witness as well. 3 true and correct, except as noted above.
4 MR. DRAKE: Thisis Scott Drake. On 4
5 behalf of the Committee, we have no further questions of 5
6 Mr. LaPierre. 6 WAYNE LAPIERRE
7 MR. GARMAN: Thank you, Scott. 7
8 Mr. Videographer, if you would put on the 8 THE STATE OF )
9 record the amount of time each of the parties used on 9 COUNTY OF )
10 the 30(b)(6) before we go off, | think we would all 10 Before me, ,on
11 appreciateit. 11 thisday personally appeared WAY NE LAPIERRE, known to me
12 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: Yes. Mr. Thompson 12 (or proved to me under oath or through
13 used 32 minutes and Mr. Mason used 32 minutes. 13 ) (description of identity
14 MR. GARMAN: Good. 14 card or other document) to be the person whose name is
15 MR. MASON: Consistent. Okay. I'vegot 15 subscribed to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged
16 nothing else. 16 to me that they executed the same for the purposes and
17 Thank you, Mr. LaPierre. 17 consideration therein expressed.
18 THE WITNESS: Thank you. 18 Given under my hand and seal of office this
19 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: This concludestoday's | 19 day of ,
20 deposition. Thetime on thevideo is5:53 p.m. We are 20
21 off the record. 21
22 (Proceedings ended at 5:53 p.m.) 22
23 23 NOTARY PUBLICIN AND FOR
24 24 THE STATE OF
25 25
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1 STATE OF TEXAS )

2 COUNTY OF DALLAS)

3 I, Julie C. Brandt, Certified Shorthand

4 Reporter in and for the State of Texas, certify that the

5 foregoing deposition of WAYNE LAPIERRE, VOLUME 2. was
6 reported stenographically by me remotely via Zoom, said

7 witness having been placed under oath by me, and the

8 deposition is a true record of the testimony given by

9 the witness;
10 That the amount of time used by attorneys at
11 the deposition is as follows:
12 Mr. Sheehan - 1 hour, 28 minutes
13 Mr. Thompson - 32 minutes
14 Mr. Drake - 46 minutes
15 Mr. Mason - 3 hours, 18 minutes
16 I further certify that I am neither counsel

17 for. nor related to any party in the cause and am not
18 financially interested in its outcome.

19 In witness whereof, I have subscribed my name
20 this 24th day of March, 2021.
21

2 Q(LCUCJM

Julie C. Brandt, CSK, KMR, CRR

23 TX CSR No. 4018, Exp. 10/31/21
Veritext Legal Solutions
24 Firm Registration No. 571
300 Throckmorton Street, Suite 1600
25 Fort Worth, Texas 76102
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1 ggarman@gtg.legal
2 March 24, 2021
3 National Rifle Association Of America And Sea Girt LLC
4 DEPOSITION OF: Wayne LaPierre , Vol. 2 (# 4510606)
5  The above-referenced witness transeript is
available for read and sign.
Within the applicable timeframe, the witness
should read the testimony to verify its accuracy. If
there are any changes. the witness should note those
10 on the attached Errata Sheet.
11 The witness should sign and notarize the
12 attached Errata pages and return to Veritext at
13 errata-tx@veritext.com.
14  According to applicable rules or agreements, if
15 the witness fails to do so within the time allotted,
16 a certified copy of the transcript may be used as if
17 signed.
18 Yours,
19 Veritext Legal Solutions
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